
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Executive 

 
 
TUESDAY, 21ST NOVEMBER, 2006 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD 
GREEN, N22 8LE. 
 
 
MEMBERS: Councillors Meehan (Chair), Reith (Vice-Chair), Canver, Diakides, Amin, 

Basu, Haley, B. Harris, Mallett and Santry 
 

Please note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed. The images and sound recording may be used 
for training purposes within the Council.  

 
Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering the 
meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being 
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 
webcasting and/or training purposes. 

 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Principal Support Manager 
(Committee Clerk) at the meeting. 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
 
 (if any) 

 
2. URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late 

items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be 
dealt with at item 20 below. New items of exempt business will be dealt with at item 
22 below). 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 



 

2 

 A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority 
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and 
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the 
interest becomes apparent.  
 
A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that 
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the 
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the 
member's judgement of the public interest. 
 
 

4. MINUTES  (PAGES 1 - 6)  
 
 To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Executive held on 31 October 

2006. 
 

5. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS    
 
 To consider any requests received in accordance with Standing Orders. 

 
6. MATTERS, IF ANY, REFERRED TO THE EXECUTIVE FOR CONSIDERATION BY 

THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE    
 
7. PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT - SEPTEMBER 2006  (PAGES 7 - 86)  
 
 (Report of the Chief Executive – To be introduced by the Executive Member for 

Organisational Development and Performance) To provide highlight reports for all the 
Council’s corporately significant projects, covering the period up to the end of 
September 2006.  
 
 

8. THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE - SEPTEMBER 2006  (PAGES 87 - 118)  
 
 (Joint Report of the Chief Executive and the Acting Director of Finance – To be 

introduced by the Executive Member for Finance): To set out an exception report on 
the finance and performance monitoring for September 2006 using the balanced 
scorecard format. 
 

9. HARINGEY COUNCIL'S PROPOSAL FOR THE NEW SCHOOL IN HARINGEY 
HEARTLANDS  (PAGES 119 - 138)  

 
 (Report of the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service – To be 

introduced by the Executive Member for Children and Young People): To provide an 
update on the new secondary school consultation and to seek agreement to the 
Council’s own proposals to promote the new secondary school. 
 
 

10. LEARNER SUPPORT FUND (LSF)  (PAGES 139 - 150)  
 



 

3 

 (Report of the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service – To be 
introduced by the Executive Member for Children and Young People): To agree the 
Council’s policy on how the LSF is allocated, including assessing learners’ income 
and a procedure for learners to appeal if they refused funding.  
 

11. MAXIMISING HOUSEHOLD INCOME IN HARINGEY  (PAGES 151 - 156)  
 
 (Report of the Director of Social Services – To be introduced by the Executive 

Member for Health and Social Services): To seek agreement to an income 
maximisation strategy and action plan to tackle poverty and social exclusion  in 
Haringey. 
 

12. FORFEITURE PROCEEDINGS AGAINST RESIDENTIAL LEASEHOLDERS  
(PAGES 157 - 162)  

 
 (Report of the Director of Social Services – To be introduced by the Executive 

Member for Housing): To obtain approval to a proposed change in enforcement policy 
in relation to leasehold service charge debts.  
 

13. DRAFT STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT  (PAGES 163 - 240)  
 
 (Report of the Interim Director of Environmental Services – To be introduced by the 

Executive Member for Environment and Conservation): To seek approval for the draft 
SCI to go out to consultation with the public and general consultation bodies. 
 

14. TOTTENHAM HALE CPZ EXTENSION  (PAGES 241 - 256)  
 
 (Report of the Interim Director of Environmental Services – To be introduced by the 

Executive Member for Environment and Conservation): To summarise feedback from 
the Statutory Consultation process, seek approval to implement the extension of the 
Tottenham Hale CPZ and Stoneleigh Road pay and display parking scheme and to 
authorise officers to proceed to the making of the necessary Traffic Management 
Orders. 
 

15. HATE CRIME AND HARASSMENT STRATEGY  (PAGES 257 - 286)  
 
 (Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Strategy) – To be introduced by the 

Executive Member for Crime and Community Safety):  To present the amended Hate 
Crime and Harassment Strategy with a draft action plan to March 2008. 
 

16. YOUTH CRIME REDUCTION STRATEGY  (PAGES 287 - 314)  
 
 (Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Strategy) – To be introduced by the 

Executive Member for Crime and Community Safety): To approve the Haringey Youth 
Crime Reduction Strategy for 2006-2008.  
 

17. EQUALITY PUBLIC DUTIES SCHEME    
 



 

4 

 (Report of the Chief Executive – To be introduced by the Leader): To propose a 
generic equality scheme which brings the duties under the various UK anti-
discrimination legislation under a single strategic policy and operational framework. 
FAILED TO MEET DESPATCH DATE 
 

18. URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LEADER OR 
EXECUTIVE MEMBERS  (PAGES 315 - 318)  

 
 (Report of the Chief Executive): To inform the Executive of urgent actions taken by 

Directors in consultation with the Leader or Executive Members.  
 

19. DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS  (PAGES 319 - 326)  
 
 (Report of the Chief Executive): To inform the Executive of delegated decisions and 

significant actions taken by Directors. 
 

20. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any items admitted at item 2 above and any matters raised by Members 

of the Executive. 
 

21. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC    
 
 The following item is likely to be the subject of a motion to exclude the press and 

public as it contains exempt information relating to the business or financial affairs of 
any particular person (including the Authority holding that information). 
 

22. HORNSEY DEPOT    
 
 (Report of the Acting Director of Finance – To be introduced by the Executive 

Member for Finance):To report on the bid received for the Council land for a 
comprehensive development proposal by the nominated developer and seek approval 
for the terms of disposal. FAILED TO MEET DESPATCH DATE 
 

23. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 To consider any items admitted at item 2 above. 

 
 
Yuniea Semambo  
Head of Member Services  
5th Floor 
River Park House  
225 High Road  
Wood Green  
London N22 8HQ 
 

Richard Burbidge 
Executive Committees Manager 
Tel: 020-8489 2923 
Fax: 020-8489 2660 
email: richard.burbidge@haringey.gov.uk 
 
13 November 2006 

 
 



MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE 
TUESDAY, 3 OCTOBER 2006 

Councillors *Meehan (Chair), *Reith (Vice-Chair), *Amin, *Basu,*Canver, *Diakides, 
Haley, Bob Harris *Mallett and *Santry 
 

* Present  
 

Also Present: Councillors Bull and Hoban.  
 

 

MINUTE 
NO. 

 
SUBJECT/DECISION 

ACTION 
BY 

 
TEX80.   
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)  

 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Haley and Bob 
Harris. 
 

 
 

TEX81.   
 

MINUTES (Agenda Item 4)  

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the Executive held on 12 September 2006 be 
confirmed 

 

 
 
HMS 

TEX82.   
 

PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT - JULY 2006 (Report of the Chief 
Executive - Agenda Item 6) 

 

  
We noted that the highlight report covered projects for the period up to  
the end of July 2006, since which time the position in respect of a 
number of the projects had changed. 
 
Clarification was sought in respect of a number of the key highlights from 
the programme and we were advised that reserve projects had now 
been identified to which the bulk of the resources for the Tottenham High 
Road Strategy had been allocated. The delivery of the programme would 
be closely monitored to ensure the external funding would not be lost. 
 
We were also advised that while work had now been completed to model 
future performance, including the establishment of a specialist team, to 
ensure that 27 day turnaround on empty properties would be achieved 
from October onwards it was clear that the target would not be met for 
the full year. The funding of four temporary posts to reduce the backlog 
in lettings would be funding from an agreed allowance for performance 
issues.   
 
We also noted that the section of the Appendix to the report in relation to 
Council Owned Land referred to key sites only and that a further report 
would be produced on smaller sites. 
 
We were advised that with regard to the Eyesores Programme, sites had 
been identified by the Better Haringey Group, including a number owned 
by Network Rail.  While Members could still nominate sites for 
consideration the resources available would probably not be sufficient to 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4Page 1



MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE 
TUESDAY, 3 OCTOBER 2006 

 

fully address the existing list.   
 
We were advised that a Customer Satisfaction Surveys of Leisure 
Services had recently taken place which indicated that good progress 
had been made and all Leisure Centres in the Borough were now 
striving to meet ‘Quest’ the Industry Quality Standard.   
 
With regard to prudential borrowing, the Director of Finance advised that 
this needed to pay for itself and that targets had been set accordingly 
which were being met. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1) That the Programme Highlight report for all the Council’s 
corporately significant projects, covering the period of up to end of 
July 2006, be noted. 

 
2) That future Programme Highlight reports provide an update 

paragraph as well as the data on projects as at the end of the 
monitoring period. 

 
3) That Executive Members ensure that they received regular 

updates from Directors and that audit trails were established in 
respect of all the Council’s corporately significant projects. 

 
4) That the next Programme Highlight report include an update on 

derelict and under used sites in Council ownership. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CE 
 
 
 
All to 
note 
 
 
DF 

TEX83.   
 

THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE - JULY 2006 (Joint Report of the 
Chief Executive and the Director of Finance - Agenda Item 7) 

 

  
Concern was expressed about the projected £4.6 million deficit set out in 
the report and clarification was sought of the extent to which 
overspendings in Social Services budgets were due to reductions in 
services in the Health Sector and what action was being taken to 
address these overspendings. Clarification was also sought of the 
position with regard to the Children’s Service revenue budget. 
 
We noted that it was inevitable that a proportion of the population who 
would have been supported in the Health sector would need to access 
social care services for support and that the Primary Care Trust’s 
strategic plans to achieve further efficiencies in the current financial year 
would have further knock on effects for Social Services. Meetings had 
taken place between the Executive Member for Finance and the 
Executive Member for Social Services and Health and management 
action was being taken to try to ensure that these pressures did not 
result in anyu additional overspend.  
 
We also noted that the Children’s Service revenue budget was forecast 
to overspend by £2.3 million which was mainly due to a projected 
increase in asylum seekers costs. The Executive Member for Finance 
was proposing to meet with the Executive Member for Children and 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2



MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE 
TUESDAY, 3 OCTOBER 2006 

 

Young Peoples’ Services to discuss this projected overspend as well as 
others in the Children’s Service.  In the meantime, a special grant 
submission would be made for 2006/07 which if successful would reduce 
the shortfall in asylum seeker costs. 
 
RESOLVED 
 

1) That the report be noted. 
 

2) That the virements as set out in Section of the report be 13 
agreed.   

 
3) That the next Performance Report include details of the progress 

made in addressing the projected overspends in the revenue 
budget including those in Social Services and the Children and 
Young Peoples’ Service. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DF 
 
 
CE/DF
/DSS/
DCS 
 
 

TEX84.   
 

HORNSEY TOWN HALL ((Report of the Acting Director of Finance - 
Agenda Item 8) 

 

  
We noted  that the Hornsey Town Hall Community Partnership Board 
had met regularly to consider options for the future use and development 
of the site and was working with officers towards the production of a 
commercial development brief to enable the site to be marketed to 
secure a development partner to deliver a range of community, 
commercial and cultural uses and activities on the site. We also noted 
that a decision in principal was now needed to agree the objectives for 
development and a timetable for taking this project to the market to find 
out if a suitable development partner could be identified to realise this 
proposal into a financially viable scheme. 
 
In agreeing the report we emphasised that the Council would not be 
committing itself to fund Phase 3 of the proposals which would be the 
responsibility of the proposed Trust.  We also indicated that we would 
wish officers to further explore the option to relocate the existing 
Customer Service Centre to within the refurbished Town Hall with the 
Service making a contribution to the maintenance and upkeep of the 
building. In noting that a further report was to be made on a preferred 
development partner and future operational management arrangements 
we asked that it include an indication of when Phase 3 would be 
implemented.      
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1) That approval be granted to Phases 1 and 2 of the development 
as outlined in the interleaved report proceeding with the 
implementation of the final Phase being subject to available 
funding in the future the responsibility for which Phase 3 would fall 
to be met solely by the Trust. 

 
2) That approval be granted to the future management of the 

Hornsey Town Hall facilities be transferred to an independent 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DF 
 
 
 
 
 
DF 
 

Page 3



MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE 
TUESDAY, 3 OCTOBER 2006 

 

Charitable Trust. 
 

3) That the model development brief attached as an appendix to the 
interleaved report be approved, based on the proposals contained 
in the report, and that a marketing brief in partnership with the 
Community Partnership Board be agreed in order to take the 
project to the market and secure a development partner. 

 
4) That the Community Partnership Board agreement to form a 

Company Limited by Guarantee and Registered Charity (“Trust”) 
be noted as the next step in the formation of a Trust, for the future 
management and fund raising for Hornsey Town Hall. 

 
5) That a further report be received in February 2007 for a preferred 

development partner and future operational management 
arrangements of the Town Hall Facilities, with an update on 
timelines and  implications for the transfer of staff to 
accommodation in Wood Green. 

 

 
 
DF 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DF 
 
 
 
 
 

TEX85.   
 

THE DIGITAL DIVIDE (Report of the Assistant Chief Executive (Access) 
- Agenda Item 9) 

 

  
Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report 
was late because of the need to complete necessary consultations. The 
report was too urgent to await the next meeting because it was important 
that work on the Strategy was commenced as soon as possible. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That the guidance on the development of a Digital Divide 
Strategy, encompassing all relevant stakeholders be approved 
with the final strategy to be reported back to a future meeting of 
the Executive. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACE-A 

TEX86.   
 

SUPPORTING PEOPLE FIVE YEAR STRATGEY PROGRESS, 
ANNUAL PLAN, SERVICE REVIEWS, ALLOCATIONS AND 
GOVERNMENT CONSULTATION (Report of the Director of Social 
Services - Agenda Item 10) 

 

  
We noted that the Review had found that specific support for domestic 
violence was not provided with a reliance on offering more general 
support. We also noted that while work was planned with regard to the 
need of survivors of domestic violence as the Strategy had identified 
service deficiencies for certain groups including survivors with large 
families concern was expressed that this work would have to be carried 
out with minimal funding.   
 
In response to a question we were advised that despite the 2% grant 
reduction detailed in paragraph 8.2 of the report the budget for 2007/08 
was currently balanced and it was hoped the position would improve as 
it was possible that there would be more funding than originally 
expected.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 4



MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE 
TUESDAY, 3 OCTOBER 2006 

 

 
We were informed that as an outcome of this programme, a re-
assessment of all services would be undertaken over the next year, 
looking at Performance Indicators, monitoring any poor performance and 
setting action plan and highlighting good and excellent practice. In 
response to a further question we were also informed that the proposed 
Supporting People Partnership Board would have to be an officer body 
which reported to the Executive and we asked that officers bring forward 
proposals for the establishment of a Member level body to monitor 
Supporting People spending allocations.  
 
We noted the significant improvements in performance achieved by 
Haringey’s Supporting People programme in 2005/06 which meant that 
more vulnerable people were successfully being supported by the 
Council with its partners to maintain their independence and we asked 
that our thanks be placed on record to the staff involved in delivering the 
Strategy. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the progress made and key issues as set out in the 
report be noted. 

 
2. That approval be granted to the 2006/7 Supporting People 

Annual Plan. 
 

3. That the completion of the Supporting People Service 
Reviews be noted. 

 
4. That agreement to the revised Memorandum of 

Understanding governing Haringey’s Supporting People 
Programme between the Council, London Probation and 
Haringey NHS Teaching Primary Care Trust be noted. 

 
5. That the change of name from the Supporting People 

Commissioning Body to the Supporting People Partnership 
Board be noted.  

 
6. That a further report be made with proposals for increased 

Member involvement on the Supporting People allocations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DSS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CE 

TEX87.   
 

TOTTENHAM HALE CPZ EXTENSION AND STONELEIGH ROAD 
PAY AND DISPLAY SCHEME - REPORT OF STATUTORY 
CONSULTATION (Agenda Item 11) 

 

  
This item was withdrawn. 
 

 
 

TEX88.   
 

URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH THE LEADER 
OR EXECUTIVE MEMBERS (Report of the Chief Executive - Agenda 
Item 12) 

 

  
RESOLVED: 

 
 

Page 5



MINUTES OF THE EXECUTIVE 
TUESDAY, 3 OCTOBER 2006 

 

 
That the report be noted and any necessary action approved. 

 
TEX89.   
 

DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS (Report of the 
Chief Executive - Agenda Item 13) 

 

  
RESOLVED:  
 

That the report be noted and any necessary action approved. 
 

 
 

TEX90.   
 

MINUTES OF SUB-BODIES (Agenda Item 14)  

 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the Executive Member signing on 15 
September 2006 be noted and any necessary approved.  

 

 
 

TEX91.   
 

NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS – RESIGNATION OF ANNE 
BRISTOW, DIRECTOR OF SOCIAL SERVICES (Agenda Item 15) 

 

  
We noted that Anne Bristow, Director of Social Services would shortly be 
leaving the Council to take up a post with Barking and Dagenham 
Council. We asked that our thanks be placed on record for the services 
she had provided over the past six years as well as our best wishes to 
her in her new position. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
GEORGE MEEHAN 
Chair 
 
 

Page 6



 

Executive20061121AgendaItem07ProgrammeHighlightReportSeptember0.
doc 

1

      Agenda 
item:  

CEMB           On 24th October 
For The Executive        On 21st November 

 

Report Title: Programme Highlight Report September 2006 
 

 
Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference] 
  

Report of: The Chief Executive 
 

 
Wards(s) affected: All 
 

Report for: Non-Key Decision 

1. Purpose  
 
1.1 To provide highlight reports for all the Council’s corporately significant projects, 

covering the period up to the end of September 2006. 
 

2. Introduction by Executive Member  
 
2.1 Following the Audit Commission review of project management, members expressed 

concern about the need to strengthen programme and project management 
processes.   

 
2.2 The Council’s response to the Audit Commission recommendations was presented to 

the Executive on 21 February.  One of the key actions agreed by members was that 
the programme highlight report, which contains progress reports and management 
summaries of key Council projects, should be reported to the Executive each month. 

 
2.3 Accordingly, this report sets out the highlight report for projects that report to the 

programme up to the end of September 2006.  The detailed programme report is 
shown in appendix 1, with the main highlights shown in the covering report on an 
exception basis.   

 

3. Recommendations 
 
3.1 To note the report. 
 

 
Report Authorised by: Dr Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive 
 

 
Contact Officer:  Lauren Watson, Improvement and Performance 
   Tel: 020 8489 2514 

Agenda Item 7Page 7



 

Executive20061121AgendaItem07ProgrammeHighlightReportSeptember0.
doc 

2

 
   Katy Johnson, Improvement and Performance 
   Tel: 020 8489 4282 

4. Director of Finance Comments 
 
4.1 The Director of Finance has been consulted on this report and comments are as 

follows: 
  

• Primary Schools – Due to concerns about the current programme and finances, 
Primary Schools Capital Projects will be the subject of a separate report to 
CEMB on 31st October and Executive in November advising on a revised three-
year capital programme for the Children’s Service.   

• Children’s Centres – further work is required to ensure the detailed spending 
plan for delivery of the new centres can be funded within the budget available 
and in the year the funding is available; 

• Procurement – this project has a target of £2m of savings, equally split over 
2005/06 and 2006/07.  Only £1.2m has been identified with projects 
implemented, so there will be a shortfall of £0.8m against the target in 2006/07.  
This has been reported to the Executive within the budget monitoring report.   

 

5. Head of Legal Services Comments 
 
5.1 There are no specific legal implications to comment on in this report.   
 

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
6.1 Report to Executive on 21 February: Programme and Project Management – 

Response to the Audit Commission Review of Project Management. 
 
6.2 Detailed project highlight reports. 
 

 
7. Strategic Implications 
 
7.1 The programme is the vehicle for the Council to deliver corporately 

significant projects and projects that are key political priorities.  It 
underpins the Council’s corporate planning process, ensuring that the 
projects we undertake reflect and help to deliver Community Strategy 
and corporate priorities.   

 
7.2 This report provides an opportunity to monitor, challenge and support 

the Council’s key projects to ensure that they finish on time, to budget 
and deliver the outcomes for the community. 

 
8. Financial Implications 
 
8.1 A key driver in developing the programme structure has been to 

improve financial oversight of the Council’s key corporate projects.  
Accordingly, projects are required to report detailed financial 

Page 8



 

Executive20061121AgendaItem07ProgrammeHighlightReportSeptember0.
doc 

3

information in their project highlight reports each month and a budget 
summary for each project is shown in Appendix 1 ‘Programme Highlight 
Report’. 

 
8.2 Key areas of financial concern this month are reported in the Director of 

Finance comments. 
 
9. Legal Implications 
 
9.1 There are no legal implications 
 
10. Equalities Implications  
 
10.1 This report deals with the way that we manage projects many of which 

have an impact on different sections of our community.  Improved 
management of these projects will therefore improve the services we 
provide to all sections of our community. 

 
10.2 Specifically, the Business Intelligence project aims, amongst other 

areas, to capture information on equalities through robust contract 
monitoring. 

 
10.3 The Equal Pay Review is a crucial element towards the Council 

achieving levels 3 and 4 of the Equalities Standard for Local 
Government by March 2007. 

 
11. Background 
 

11.1 The programme highlight shown in Appendix 1 provides details of all 
the Council’s corporately significant internal and external projects that 
report through the Council’s programme structure.  The information in 
the report is taken from detailed project highlight reports for each 
project that have been agreed by the respective Project Boards.  Due 
to the reporting cycle, there is a time lag in the information presented 
and this report shows projects’ status at 31 September 2006.  

 
11.2 For each project, there is a management summary that sets out 

progress over the reporting period.  A traffic lights system, like the one 
used in the Finance and Performance report, shows the project status 
against key indicators, including: 

 

• Overall Status 

• Status last month 

• Timescales 

• Budget 

• Resources 

• Issues 

• Risks 
 

11.3 The traffic light annotation is used as follows:  

Page 9



 

Executive20061121AgendaItem07ProgrammeHighlightReportSeptember0.
doc 

4

 

• Green Status: Project progressing to plan and scheduled to deliver 
on, or ahead of, time.  All risks and issues under control and none 
outstanding requiring Executive/Senior Management attention.  
Committed costs on track and within sanctioned budget 

• Amber status: Project is progressing but subject to small delays.  
Issues outstanding which could pose significant threat to the 
Project. There may be a budget variance but it is less than 
£25,000.  

• Red status: Project progress is well off track and implementation 
date will be delayed. There are major issues/risks which pose 
immediate threat to the project.  The project has stalled because 
of lack of project resources and / or there is a budget variance in 
excess of £25,000.   

 
12. Exception Report 
 
12.1 In addition to the management summaries provided for each project in 

appendix 1, key highlights from the programme are shown below on 
an exception basis. 

 
12.2 Regeneration Stream Board 
 
12.3.1 There are no exception reports for the Regeneration Stream Board.  
 
 
12.4 Children and Young People Stream Board 
 
12.4.1 Building Schools for the Future 
 
12.4.2 The total project budget for the BSF programme has been updated 

since this highlight report was produced for the September period.  
The project budget has been increased to £178.7m due to 
adjustments for abnormal site preparation costs, inflation, fees relating 
to the PFI partner’s participation and possible enhancements to the 
Pupil Referral Unit provision.   

 
12.4.3 Primary Schools Capital Projects 
 
12.4.4 The Primary Schools Capital programme has been re-phased to 

respond to changes and unforeseen variations in the buildings works.  
Re-phasing the programme means that construction timescales will 
increase and expenditure will be delayed.  As a result, the projects are 
expected to underspend in the current financial year but the overall 
programme may cost more.  

 
12.4.5 To resolve these concerns the Primary Schools Capital Projects will 

be subject to a separate report to the Executive in November advising 
on a revised five-year capital programme for the Children’s Service.   

 

Page 10



 

Executive20061121AgendaItem07ProgrammeHighlightReportSeptember0.
doc 

5

12.4.6 Coldfall Expansion: There is a projected increase in project 
expenditure for client authorised variation, deferred works, additional 
design costs, presently unauthorised and unforeseen variations.  A 
£500,000 overspend is anticipated across the life of the project.  This 
overspend will be subject to the approval of the proposed five-year 
capital programme by the Executive in November.  

 
12.4.7 Coleridge: The project will cost £800,000 more than the estimates 

upon which the current budget was based.  This additional 
expenditure will be subject to the approval of the proposed five-year 
capital programme by the Executive in November.  

 
12.4.8 Tetherdown: Phase I works are approximately £150,000 above pre-

tender estimate. The Phase II works have not yet been designed but 
will need to reduce in scale to stay within overall budget. 

 
12.4.9 Broadwater Farm Primary: The Broadwater Farm project has been 

delayed by the decision to phase both Targeted Capital Fund projects 
with the secondary scheme at White Hart Lane.  The White Hart Lane 
scheme has been now subsumed into the Building Schools for the 
Future plan for the whole White Hart Lane campus.   

 
12.4.10 Match funding of £1.48m is required from the Council to the approved 

Targeted Capital Fund (TCF) grant of £5m.  This will be subject to the 
approval of the proposed five-year capital programme by the 
Executive in November. 

 
12.4.11 Crowlands: Professional fees totalling £125,000 have been covered 

by the insurers.  This sum was attributed for the costs of existing staff.   
 
12.4.12 Children’s Centres 
 
12.4.13 Budget and risks are showing red status this month owing to two 

concerns.  It is too early in the development to know if the allocated 
funding of £4.5m is sufficient.  It is likely most of the new centres will 
be refurbishment of surplus space so will be less expensive than new 
build, however this assumption needs to be tested.   

 
12.4.14 Some phase II funding has had to be allocated to complete the phase 

I centres which will impact on available spend for phase II – we wait 
final out-turns on each capital project.  

 
12.4.15 Throughout the country local authorities are joining together to 

express their concerns that phase II funding is insufficient and that the 
uplift for London local authorities will not meet the higher costs.  We 
await the response from the Sure Start Unit. 

 
12.4.16 The main risk is whether there is sufficient capital to develop all 8 new 

centres. The Children’s Centres have to develop a wide range of 
services across broad areas, which require flexible accommodation.  

Page 11



 

Executive20061121AgendaItem07ProgrammeHighlightReportSeptember0.
doc 

6

We are awaiting the response from the Sure Start Unit to issues 
raised around affordability.  We await the outcome of the current 
round of visits to interested organisations. 

 
12.4.17 In addition, we are aware that there may develop issues around 

revenue funding for particular centres and will be working with all 
centres to closely monitor the situation. 

 
 
 
12.4.18 Youth Centre Improvement Project 
 
12.4.19 The JAR inspection in June 2006 included an Extended Youth 

Inspection.  The final report was published on 10 October 2006.  The 
inspection requires a Post Inspection Action Plan (PIAP) to be 
prepared to address the areas identified for improvement / 
development.  It is therefore proposed that PIAP should be monitored 
through the Project Highlight Report.  Progress with the PIAP will 
therefore be the main agenda item from the next meeting. 

 
12.5 Better Haringey Stream Board 
 
12.5.1 There are no exception reports for the Better Haringey Stream Board. 
 
12.6 Well Being Stream Board 
 
12.6.1 Community Care Strategy – The Red House 
 
12.6.2 The refurbishment was substantively completed on the 22nd 

September and residents were returned to occupation the following 
week.  However, a practical completion certificate has still to be 
issued because the definitive list of incomplete items is currently being 
worked through.   

 
12.7 Housing Stream Board 
 
12.7.1 Repairs Procurement 
 
12.7.2 The revised project plan has been agreed and the project timescales 

have returned to green.  
 
12.7.3 Empty Property 
 
12.7.4 For the month of September, there has been significant progress on 

reducing the monthly turnaround figure, reducing the total number of 
current voids to the lowest figure for this financial year and on 
increasing the percentage of voids being repaired and let within the 27 
day target to the highest figure for this financial year.  

 

Page 12



 

Executive20061121AgendaItem07ProgrammeHighlightReportSeptember0.
doc 

7

12.7.5 Progress has been made on reducing the backlog of voids held within 
the Voids Repair Team and this reduction will allow the team to 
concentrate on turning around new voids more quickly. 

 
12.7.6 The Lettings Team have also made progress on increasing the 

monthly acceptance rate to the highest figure for four months and in 
maintaining the number of successful lets to the high level achieved in 
August – these improvements are predominately due to offers being 
validated more effectively as well as last month’s introduction of 
accompanied viewings.  

 
12.7.7 Work has been completed this month to project the monthly and year 

to date turnaround performance taking into account the current voids 
held and the anticipated number of new voids from October 06 to 
March 07 inclusive.  From this, the year to date turnaround 
performance which currently stands at 63.61 days is projected to fall 
to 45 days by the end of March 07. 

 
12.7.8 Lettings and Allocations 
 
12.7.9 The start date for the electronic Re-Registration exercise projected to 

begin on 21st August 2006 was delayed but commenced on 30th 
August 2006.   All forms were dispatched and the formal date for 
return has passed. There have been approximately 11,000 returns to 
date.   

 
12.7.10 The impact of the Re-Registration delay means that the Home 

Connections go-live date is pushed back to the end of November.  
Every effort is being made to achieve this date.   

 
12.7.11 A number of intervention measures have been agreed to minimise 

any delay. These intervention measures include the appointment of 
additional expert staff on a temporary basis and steps to reduce the 
day-to-day management workload of key staff involved in the project. 
An action plan outlining these measures has been prepared.  

 
12.8 People Stream Board  
 
12.8.1 IiP Project 
 
12.8.2 Given the excellent results from the staff survey, it has been agreed 

that we should reschedule the re-recognition process to October 
2007.  The implementation plan is however still a priority and is 
progressing.  The new timescales will enable the Council to learn 
more from the process and provide the opportunity to embed and then 
assess the effectiveness of the new competency framework, 
performance appraisal and other initiatives to improve management 
effectiveness.   

 
12.9 Value for Money Stream Board 

Page 13



 

Executive20061121AgendaItem07ProgrammeHighlightReportSeptember0.
doc 

8

 
12.9.1 Procurement Programme 
 
12.9.2 There are ongoing concerns about achieving the £2m savings target.  

A paper was presented to CEMB at the beginning of October setting 
out options to deal with the current issues.  A further paper was 
presented to CEMB on the 31st October.   

 
12.9.3 The Agency Resource Centre is now in place.  There have been initial 

difficulties with the submission of invoices to the Council and we are 
reviewing the management information reports on agency staff 
commitments to assess whether the savings are on target.  There 
may be a slight shortfall as the contract didn’t start until the latter part 
of May.   

 
12.9.4 The remaining £1 million should be addressed through new projects.   

These are: Transport Services, Marketing & Communications and 
Training Consultants.  There is a pressure to conduct these reviews 
quickly so that any new arrangements can be implemented in this 
financial year to accrue the potential savings.   

 
12.9.5 However, there are significant concerns over ownership of individual 

projects that have been identified to deliver efficiency savings.  This is 
having an adverse effect on the ability of the Procurement Programme 
to deliver its savings targets. The need for delivery of individual 
projects has been reinforced through Management Board.   

 
12.9.6 All current projects are not due to deliver until the last quarter of 2006-

07 or the first quarter of 2007-08.  Given that these projects are at the 
project initiation stage, the £1 million savings target for 2006/7 is at 
risk.  New areas for efficiencies need to be examined by Directors and 
the results will be passed to Procurement Project Board and Value for 
Money Stream Board.   

 
12.9.7 Transactional Efficiency Project 
 
12.9.8 Following technical difficulties, the Business Intelligence system is 

now live.  This required a complete rebuild of the server and the 
reports are currently being tested to ensure they meet the original 
specification.   

 
12.10 Customer Focus Stream Board 
 
12.10.1 Customer Services Strategy 
 
12.10.2 Parking Permits are available in the Customer Service Centres 

(CSCs) however printer configuration issues mean that 2hr Visitor 
parking vouchers cannot be printed.  Civica is unable to make the 
necessary configuration changes.  Implementation of the Civica 
Radius solution has been put on hold to be revisited in 2008.  An 

Page 14



 

Executive20061121AgendaItem07ProgrammeHighlightReportSeptember0.
doc 

9

Exception Report will be presented to the Customer Focus Stream 
Board in October. 

 
12.10.3 The swipe card readers to enable ‘customer present’ e-payments in 

CSCs were unsuccessfully tested on thin client machines.  Central IT 
has investigated this issue and an Exception Report will be presented 
to the Customer Focus Stream Board in October.   

 
13.  Use of Appendices  
 

13.1 Appendix 1: Programme Highlight Report 

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Page 1 of 69 1 

 
 
 
 

PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT 
 
 
 

FOR THE PERIOD SEPTEMBER 2006 

 
 
 

Prepared by  
 

Corporate PMO 
 

 

Version 0.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 17



 

Page 2 of 69 2 

CONTENTS 
 

SECTION 1 – REGENERATION STREAM BOARD ..............................................................................3 

(1) HARINGEY   HEARTLANDS ................................................................................................3 
(2) TOTTENHAM HALE  URBAN CENTRE...............................................................................5 
(3) WOOD GREEN TOWN.........................................................................................................6 
CENTRE .............................................................................................................................................6 
4) TOTTENHAM HIGH  ROAD STRATEGY.............................................................................8 
IMPLEMENTATION............................................................................................................................8 
(5) GROWTH AREA &  COMMUNITY  INFRASTRUCTURE  FUNDS (GAF/CIF)..................10 
(6) COUNCIL OWNED  LAND..................................................................................................14 
(6) WARDS CORNER ..............................................................................................................16 

SECTION 2 – CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE STREAM BOARD ................................................18 

(1)  BUILDING  SCHOOLS  FOR THE FUTURE......................................................................18 
(2)  PRIMARY  SCHOOLS CAPITAL  PROJECTS...................................................................20 
(3)  CHILDREN’S  NETWORKS................................................................................................24 
(4)  YOUTH SERVICE  IMPROVEMENT PROJECT................................................................28 

SECTION 3 – WELL BEING STREAM BOARD ...................................................................................30 

(1)  E-CARE...............................................................................................................................30 
(2) COMMUNITY CARE STRATEGY IMPLEMENTATION......................................................32 

SECTION 4 – BETTER HARINGEY STREAM BOARD .......................................................................33 

(1)  BETTER HARINGEY ESTATES IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMME....................................33 
(2)  COMMUNICATIONS  & EVENTS.......................................................................................34 
(3)  ENVIRONMENTAL CLEANLINESS & ENFORCEMENT...................................................36 
(4)  IMPROVING GREEN  & OPEN SPACES ..........................................................................38 
(5)  SUSTAINABILITY ...............................................................................................................41 

SECTION 5 – HOUSING STREAM BOARD ........................................................................................43 

(1)  REPAIRS  PROCUREMENT ..............................................................................................43 
(2)  ADAPTATIONS   PROJECT...............................................................................................44 
(3) EMPTY PROPERTY PROJECT .........................................................................................46 
(4)  HOMELESSNESS  AND HOUSING  OPTIONS  PROJECT..............................................48 
(5) LETTINGS AND ALLOCATIONS PROJECT......................................................................49 

SECTION 6 – PEOPLE STREAM BOARD...........................................................................................50 

(1)  EQUAL PAY  REVIEW........................................................................................................50 
(2)  INVESTORS IN  PEOPLE ..................................................................................................52 
(3)  CORPORATE  HEALTH & SAFETY  ACTION PLAN ........................................................53 

SECTION 7 – VALUE FOR MONEY STREAM BOARD ......................................................................55 

(1)  ASSETS STRATEGY..........................................................................................................55 
(2)  PROCUREMENT  PROGRAMME......................................................................................57 
(3)  USE OF RESOURCES .......................................................................................................59 
(4)  BENEFITS & LOCAL  TAXATION VFM  REVIEW .............................................................60 
(5)  TRANSACTIONAL  EFFICIENCY. .....................................................................................62 

SECTION 8 – CUSTOMER FOCUS STREAM BOARD.......................................................................65 

(1)  INSOURCING ICT ..............................................................................................................65 
(2)  CUSTOMER  SERVICES  STRATEGY..............................................................................67 
(3)  CUSTOMER  FOCUS PROJECTS.....................................................................................68 

 

Page 18



 

Page 3 of 69 3 

 
SECTION 1 – REGENERATION STREAM BOARD 

Regeneration Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES 

• To commission a masterplan for the regeneration and development of the Eastern Utility Lands. 

• To secure the land known as the “former sand sidings” for the provision of a new sixth form secondary 
school. 

• To obtain funding for a new spine road through the overall site from North to South. 

• To secure a guarantee of the decommissioning of the National Grid TRANSCO site. 

• To work with major landowners and private developers to deliver these plans.   

• To meet the output targets of up to: - 
o 1,200 new jobs 
o 1,200 new school places 
o 2,000 new homes 

(1) HARINGEY  
 HEARTLANDS 
 

LEVEL 1 PROJECT 

Original End Date: N/A as phased 
programme of work 

Current End Date: N/A as phased 
programme of work 

Project Budget: £250k (£150k last 
month) 

Forecast spend: £150k 
Spend to date: £27.6k 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G A G G G 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Justin Holliday 
 
Project Manager:  
Mark Lucas 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY  
 

• Direct negotiations have continued with National Grid’s M.D., Philip Kirby and the London 
Development Agency.  Agreement was reached to submit the Masterplan as an outline planning 
application rather than adopting the Masterplan as a supplementary planning document before 
proceeding to the submission of planning applications.   

• Agreement in principle has been reached that the revised masterplan and subsequent application(s) 
will be prepared by Lord Rogers of Riverside.   

• The section 38 agreement permitting the new Spine Road to be built on NG Property’s land and be 
adopted (upon completion) by the Council has been signed and sealed. 

• A revised project plan for Haringey Heartlands has been prepared. 

• We have concluded that an alternative walking route (to the grounds of Alexandra Palace/ to that 
reliant passing through the New River Underpass is more practical (on health & safety grounds) by 
using the existing railway footbridge. 

• We met with senior LDA officials (11th Sept.) to brief them on our strategy and ascertain theirs. 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 1

9



 

Page 4 of 69 4 

Regeneration Stream Board 

(1) HARINGEY  
 HEARTLANDS CONT. 

 

• The trustees of AP&P have made it clear that despite Children’s Services publicity to the contrary, the 
Trust has not and will not permit the park to be used for (school) Sports purposes and will not permit 
land leased to Alexandra FC to be assigned or sub-let to the new proposed school.  An alternative 
route will be sought within a 3mile radius.   

 
Budget:  

• £150k was cut as a corporate saving from the project budget at the beginning of the year.  This 
money has now been re-instated.  The project is now running a £100k underspend as no new 
expenditure has yet been committed.   

P
a

g
e
 2

0



 

Page 5 of 69 5 

 

Regeneration Stream Board 
PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES 
 

• To commission, prepare, consult, amend and adopt a Masterplan for Tottenham Hale Urban Centre. 

• To procure a new 21st century Interchange at Tottenham Hale Station.   

• To assemble capital and revenue funding from the public and private sector to deliver the necessary 
physical and social infrastructure. 

• To bring forward the six key sites for development which are Hale Wharf, the Greater London Supplies 
Depot (GLS), Ashley Road Depot, Station Interchange, Retail Park and High Cross Housing Estate.  

• In general, to implement the objectives of the masterplan in accordance with urban design principles 
set out in the Tottenham Hale Urban Centre Design Framework. 

(2) TOTTENHAM HALE 
 URBAN CENTRE 
 

LEVEL 1 PROJECT 

Original End Date: N/A as phased 
programme of work 

Current End Date:  N/A as phased 
programme of work 

Project Budget: N/A as budget is held, spent & monitored by the LDA 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G A G G G 

Project Sponsor:  
David Hennings 
 
Project Manager:  
Mark Lucas  

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY  
 
Progress 

 

• The London Borough of Haringey is to present the Masterplan to the Mayor (GLA).   

• Responses to the Masterplan and Sustainability Appraisal have been considered and the draft 

document amended as appropriate. The results of the public consultation and the amended 

document then reported to PASC on 30th October. 

• The Masterplan is to be presented to the Council’s Executive on 31st October 2006 for adoption as a 

Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).    

 

Budget 

• There is no budgetary provision available, but LDA are meeting most revenue costs. 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

1



 

Page 6 of 69 6 

 

Regeneration Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES 
To undertake a number of projects to improve the socio-environmental aspects and economic performance 
of Wood Green Town Centre (WGTC) in order to secure sustainability and maintain Metropolitan Town 
Centre status. Projects/activities  and objectives include: 

• To develop a Masterplan and planning brief for WGTC using existing evidence bases (e.g. draft spatial 
plan for Wood Green) with the inclusion of strategic sites such as Civic Centre, Library and Lymington 
Ave. All planning documents to be submitted as part of planning brief for UDP in September 2007. 

• To continue to provide a local business support service for SME’s situated in Wood Green through the 
Town Centre Manager and associated resources. Provision of services include advice/support and 
signposting, networking, resource management and compliance issues 

• To benchmark the services within the town centre by obtaining SLA’s (Service Level Agreements) 

• To use the results gained from the BIDs feasibility study to feed in to the WGTC strategy so as to find a 
sustainable funding mechanism for the Wood Green Town Centre Management function. 

 (3) WOOD GREEN TOWN  
 CENTRE  

Original End Date: tbd Current End Date: tbd Project Budget: tbd Forecast spend: tbd 
Spend to date: tbd 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G G G G G 

Project Sponsor:  
David Hennings 
 
Project Manager:  
Karen Galey 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY  
A draft PID is currently being drawn up to cover all aspects of the Wood Green Town Centre development. 
With the recent addition of the Civic Centre, Library, Lymington Avenue and Turnpike Lane sites to the 
project brief, it is envisaged that a final PID document will not be available until all aspects are fully scoped 
and defined. This will require extensive consultation with Council departments and stakeholders.  
 

A formal request from the council’s neighbourhoods department has been received to include a (proposed) 
physical development adjacent to Turnpike Lane Tube Station. Following a joint meeting with key 
stakeholders and partners (Transport for London, highways,) it has been agreed to provisionally include 
this development on Wood Green spatial plan as there are possible efficiency savings to be made in areas 
such as public consultation. Officers in neighbourhoods are currently in negotiation with TFL and other 
partners with regards to possible funding. 
 

Officers in Economic Regeneration, Planning and Strategic Sites have met with Urban Practitioners who 
have undertaken a significant amount of the initial research and scoping work and, produced the first 
spatial plan. It is intended that Urban Practitioners be engaged to continue this work and deliver the 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).  
 
 

P
a

g
e
 2

2



 

Page 7 of 69 7 

Regeneration Stream Board 

(3) WOOD GREEN TOWN  
CENTRE CONT. 

A draft work plan has been agreed to take forward the next stage of works. This will broadly involve: 
 

• Expansion of spatial plan area 

• Sustainability Appraisal 

• Consultation 

• SPD 
 
Officers from property services have been engaged to discuss key site developments within the spatial plan 
namely Lymmington Avenue. Extensive meetings will shortly be held to discuss the Civic Centre and its 
future development within the Wood Green context.   

P
a
g
e
 2

3



 

Page 8 of 69 8 

 

Regeneration Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES 

• Improve physical regeneration and sustainable development in Tottenham; 

• Development of high quality managed workspace and incubator space for local SME’s in Tottenham; 

• Adapt premises to provide improved and increased managed workspace; 

• Improve the Tottenham High Road town centre, Seven Sisters Road, Park Lane and Fore Street 
Edmonton by enhancing the image of the area and attracting and retaining business; 

• Reinstate the historic features and environment of core centres that had experienced decline and 
degradation 

• To support delivery of Haringey’s City Growth Strategy through providing opportunities for maximising 
the untapped potential of BME entrepreneurs through providing managed workspace and the associated 
business support.    

 

4) TOTTENHAM HIGH 
 ROAD STRATEGY 
 IMPLEMENTATION 

Original End Date:  
December 2006 – ERDF;  
2010 – HERS 

Current End Date: 
30

th
 June 2007 – ERDF; 2010 - HERS 

Project Budget: £4851.6k Forecast spend: £4851.6k 
Spend to date: £730.8k 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G G G G G 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Zena Brabazon 
 
Project Manager:  
Sean Burke 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY  
 
Timescale 
 
Government Office for London and London Development Agency have both indicated they will agree to 
Haringey’s request to extend the programme grant deadline for construction to 30th June 2007.   
 
The 3.2 Urban Centre for City Growth (UCCG) programme is now made up of 9 confirmed projects with both 
internal and external partners. Three projects are complete (Park Lane, Seven Sisters Road and the NDC 
LARC refurbishment).  Five are on target for completion by March 2007.  The Stoneleigh Road project is 
programmed to be completed by April 2007. 
 
The Workspace Board have confirmed that the company will proceed with the project within the UCCG 
programme.  
 

P
a

g
e
 2

4



 

Page 9 of 69 9 

Regeneration Stream Board 

(4) TOTTENHAM HIGH 
 ROAD STRATEGY 
 IMPLEMENTATION 
 CONT. 

Budget and Resources 
Projects are now secured to the full programme value of £5.16m.  This will ensure that the full European 
Regional Development Fund (ERDF) grant of £1.7m is utilised.  Individual UCCG and non-UCCG projects 
are expected spend in full by the end of the financial year. 
 
PROGRESS:  

• Seven-Sisters Road Shop Fronts:  Agreed final sums and commenced preparation of UCCG claim. 

 

• TGEC refurbished managed work space:  Internal refurbishment works continued.  Cash flow 
problem addressed through providing additional TGEC match to ERDF grant. 

 

• Stoneleigh Road new build Managed Workspace:  Demolition commenced on 8th August.  The 
contractor has confirmed the Agreed Maximum Price for the contract.  A report will be submitted for 
authority to enter in to the contract in October. and  

 

• Bruce Grove THI phase I shop fronts:  Work continued to secure full take up of grant on Windsor 
Parade. Heritage Lottery Fund granted permission to start works on Windsor Parade. 

 

• HERS shop fronts and façades:  Planning application submitted for 483, 487, 489 High Road. 
English Heritage agreed design changes required to 483 and 487.  Team continued to work to secure 
completion of individual grant applications.  

 

• Enfield Council Fore Street:  Contract works continued throughout September.  Some additional 
works identified and put in hand.   

 

• LARC (NDC):  NDC has completed draft funding agreement.  This confirms the refurbishment of 
180m2 of space for creative industry use (Total project cost £180K).   

 

• Workspace project on Tottenham High Road – Estimated project cost £457k.  Conversion of 
former warehouse space.  Workspace confirmed their intention to proceed at their September Board 
meeting.  They have been issued with a draft Service Level Agreement. 

 

• Rangemoor Road:  The bakery has been successfully relocated.  All units are now free for works to 
commence. The team has agreed a provisional start date of 23rd October.   

 

P
a
g
e
 2

5



 

Page 10 of 69 10

 

Regeneration Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES 

• To develop the social and physical infrastructure within Haringey to support housing growth as part of the 
Office of the Deputy Prime Minister’s (ODPM) London-Stansted- Cambridge- Peterborough Growth 
Corridor’s delivery plan.  

• To acquire SRA/ Rail Property Land for a new secondary school, (GAF2) in the Haringey Heartlands 
(Eastern Utility Lands).   

• To enable Sustainable Housing Development within the South Tottenham Area, (Markfield), (Green 
Spaces) (GAF2). 

• To relocate the Mortuary (From Western Utility Lands), (GAF2) to release land for development of 
affordable and private homes, together with local retail facilities and associated employment 
opportunities.   

• To access and enable Residential Development in Tottenham Hale International, (GLS), (GAF2).  

• To provide a new Haringey Heartlands Spine Road, (CIF1).  
 

(5) GROWTH AREA & 
 COMMUNITY 
 INFRASTRUCTURE 
 FUNDS (GAF/CIF) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
School Acquisition 

Original End Date: ongoing 
programme of work 

Current End Date: ongoing 
programme of work 

Project Budget: £6262k Forecast spend: £6262k 
Spend to date: £138k 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G G G A G 

 
Markfield 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

A G A A G G A 

 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
Purchase of Heartlands School Site.  

• Title issues are the main problem, in that included in the acquisition is a section over the New River 
that is a “flying freehold” in that the land is owned by Thames Water and all we are buying is the bridge 
over the land. 

• We have discussed with Thames Water (TW) building above this section and we would need to BUY a 
new right to construction from TW and agree the foundations, which may be at a high premium as it 
could be seen as a ransom strip for the building!  The bridge is 100 years old and will need to be 
maintained, so having discussed with consultants, we may need to remove part of the existing bridge 
and construct a building on a bridge raft above with work supervised by DEFRA and TW). 

• The solution and probably the cheapest option is to redesign the footprint of the school to avoid 
building over the TW land and use the bridge only for access/ car parking/ hard play area and 
maintaining it is its current style for a further 30-60 years before replacing 

 

P
a

g
e
 2

6



 

Page 11 of 69 11

Regeneration Stream Board 

(5) GROWTH AREA & 
 COMMUNITY 
 INFRASTRUCTURE 
 FUNDS (GAF/CIF)   
 CONT. 
 

Mortuary 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

R A R A G G R 

 
 
GLS 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
t 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s

c
a

le
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G A G G G A 

 
 Project Sponsor:  
 Andrew Travers 
 
 Project Manager:  

 Shifa Mustafa, Mark Lucas, 
 Steve Carter 

• Access under the New River, TW not very happy and their engineers’ state that the reservoirs are 
covered by DEFRA regulations, as they are purified water and it is unlikely that a pathway would be 
agreed by DEFRA. We are having a meeting. Network rail to be contacted as their bridge under the 
railway would also need to be included ( i.e. they own the land and bridge in that location and any 
walk way would need to be suspended from the bridge rather than breach the New River water seal. 

 
Markfield Recreation Ground.  

• The application to the Heritage Lottery Fund Parks for People programme has been made. 

• A funding bid to the London Marathon Charitable Trust was submitted at the end of August. This was 
for £45,000 for the improvement of the children’s playground.  

• The application for Haringey’s capital resources has been submitted. This is for £75,000 next year 
(07/08) and £350,000 in 08/09. 

• Partnership working is continuing with Thames Water to ensure that they commit to carrying out their 
catchment maintenance works in the Markfield area at the same time we desilt the Old Moselle Brook 
to ensure maximum effectiveness of the project.  

• The Environment Agency have highlighted the importance of addressing the misconnections in the 
catchment in order to prevent sewage disgorgement. This is currently identified as a low priority work 
area by Enforcement, who are responsible for dealing with misconnections. Recreation Services are 
in discussions with Enforcement to resolve this issue. Failure to resolve it is a threat to the success of 
the project.  

• Markfield Museum are working in partnership with Recreation Services and have pledged their full 
support to the project. A separate application will be made to the Heritage Lottery Fund under the 
Heritage Grants programme for repairs for the building, providing steam and making the building fit for 
purpose. An expression of interest will be submitted to the HLF in October 2006. 

• The Markfield Project (disability project in the park) have prepared a business plan for the new café 
which it is proposed, will be run as a social enterprise as part of the application to the HLF.  

 

P
a
g
e
 2

7



 

Page 12 of 69 12

Regeneration Stream Board 

(5) GROWTH AREA & 
 COMMUNITY 
 INFRASTRUCTURE 
 FUNDS (GAF/CIF)   
 CONT. 

Relocation of the Mortuary:      

• Awaiting revised funding agreement from DCLG. 

• Mortuary: Second draft plans still not acceptable to Planning.  Demolition of existing building is not 
supported by Planning. 

• Architect, planning policy & clients trying to resolve planning matter.  Full condition survey of the 
Lodge completed. 

• Coroner: Frankhams ( surveyors ) on site to determine ‘ Schedule of Repairs’ .  Any works required 
to Barnet building will be reflected in the lease negotiations. Only ‘Schedule of Repairs’ issue 
outstanding in order to draft lease. Works required to convert building to a Coroners Court are 
minimal and relate to fixtures & fittings. These are ready to start as soon as possession is obtained. 
Budget: No budget variations at this stage. Quantity surveyors work will provide more accurate 
information. 

     Timescale: There is a slippage to the project timescales in respect of the design & Planning 
 submission.  The second drawings need revision and agreement with Planning.  This will be delayed 
 to October 2006.   
 Risks: There is a risk that planning approval will be declined.  The Scheme has been amended to 
 reduce this risk.   

 
GLS Site 

• The consultants are progressing the design and working drawings, specifically for the Podium and 
vehicular / pedestrian access under Ferry Lane.  

• The planning application for the podium will be submitted in December 2006.  

• Invoices for £39,000 for professional fees and £2,700 for the CABE Enabler have been processed. It 
was programmed that £130,000 would be spent by the end of the second quarter. This was on 
professional fees and will be covered in later quarters. No physical work was programmed in the first 
two quarters.  

 
Heartlands Spine Road  

Agreements: 

• The draft Partnership legal binding agreement with National Grid to construct the road on their land has 
been signed by both parties. 

• Horizontal alignment on Phase 1 (Western Road) has identified some land transfers/acquisitions from 
the school, Parks and National Rail. 

 

P
a

g
e
 2

8



 

Page 13 of 69 13

Regeneration Stream Board 

(5) GROWTH AREA & 
 COMMUNITY 
 INFRASTRUCTURE 
 FUNDS (GAF/CIF)   
 CONT. 

• Meetings have been held with representatives of Parks and the “Guardians of the Wood Green 
Common” have given an early indication of agreement with the proposals subject to their Board’s 
approval.  This should be resolved in early October. 

• Officers are awaiting a response from Education regarding the land implications at Alexandra School.  
We have funded a consultancy study to investigate the impact of the road on the school which will 
indicate the provisions for the relocation of the buildings affected by the road.  It is hoped that this 
should be resolved by early October. 

• There has been a positive response for the land acquisition at the Chocolate Factory which has been 
received and should be finalised soon. 
Planning: 

• The interim design alignment has been finalised to take into account the existing buildings and the 
proximity of the gas rings.  The final alignment will then ease the tight S bend through the National Grid 
land. 

• The joint planning application with National Grid for the road will be submitted by 16/10/06 to meet the 
Committee approval for 27th January 07.   
Contamination: 

• Approval for access to site for Invasive Investigation has been agreed during the week beginning 18th 
September, with formal signed agreement received from National Grid on 25/09/06. 

• Topographical surveys have been completed, and topographical data received from the consultant on 
30/08/06.   

• Detailed design has commenced on Phases 1 & 3 of the project (existing carriageway), however 
detailed design on Phase 2 cannot commence until the completion of contamination testing on the 
National Grid site.   
Funding/Grant Offer:  

• Grant Offer accepted, signed and submitted to DFT.  Correspondence requesting extension to A3.34 
sent to DFT on 30/08/06 (extension agreed to 29/09/06).  Formal agreement to build a road on their 
land sent to National Grid on 26/09/06. 

 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

9



 

Page 14 of 69 14

Regeneration Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES 
• To resolve the future of key surplus, derelict or under used sites in Council ownership. 
• To secure economic, community and environmental benefits and where appropriate the long term future 

of protected historic buildings. 
• To support inward funding and investment.  

(6) COUNCIL OWNED 
 LAND 

Original End Date: N/A as phased 
programme of work 

Current End Date: N/A as phased 
programme of work 

Project Budget: £280k Forecast spend: £280k 
Spend to date: £66k 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

A A A G G G G 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Andrew Travers 
 
Project Manager:  
Dinesh Kotecha 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY  
 

Progress/Issues 
 
Tottenham Town Hall  
 

• Following presentations and interviewing of bidders a report with recommendations is now scheduled 
for the Executive on 31st October.  

 
Hornsey Town Hall  

 

• The Executive on 3rd October approved proposals in respect of a development brief and establishment 
of a managing company/trust.  This will enable marketing with recommendations on the preferred 
development partner and future management arrangements now timetabled for February 07.  
 

Hornsey Depot  
 

• Report on the development proposal, with recommendations, is scheduled to report to EAB then The 
Executive on 31st October.   

 

P
a

g
e
 3

0



 

Page 15 of 69 15

Regeneration Stream Board 

(6) COUNCIL OWNED 
 LAND CONT. 

Wards Corner and Apex House sites 

 

• Negotiations will be undertaken with the proposed developers of Wards Corner to determine the 
terms upon which the Council may be recommended to include Apex House within the scheme. 

P
a
g
e
 3

1



 

Page 16 of 69 16

 

Regeneration Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES 
 
To develop Wards Corner.  The developer is the Grainger Trust. 
 

(6) WARDS CORNER 

Original End Date: March 2009 Current End Date: April 2010 Project Budget: £TBC Forecast spend: £TBC 
Spend to date: £TBC 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

A A A A A A A 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Justin Holliday 
 
Project Manager:  
Fiona McLeod 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY  
 
Wards Corner is recognised as a gateway location within the borough, situated at the apex of Seven Sisters 
and Tottenham High Roads. For decades it has been in a dilapidated condition. The proposal is to provide a 
new landmark mixed use development scheme which will include residential and retail units alongside 
improvements to the safety and design of the Seven Sisters underground and railway stations. 
  
The proposed development at Wards Corner will compliment the Council's High Road Improvement Strategy 
and is important for the successful transformation of Tottenham High Road and its environs. The Bridge New 
Deal for Communities (NDC) initiative also places a high priority on the site’s redevelopment. Haringey 
Council and the Bridge NDC are working together to support the regeneration of this area by seeking to 
provide a quality development which will improve the living, working and leisure environment. 
 
At present there are issues which require resolution before moving to the next stage in the development 
process. Work is being undertaken to address those issues and agree a basis on which the parties can 
proceed. The current timetable for completion of this development is 2010. However, this timetable is subject 
to a number of matters, including the timely resolution of planning and CPO issues. 
 
Budget and Resources: 
 
The overall rating is Amber.  The current budget for land acquisition, set aside by the developer, including 
associated CPO costs is 13.5 million pounds. The NDC budget for the current year is £159 460.00. The total 
project budget is yet to be determined. 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 3

2



 

Page 17 of 69 17

Regeneration Stream Board 

(6) WARDS CORNER 
 CONT. 

Issues: 
 

• Achieving the land acquisition within the projected costs 

• Scheme costs 

• The basis for including Apex House 

• Planning permission and CPO consent 

• Unfavourable public/community/business response to proposals 

• An improved transport interchange 

• Parking 
 
The work required to enable Grainger Trust to achieve 65% land acquisition on the Wards Corner site is now 
well advanced. Completion of this acquisition will move Grainger Trust from a position of minority to majority 
land ownership in one step. 
 
 
Risks: 
 

• Planning: A protracted planning process resulting in significant delay  

• CPO: This is time consuming and carries inherent risks. However, the parties are taking steps to 
minimise these and have factored in the possibility that there may be a CPO inquiry 

• Rights of Light: Consultant have been instructed to identify an envelope within which a development 
can take place without any significant breach of rights of lights 

• Development costs: The mixed land ownership on the site has resulted in high land assembly costs. 
The cost of development will need to be carefully considered and thereafter tightly controlled, to avoid 
any resulting adverse impact on viability  

• Mayoral support for the scheme: The Mayors tool kit will be used to ensure that the scheme 
addresses any issues which should be considered prior to referring the development to the GLA.  

• Engineering: The site is subject to complex engineering constraints due to the configuration of the 
tunnels, booking hall and escalators. These constraints limit the size and height of the building and 
have implications on construction techniques and development costs.  

 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

3



 

Page 18 of 69 18

SECTION 2 – CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE STREAM BOARD 

Children & Young People Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 
 
The overall objective(s) for the BSF project in the London Borough of Haringey is to maximise the life 
chances of all young people, give parents choice of high quality schools where their children can learn with 
confidence and support schools to work at the heart of their communities 
 
In order to deliver the overall objectives, the implementation phase of the project has been designed to  

• Deliver a Strategic Business Case (SBC) that describes the education vision for the London Borough 
of Haringey and details how education transformation is going to be delivered; 

• Deliver an Outline Business Case (OBC) for the first and the second wave of schools to be delivered 
as part of the BSF programme; 

• Prepare the London Borough of Haringey for the procurement of delivery partners which includes 
involvement of the existing PFI provider (SMIF) to 8 of the Borough’s secondary schools.  

• Implement delivery of the BSF programme which includes building works to all secondary schools in 
the borough, as well as delivery of a new school.  

• A major part of the programme in delivering a managed ICT service to all schools in the borough, 
which includes spending in excess of £20 million on this new service.  

(1)  BUILDING 
 SCHOOLS 
 FOR THE FUTURE 
 

LEVEL 1 PROJECT  

Original End Date: 2011 
End date last month: 2011 

Current End Date: 2011 Original Budget 2006/7: £34,007m 
Revised budget 2006/7: £22,757m 
(Total project budget to 2010/11: £177m)  

Spend to date: £7.679m 
Forecast spend: £22,757m 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

A A A A G A A 

 

Project Sponsor:  
Andrew Travers  
 
Project Manager: 
Gordon Smith 

 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
Progress 

• OBC has now been submitted to PfS, with approval expected end of November. PfS comments are 
being dealt with by return. 

• Discussions with SMIF have concluded and resulted in a protocol agreement which have been 
included in the OBC. A legal agreement is targeted for completion 15th December 

• The project is progressing into the delivery phase and resources are being organised accordingly. The 
JPMT and subgroups are established and are meeting regularly. The remit of the subgroups is being 
reviewed for the delivery phase. Programmes for involvement of LBH IT and Procurement are being 
agreed 

 

P
a

g
e
 3

4



 

Page 19 of 69 19

Children & Young People Stream Board 

(1) BUILDING 
 SCHOOLS FOR THE 
 FUTURE CONT. 

• An OJEU for construction partners has been produced due for publication at the time of this report. 
This has been developed in discussion with PfS. An OJEU for ICT MSP is being prepared 

• Solicitors progressing resolution of interface issues and have undertaken to integrate new works with 
existing PFI contract 

• Purchase of new site at Heartlands is progressing, with completion aimed for end of November 

• There have been debates on ICT procurement , particularly with regard to competitive dialogue or 
negotiated OJEU procedures. Resolution is expected in the next week 

• The implementation of the Communications Strategy is on-going.  

• Construction works for the new 6th Form remains on programme 

• Tenders have been received from designers and evaluation is now in hand, the intention to appoint by 
end of year. 3 tenders rejected due to late delivery 

• Insurance issues are being considered as part of the implementation protocol to be finalised by SMIF. 
Separate work streams will report to JPMT^ are being established, as well as a Programme Support 
Office. These work streams will comprise Construction, Transformation and ICT. 

 
Budget 

• The total budget for the project is £167m (excluding a further £10m for the 6th Form Centre). This 
remains on target. Detailed cash-flow projections will be provided once the overall project programme 
is confirmed. Projected year on year budgets have been established. Further abnormal sums are to 
be confirmed by PfS, however a contribution by LBH will be required to secure funds 

• As the OBC has not yet been agreed, the major funding source for the construction works has not 
been confirmed so the Council will not incur such costs until funding is formally approved.   

 
Timescale 

• An updated programme has been produced for inclusion in the OBC. To be validated at a workshop 
on 18th October. 

 
Issues and Risks: 

• The Amber status for issues and risks highlights the key risk in agreeing the procurement process with 
SMIF and obtaining approval to the OBC. 

• Risk register has been updated and is included in the OBC. 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

5



 

Page 20 of 69 20

 

Children & Young People Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 
 

• To deliver primary school expansion and new pupil places at: 
o Coldfall - expansion of primary school from 2 to 3 forms of entry 
o Tetherdown (Phase I – to increase pupil places from 210 to 420 by 2012-13) 
o Coleridge 

• Tetherdown Phase II: To modernisation the school in accordance with asset management plan 
priorities 

• Broadwater Farm TCF: Inclusion 
 

(2)  PRIMARY 
 SCHOOLS CAPITAL 
 PROJECTS 
 

LEVEL 1 PROJECT  
 

 

Original End Date: Various dates 
against the programme of projects 

Current end date: Various dates 
against the programme of projects 

Project Budget 06/07: £7.450m 
Revised budget 06/07: £6.9m 

Spend to date: £1.395m 
Forecast spend: £6.891m 

 
 
Coldfall 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

R R G R G A A 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Anne Bristow 
 
Project Manager: 
Brendan Wells 
 
 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
Overall programme 

• The Primary Schools Capital Projects will be subject to a separate report to the Executive in November 
advising on a revised five-year capital programme for the Children’s Service.  This will reflect increased 
costs and re-phasing on these projects. 

 
Coldfall Expansion 
• Project is proceeding to planned timescales 
• The construction works are approximately 97% complete 
 
Budget  
• There is a projected increase in project expenditure for client authorised variation, deferred works, 

additional design costs, presently unauthorised and unforeseen variations.  The construction cost 
increase was reported by the project cost consultant to the project core group on 25th July 2006.  The 
total estimated value of these projected variances (including additional design costs) is £491,000.  These 
revised costs will be included in the report to Executive in November. 

• The revised budget profile does not reflect the recent authorised budget increase of £95K for 
reception/entrance works. 

P
a

g
e
 3

6



 

Page 21 of 69 21

 

Children & Young People Stream Board 

(2)  PRIMARY 
 SCHOOLS CAPITAL 
 PROJECTS CONT. 
 
Tetherdown  

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

R G A R G A R 

Coleridge 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

R A A R G R R 

 

Tetherdown  
Status / Budget / Risks:   
• The project will cost £500k more than the estimates upon which the current budget was based.  This 

additional expenditure  will be subject to the approval of the proposed five-year capital programme by the 
Executive in November.  

Progress 
• The overall project is in delay against original programme. This has led to a change to admission 

arrangements in September 2007. 
• The rest of this report focuses on the construction project.  
• The main contractor (Durkan) took possession of the site on 30 May 2006. The contract is due for 

completion on 2 October 2007 (70 weeks). 
• The contractor is progressing the works and is on programme, with no delays reported 
• The concrete foundations have been completed. 
• Columns at lower ground floor have been constructed. 
• First floor slabs are being constructed. 
• Drainage has been installed with pipework evident in the areas completed to date. 
• Services ducts have been installed across existing playground 
• No adverse reports received from school, neighbours or the public 
 
Coleridge  
• The project is currently at Stage C which means that a detailed design and cost report for the proposed 

development has been completed.  This report needs to be signed off by the Council and school. 
• The Stage C report is based on the original planning decision which did not support complete demolition 

because the building is in a conservation area and required that the Victorian house be retained.  This 
scale of adaptation has increased costs – see the budget issue highlighted below. 

• Stage D design is progressing and this will enable the Council to apply for planning application.  The 
Council is aiming to make a Planning Application on 14 November 2006. 

• The planning application will include a significant amount of survey and recommendations on all aspects 
of the proposals. Consultation will increase up to 14 November 2006, and continue during the planning 
period (8 -10 weeks). Evidence of the additional consultation will be provided to the Planning Officer. 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

7



 

Page 22 of 69 22

Children & Young People Stream Board 

(2)  PRIMARY 
 SCHOOLS CAPITAL 
 PROJECTS CONT. 
 
 
Broadwater 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

R R R R G A R 

 

• Need to review impact of: 
o Transport Assessment, impact, recommended actions, and consultation 
o Form of procurement (New Haringey Framework with mini competition) and impact on programme. 

The programme has been amended to reflect 2 stage design and build so that the consultation with 
the contractor can commence earlier. 

o Planning Application and Conservation Area requirements 
 
Status / Budget / Risks:   
• The project will cost £800k more than the estimates upon which the current budget was based.  This 

overspend will be subject to the approval of the proposed five-year capital programme by the Executive 
in November. 

 
Broadwater Farm 
 

• A funding plan for this project has now been developed and stakeholders have been consulted.  The 
RAG status in this report reflects the previous plan.  Subject to agreement at 31 October Executive, 
statutory consultation will start in January and the project will be re-programmed accordingly. 

 
Timescale / Risk 

• The Broadwater Farm project was delayed by the decision to phase both Targeted Capital Fund projects 
with the secondary scheme at White Hart Lane.  The White Hart Lane scheme has been now subsumed 
into the Building Schools for the Future plan for the whole White Hart Lane campus.   

 
Budget:  

• There is a £1.48m shortfall.  Unless the Council agrees match funding to the approved Targeted Capital 
Fund (TCF) grant of £5m the project is in jeopardy.  This will be subject to the approval of the proposed 
five-year capital programme by the Executive in November. 

• The programme is under review regarding contract options, EU requirements, consultation and Haringey 
procurement approval process. 

P
a

g
e
 3

8



 

Page 23 of 69 23

Children & Young People Stream Board 

(2)  PRIMARY 
SCHOOLS CAPITAL 
PROJECTS CONT. 
 

Crowlands: Insurance 
reinstatement after fire  

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G R G G G 

 

Issues:  

• The accommodation provided would provide for very flexible resource areas for whole school use 

• Project proposals incorporate BWF Children’s Centre and anticipate shared community use of MUGA 
(Multiple Use Games Area) once secondary element relocates to WHL and the two special school 
buildings have been demolished  

• Good external sport facilities with shared use (school and community) are likely to be more desirable in 
this area than additional affordable housing.  Consideration needs to be given to the adjacent MUGA. 

 
Crowlands: Insurance reinstatement after fire 
 

• The fire damaged block was made secure and unsafe structures removed by Squibb & Davies during 
period October 2005 to 7 April 2006. During this period the building was stripped of damaged and 
redundant finishing’s and fittings. 

• The Council’s selected construction partner – Jerram Falkus Construction Limited (JFCL) – occupied the 
site on 10 April 2006 to commence enabling works ahead of specialist trades being brought to site to 
commence roof re-instatement. 

• Roof coverings are being installed. 

• Preparations have been made to commence a range of internal works. These will commence once roof 
covering has reached a certain point, expected in the next 2 weeks. 

 
Budget  

• Professional fees totalling £125,000 have been identified which are not covered by the insurers.  These 
fees will be subject to the approval of the proposed five-year capital programme by the Executive in 
November.  

 

P
a
g
e
 3

9



 

Page 24 of 69 24

Children & Young People Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 
In July 2005 the Council Executive agreed a delivery model for the Children’s Service based on three 
Children’s Networks, each consisting of two Network Learning Communities (NLCs) of schools but also 
including all services for children and young people from statutory and voluntary agencies. Key aims are: 

• Fully implement the Children’s Trust approach to the delivery of services.   

• Implement the Common Assessment Framework by September 2007, including establishing a  decision-
making structure to oversee the assessment process  

• Implement a protocol for exchanging information (with training, by September 2007) within and between 
agencies; 

• Implement a strategic and operational commissioning strategy 

• Establish 18 fully operational Children’s Centres by April 2008, which will provide 700 new childcare 
places; 

• 14,759 children ‘reached’ by children’s centres by March 2008; 

• Implement the Family Support Strategy by March 2007; 

• Support schools [at least 30 primary and 4 secondary] to provide a range of extended services by 
September 2008. 

(3)  CHILDREN’S 
 NETWORKS 
 

LEVEL 1 PROJECT  
 
NB.  This project 
includes the Children’s 
Centres Project  

Original End Date: Dec-2006 
End date last month: Dec-2006 

Current end date: Dec-2006 Original Budget: £5.181m 
Revised Budget: £7.748m 

Spend to date: Not stated 
Forecast spend: Not stated 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

A A A R G G A 

Project Sponsor:  
Dr Ita O’Donovan 
 
Project Manager: 
Robert Singh 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
Children Network South 
Data from the audit of case in the Children’s Network South has been used to inform the wider planning 
processes for use across all three networks. This means that a common system of referral, decision-making 
and case management will begin to be rolled out from October 1st 2006. Work is in progress to prepare 
teams within the Children and Young People’s Service, statutory partners including the TPCT. Work is 
planned for October 2006 to train staff within schools in relation to the changes required by the revisions to 
systems of referral, assessment and intervention. The Head of the Children’s network South is engaged in a 
programme of meetings with headteachers of all schools in the SCN to ensure that the implications of 
moving to the children’s network approach is understood and embedded at a senior management level. 

 
Children Network North 
A launch date of 15th November has been set and invitations will be made shortly to schools, managers and 
service providers.  It will build on the work undertaken in the South Pilot and the establishment of a common 
system of referral, which is being rolled out.   
 

P
a

g
e
 4

0



 

Page 25 of 69 25

Children & Young People Stream Board 

(3)  CHILDREN’S 
 NETWORKS CONT.  
 

Children Network West 
• At this stage the developmental work has been done by actively participating in the South network Pilot in 

order that we develop a working model for building the Team around the Child that will be applicable 
across all three networks. 

• A launch date for the network has been agreed for 25th Jan 2007. 
• Work in preparation for this has begun, including identifying how early intervention workers could work in 

each network. 
 
Timescale 
The Project is on track in line with the milestones set out in the PID and we are currently looking at bringing 
forward the implementation date of the CAF, earlier than planned, for October; this is due mainly to issue 
around the management of the process.  
 
In relation to Children’s Centres: 
The Sure Start Unit timescale for the approval of Phase II capital programmes is for all projects have to be at 
RIBA Stage D by December 2006, with a full implementation plans placed on the Sure Start website. 
 
Section 7 outlines the consultation process for Phase II.  Having identified priority areas (top 20% wards and 
30% SOAs) we are currently visiting all organisations (schools, primary care trust, private nurseries and 
voluntary organisations) that have expressed an interest in being part of the second phase of development.  
As part of this feasibility stage, meetings have been organised to visit and begin the capital feasibility 
process. 
 
Development Officers will devote half a day a week to each children’s centre area to develop a Local 
Planning Group (LPG) to ensure that all key stakeholders, including parents, are involved in the earliest 
stages of the development of the children’s centre. 
 
By mid May we had commissioned feasibility studies based on extensive knowledge of each potential centre 
and site visits were conducted to meet with Headteachers and Directors/Heads of organisations who had 
registered an interest.  A summary of the Phase 2 Children’s Centre Scoping exercise has now been drafted 
with a number of recommendations. Final recommendations will be made to the Executive for November 
2006.  This will enable us to comply with the Sure Start Unit deadline of December 2006. 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

1



 

Page 26 of 69 26

Children & Young People Stream Board 

(3)  CHILDREN’S 
 NETWORKS CONT.  
 

Resources 
Children’s Centres  
The General Sure Start Grant for Phase II capital development is £4.5m (2006-08).  However, there is the 
opportunity to link this with capital funding for extended schools (approximately £697,000) as many of the 
children’s centre projects link to the provision of out of school childcare (as required by the Childcare Bill). 
 
Children’s Centre revenue is funding an additional support officer in Property and Contracts Team (Senior 
Project Manager for Children’s Centre & Extended 
 
Budget 
Children’s Centres 
It is too early in the development to know if the allocated funding of £4.5m is sufficient.  It is likely most of the 
new centres will be refurbishment of surplus space so will be less expensive than new build, however this 
assumption needs to be tested.   
 
Some phase II funding has had to be allocated to complete the phase I centres which will impact on 
available spend for phase II – we wait final out-turns on each capital project 
 
Throughout the country LAs are joining together to express their concerns that phase II funding is insufficient 
and that the uplift for London LAs will not meet the higher costs.  We await the response from the Sure Start 
Unit – RS is chasing. 
 
 
Issues 
Children`s Centres 
From the terms and conditions of the capital funding the centres are to be developed in the 20% most 
deprived wards and 30% super out put areas (i.e. smaller areas than wards).  In some areas there may be 
difficulty in identifying potential accommodation (e.g. Bruce Grove where there is no capacity in the only 
school in the area to build sufficient space for childcare/activities).  This is being addressed as part of the 
feasibility stage and by contacting a range of stakeholders to identify other possible premises.  An alternative 
approach is to identify another centre/s on the perimeter of the ward to deliver services. 
 

P
a

g
e
 4

2



 

Page 27 of 69 27

Children & Young People Stream Board 

(3)  CHILDREN’S 
 NETWORKS CONT.  
 

Risks 
Children`s Centres 
The main risk is whether there is sufficient capital to develop all 8 new centres. The Children’s Centres have 
to develop a wide range of services across broad areas which requires flexible accommodation.  We are 
awaiting the response from the Sure Start Unit to issues raised around affordability.  We await the outcome 
of the current round of visits to interested organisations. 
In addition, we are aware that issues may develop around revenue funding for particular centres and will be 
working with all centres to closely monitor the situation. 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

3



 

Page 28 of 69 28

 

Children & Young People Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 
 

• Develop an ‘excellent’ and accessible Youth Service 
 

(4)  YOUTH SERVICE 
 IMPROVEMENT
 PROJECT  

Original End Date: TBC 
End date last month: TBC 

Actual End Date: TBC Original Budget: £N/A Spend to date: £N/A 
Forecast Spend: £N/A 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

A A A A A A A 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Janette Karklins 
 
Project Manager: 
Belinda Evans 

 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
Amber traffic lights 

• The JAR inspection in June 2006 included an Extended Youth Inspection.  The final report will be 
published on 10 October 2006.  The inspection requires a Post Inspection Action Plan (PIAP) to be 
prepared to address the areas identified for improvement/development.  It is therefore proposed that 
PIAP should be monitored through the Project Highlight Report.  Progress with the PIAP will therefore 
be the main agenda item from the next meeting. 

 
Details 

• It has been agreed that the process of the part time reorganisation will continue for a further two 
months.  All staff who submitted an application will be invited to an interview (October 2006) to 
determine whether they will be offered employment with the Youth Service. 

• The newly appointed Curriculum, Quality Assurance and Training Officer is meeting with all staff to 
ensure there is consistency of recording young people’s learning outcomes.  

• A programme of activity has been developed which will mean that the detached team, using the 
mobile, will have a continuity of work in designated communities over the next 6 months. 

• The building work has been completed but some IT installation work is outstanding.  

• The main hall’s floor board fixtures have become unattached from floor and use of main hall may 
pose a H&S implication 

• The integrated programme is now being delivered at Bruce Grove Youth Centre two evenings and 
one after school each week. 

• A full programme of activities are currently operational in all centres except Bruce Grove, where we 
are staggering the delivery of activities due to on- going snagging issues.  

• The Youth Service Summer Bonanza which was a celebration of the holiday programme has taken 
place; young people received their awards from the Deputy Mayor. 

 

P
a

g
e
 4

4



 

Page 29 of 69 29

Children & Young People Stream Board 

 

• Meeting with Voluntary organisations who have used the Bruce Grove (prior to refurbishment) has 
taken place on 9th September. 

• Youth Service has continued its involvement of the Peace Week by organising a football tournament 
(Bernie Grant Peace Cup) as well as various workshops throughout all youth centres.  Youth Service 
also had a stall at Ducketts Common and some staff and young people participated in the Peace 
Walk 

• An evaluation of the summer programme has taken place. 
 

 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 4

5



 

Page 30 of 69 30

SECTION 3 – WELL BEING STREAM BOARD 
 

Well Being Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 

• Implementation of Framework-I (FW-I), a web-based social care workflow case management system in 
July 2005 to replace CI system 

• Ensure that reliable operational and managerial information is produced for Council and Statutory 
reporting requirements.  

• Have a consistent use of best practice across Social & Children’s Services and enable the quality of 
social work practices to improve. 

• Facilitate ‘joint working’ by providing staff from external health agencies to access case information 

within Framework securely. 
 

(1)  E-CARE 
 

Phase 2 End Date: Dec-07 
End date last month: Dec-07 

Current End Date: Dec-07 Phase 2 Budget: £1788k Spend to date: £270k 
Forecast spend: £1788k 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G G G A A 

Project Sponsor:  
Catherine Galvin 
 
Project Manager: 
Andrew Rostom 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 

• The Project Initiation Document (PID) for Phase 2 of eCARE was approved at the August project board 
and presented to the September Well Being Stream Board.Two introductory workshops were held with 
the two Finance User Groups (FUGs) on the 19/09 and 21/09.  The purpose of these workshops was to 
provide both FUGs with a formal induction as to the role they are required to undertake to assist the 
project team with implementing FWI Purchasing. Both workshops were well attended and feedback 
received on both days was positive.  

• ‘AS-IS’ workshops commenced in Sept and the project team are visiting all service areas in both Social 
Services and Children’s & Young People Services (C&YP), between 25/09 – 13/10.  The purpose of 
these is to capture the existing business processes and system procedures used by teams to undertake 
their work.  The next phase of workshops will commence in Nov where the project team will review their 
findings from the first workshops with the respective service area to validated them.  The validated ‘AS-
IS’ analysis work will be used as the basis for establishing / proposing the ‘TO-BE’ systems design.   

P
a

g
e
 4

6



 

Page 31 of 69 31

Well Being Stream Board 

(1) E-CARE CONT. • Initial meetings have taken place between Corelogic and LBH to start formulating the Data Migration 
strategy.  Once this has been reviewed and approved, a  more detailed data migration plan will be 
developed to outline not only tasks to be undertaken by the project team, but also areas of data 
cleansing work to be undertaken by performance teams / services 

 

• A Change Management strategy has been developed and reviewed with OD&L. This will be 
presented for discussion at the October Project Board.  Change management tasks and activities are 
scheduled to commence from October.   

 
Issues 
 

• The performance issues with the FWI Live server were fully resolved on 15/09.  This matter was 
raised at the monthly service review meeting between Corelogic and LBH, and IT Service Delivery are 
currently investigating what sanctions (if any), could be imposed on Corelogic in view of FWI 
downtime in Sept. 

 

• Social Services is working with Corporate finance to handover the settlement of outstanding Techno 
park costs (both historic and ongoing), as it was agreed that these would be paid from a corporate 
budget 

 
Risks 

• A meeting took place on 20/09 to discuss how the C&YP Reconciliation project will need to work 
collaboratively with eCARE Phase 2.  A separate highlight report will be submitted to the eCARE 
project board. 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

7



 

Page 32 of 69 32

 

Well Being Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 

• To close and demolish Osborne Grove long-term residential care home for older people and to design 
and build a 32 bed respite care home for older people. 

• To refurbish 3 long-term residential care homes to a high standard. 

• To explore options for 2 out of borough long term residential care homes. 
 

(2) COMMUNITY CARE 
STRATEGY 
IMPLEMENTATION 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Mary Hennigan 
 
Project Manager: 
David Bray  

Original End Date: May-07 
End date last month: May-07 

Current End Date: May-07 Project Budget: £5.65m 
 

Spend to date: £2.522m 
Forecast spend: £5.65m 

Osborne Grove 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

 

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G G G G G 

 
The Red House 

s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
t

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

R R R G A R A 

 
 
Cooperscroft 

S
ta

tu
s
 T

h
is

 
M

o
n

t
h

 

S
ta

tu
s
 L

a
s
t 

M
o

n
t

h
  

T
im

e
s
c
a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G G G G G 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
Osborne Grove (New Build 32 Bed Respite Care Home) 

• The fifth contractor site meeting was held on the 27th September 2006.  The contractor is currently 
reporting three weeks delay, however the overall programme is on target for the 25th March 2007. 

 
The Red House (refurbishment) 
• Red traffic lights: Despite a number of meetings with key personnel from the main contractor 

(Makers) over the last few months a practical completion certificate has still to be issued. Occupation 
has been achieved however a definitive list of incomplete items is considerable and is currently being 
worked through.  The residents relocated to Cranwood and Broadwater moved back on the 25th and 
26th September 2006 respectively. Communication with Makers Managing Director is ongoing. 

• As a result of the six week delay in completing the refurbishment, the Council is seeking ‘Liquidated 
Asset Damages’ totalling £28,500 from the contractor. 

• As a result of the contractors overall performance a decision was made to exclude all works other 
than those in the tendered specification.  Therefore although additional works have been identified 
and scoped they are currently being procured as a separate mini-project. In addition landscaping was 
removed from the main contract due to the need to undertake works at appropriate seasonal times. 

• Furniture and equipment requirements are currently being managed; new furniture has been received 
in addition to obtaining items from Trentfield. 

 
Cooperscroft (TUPE) 
• The exchange and completion for the disposal of Cooperscroft was successful on the 30th September 

2006.  
• £3,138,900.39 received from Rockley Dene.   

P
a

g
e
 4

8



 

Page 33 

SECTION 4 – BETTER HARINGEY STREAM BOARD 
 

Better Haringey Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 

• To create a 4-8 year Estates Environment Improvement Strategy and Action Plan. 

• To engage other Housing providers in the development and delivery of the Strategy. 

• To establish and deliver the £880k 2006/7 BHEIP programme. 

• To deliver £300k Campsbourne Estate project. 

 

(1)  BETTER HARINGEY 
ESTATES 
IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAMME 

Original End Date: May 07 
End date last month: see current 

Current End Date: May 2007 – for 
publication of 4-8 year strategy and 
associated action plan(s) 

Project Budget:  £1.346 million (2006-
07) 

Spend to date: £109k 
Forecast spend: £1.346m 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G A G G A G G 

Project Sponsor:  
Steve Clarke 
 
Project Manager: 
John Morris 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 

2006/7 BHEIP works programme preparation was completed with input from Streetscene and Recreation 
and draft programme presented to HfH Board in September. The Programme includes the Campsbourne 
‘Groundwork’ managed project.   

£766k programme agreed – Street lighting £260k, Door Entry & Security £228k, Waste and Recycling £60k, 
Hard/Soft landscaping £91k, Play £66k, General Works (including Communal Flooring) £62k. Plus £200k 
Estate Inspection works and existing BHEIP, £330K commitments from 2005/6 and £50k Campsbourne 
Community Garden. Programme spread across 44 estates in 15 Wards. Resident engagement 
/communication commences in October, with first newsletter and initial estate meetings 

 
Resources 

Longer term strategic planning work has been delayed pending funding / project management planning 
within new Directorate arrangements. 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 4

9



 

Page 34 

 

Better Haringey Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 

• To support the Better Haringey work programme for 2006-07 with a high profile media campaign, 
promoting improvements to the natural and built environment to staff, local residents, businesses and 
visitors including hard to reach groups;  

• encourage uptake of environmental services through targeted information and education 

• consolidate the excellent brand recognition continually develop the Better Haringey web pages and to 
develop a resource on Harinet for Council staff; 

• collect resident satisfaction data on a regular basis to gain an understanding of the impact of the Better 
Haringey campaign  

• further develop and promote the walking trail across the borough; and 

• to produce a map and guide for the trail that is universally available. 
 

(2)  COMMUNICATIONS 
 & EVENTS 

Original End Date: March ‘07 
End date last month: March ‘07 

Current End Date: Ongoing 
programme of work 

Theme Budget: £217.95k (06/07) 
 

Spend to date: £66.6k 
Forecast spend: £217.95k  

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c
a

l
e

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G G G G G 

Project Sponsor:  
Joanna David 
 
Project Managers: 
Jon Clubb 
Deborah Hogan 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 

• The Better Haringey Trail (held on 9 Sept) was a huge success with over 100 residents, visitors and 
staff raising money for the Mayors Special Fund ‘Building for Babies’. Walkers discovered Haringey’s 
hidden gems, such as Tottenham Marshes on the 12 mile route. Special thanks must be extended to 
the volunteers who helped ensure the smooth running of this event. 

• The Clean Sweep campaign took place in Northumberland Park and White Hart Lane on 22 & 23 
September. Activities included high visibility enforcement patrols, additional bulky waste removal and 
recycling opportunities for Somerset Gardens and The Weymarks estates, weeding and mulching of 
existing planted beds along Northumberland Park and Blaydon Close, cutting back of overgrown 
hedges around play area at Robert Burns House and re-decoration of a community facility by young 
offenders (under the Youth Reparations scheme). The next Clean Sweep is scheduled to take place 
in Bruce Grove and West Green on the 2nd, 3rd and 4th of November. A detailed action plan listing 
activities is already drafted and agreed by Members, Neighbourhood Management and 
Environmental Service Managers. The Bruce Grove and West Green Neighbourhood Management 
team are to begin door-knocking in roads scheduled for deep cleans and community clear ups. They 

P
a

g
e
 5

0



 

Page 35 

Better Haringey Stream Board 

(2)  COMMUNICATIONS 
 & EVENTS CONT.  

will be distributing information about Clean Sweep as well as other Council services. 

• The outdoor advertising campaign of Haringey’s 7 award winning parks comes to an end in 
September, and will be followed by a litter enforcement campaign from 23 October until the end of 
December. Planning work is to begin on the next campaign for January / February – Members have 
already agreed that the theme should be to promote recycling. 

• The Better Haringey Survey was completed during August, with the results to be fed back to the 
Better Haringey Stream Board in September and to Members in October. This will precede wider 
dissemination of the results across the Council. Planning will then commence on wave 6 of the 
regular survey – to take place in November 06. 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

1



 

Page 36 

 

Better Haringey Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 

• To undertake a frequent and high profile programme of clean up activities targeting borough ‘grot spots’; 

• Encourage resident involvement in community clear up and improvement activities; 

• Identify all major ‘eyesores’ that have a negative impact on the local amenity and the environment  

• Provide at least one free collection of bulky waste per year to all eligible households; and 

• Move from unsatisfactory standards to satisfactory standards for the performance indicator for litter and 
detritus (BVPI199a),  

 

(3)  ENVIRONMENTAL 
CLEANLINESS & 
ENFORCEMENT 

Original End Date:  Various dates 
against the programme of projects  

Current End Date:  Various dates 
against the programme of projects 

Theme Budget: £454,574 
 

Spend to date: £129,541 
Forecast spend: £454,574 

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G G G G G 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Joanna David 
 
Project Managers: 
Deborah Hogan 
Rob Curtis 
Zoe Robertson 
Emma Smyth 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
Eyesores Programme 

• The survey of 51 bridges in ownership of Network Rail was completed on target. 

• Notices served on Network Rail to enhance means taken to prevent nuisances by birds under bridges 
at Bruce Grove and the junction of Seven Sisters Road with St. Ann’s Road. 

• Notices served on Network Rail to clear accumulations of rubbish and erect effective fencing to stop 
recurrences of rubbish dumping alongside the alleyway from Forster Road to St. Loys Road. 

• Due to changes in staffing within Network Rail, the survey of other land under their control is only part 
complete but should be finished mid November. 

• The results of the survey will be fed back to the Better Haringey Stream Board in November and to 
Members in December.  

• An appeal lodged by Bridisco with regard to derelict land under their ownership in White Hart Lane will 
not now be heard at the magistrate’s court until 13th December. 

• Monthly review of actions taken.  
 
Community Clear Ups 

• Project on schedule, with 9 Community Clear Ups completed in September, covering 8,584 
households within Seven Sisters, St Ann’s and Stroud Green wards. 

 

P
a

g
e
 5

2



 

Page 37 

Better Haringey Stream Board 

 
(3)  ENVIRONMENTAL 
 CLEANLINESS & 
 ENFORCEMENT CONT.  

Mobile Clean Up Teams & Street Cleaning 

• Project is on schedule with the Mobile Clean Teams commencing work in July 06, as per the project 
PID. 

• The operation consists of two day shift teams who have also been undertaking weekend working 
throughout August and September.   

• Programme of works has been established and are underway in Bruce Grove, Haringey, Fortis Green, 
Tottenham Hale and Crouch End. 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

3



 

Page 38 

 

Better Haringey Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 

• To raise the standard and profile of parks and open spaces in line with the 8 green flag objectives; 

• improve quality, safety and general environment of Haringey’s opens spaces and allotments; 

• deliver programme of tree planting, Haringey in Bloom and small grant funding; 

• install a new playground in Chestnuts Park; 

• meet cleanliness index targets and low ENCAMs scores,  

• deliver a series of site specific improvement works with ‘Groundwork’; 

• complete a review of resources and functions associated with Haringey’s Park Management; and 

• address condition surveys of sports and leisure facilities. 
Original End Date: Various 
dates against the programme of 
projects.   

Current End Date:  Various dates against 
the programme of projects.   

Theme Budget:  £1466.8k Spend to date: £286.2k 
Forecast spend: £1436.8k 

(4)  IMPROVING GREEN 
 & OPEN SPACES 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

A A A A G G A 

 
Project Sponsor: 
John Morris 
 
Project Managers: 
Don Lawson 
Andy Briggs 
Paul Ely 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
Open Spaces Improvement Programme 

• Target sites for SSCF and NRF projects have been surveyed, priced and approved by Head of Parks 
and Recreation. 

• Additional works for Allotments have been identified and will be confirmed shortly – value 25K 

• An LMT Bid has been submitted for the MUGA at Downhills Park to the value of 40K. 

• Schedule is still on track and work has begun to package all projects into large tender release. 
 
Sport & Leisure Services – Strategic Renewals 

• Risks - The first project board was held during September and further discussion was had on settling 
the final account for year 1, this still poses a risk to the year two projects, AYH believe the final account 
will be within the agreed value. Work continues on design and specification of the year 2 projects.  

• Timescale - All projects remain on target to have works commencing in December 06. There is a 
possible risk of the consultation/forum at PRLC delaying the works due to forum not being happy with 
proposed/preferred option. This is reliant on the consultation having been robust and informative. It is 
currently being managed with this in mind. Therefore minor additional cost has been incurred to 
provide conceptual drawing and architectural drawings ON 3 OPTIONS for display during the last week 
of September. (Cost is not reflective in this highlight report due to invoices not received) 

 

P
a

g
e
 5

4



 

Page 39 

Better Haringey Stream Board 

(4)  IMPROVING GREEN 
 & OPEN SPACES 
CONT.  

• Issue – Flood at PRLC is subject to insurance claim – must be resolved by end of fiscal year. 

• Consultation commenced at Park Road with regards to the changing room refurbishments and a forum 
is now scheduled for 10th October to advise of results and preferred option.  

• Specifications are being worked up for the replacement of the filtration systems at both TGLC & PRLC.  

• Projected Budget is £594k across the three centres inclusive of carry over £174k, all subject to 
good/strong performance in terms of income from the year 1 developments; this ultimately determines 
levels of borrowing. 

 
Chestnuts Park Play Improvement Project  

Budget, Resources & Risks –  

• The business plan has been rewritten to contain more relevant sources of funding that could be 
accessed for Chestnuts. The spending profile for the project is anticipated to be – NDC £110,000, 
Recreation Services £122,000, Big Lottery Fund £120,000, London Marathon Trust £20,000. 

• Recreation Services have put forward a bid for extra capital for Chestnuts next year (2007-08) and the 
NDC will commit to finding some capital from the 07-08 and 08-09 capital budget allocation. This is 
subject to the project being worked up and going through the NDC appraisal process and approval by 
the NDC Board.  

Parks & Open Spaces Hygiene  

• Cleanliness Index monitoring covers all aspects of ENCAMs monitoring (litter, graffiti, detritus), 
however, we are continuing to report only on litter until 12 month trial period is completed.  Very good 
results have been achieved, at above index target of 80. 

• Hygiene Team team are now being directed towards deep cleaning schedule. 

• Hygiene Team agency staffing levels being maintained at high levels to achieve above activity. 

• 3 Area Officers completed satisfactorily ENCAM’s training. 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

5



 

Page 40 

Better Haringey Stream Board 

(4)  IMPROVING GREEN 
& OPEN SPACES 
CONT.  

 
‘Parkforce’ Resource Review 

• Outreach Officer proportion of project removed and developed as separate project reported by Project 
Officer – Conservation. 

• Continuation of review of ‘best practice’, including attendance at CABE Space Parkforce seminar on 
Best Practice. 

• Significant Parks identified, but requires sign off. 

• Timescales – Pilot scheme to commence in Sept 07. 

 

P
a

g
e
 5

6



 

Page 41 

 

Better Haringey Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 

• To develop a climate change action plan for Haringey; 

• monitor energy use and carbon reductions; 

• develop and implement practical projects to mitigate against and adapt to climate change; 

• meet targets for recycling rates (22%), waste collection per head (340kg), households served by kerbside 
collection of two recyclables (100%), kerbside recycling participation (70%), schools recycling (100%), re-
use and recycling centres diverting 50% of waste from landfill, and improved Council office recycling 
infrastructure; and  

• to inform residents about waste minimisation and recycling schemes available, in order to increase take-
up of services.  

Original End Date: Various dates 
against the programme of projects.   

Current End Date:  Various dates 
against the programme of projects.   

Theme Budget: £435k 
 

Spend to date: £92.4 
Forecast spend: £435k 

(5)  SUSTAINABILITY 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G G G G G 

Project Sponsor:  
Steve McDonnell 
 
Project Managers: 
Sule Nisancioglu 
Zoe Robertson 
 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
Climate Change Action Plan & Projects 

• SLA for NRF has now been received.   

• Climate change officers group (project group) – nominations from services are currently being 
confirmed.   First meeting is scheduled for  October  

• SEA/Renue,  has been commissioned for working with Haringey for setting targets and vision,  and 
future  project  development.  A roundtable discussion  with Members and climate change officer 
group is being organised  to discuss possible targets in November.   

• An officers / members meeting  with external speakers  being planned for 1st December.  Speakers 
include Cllr Haley, Ita O’Donovan,  Ray Morgan (Woking Borough council chief executive). It is likely 
that we will have a speaker from TfL on staff travel and fleet management.   

 
New Recycling Projects 

• Project on schedule. 

• 3 Recycling Officers in full time employment supporting all activities within the Recycling Team 
 
Communication, Participation & Engagement (Recycling) 

• Project on schedule, with spend allocated throughout year. 

• Promotional materials and new service leaflets are being developed – Community Clear Ups and 

P
a
g
e
 5

7



 

Page 42 

Better Haringey Stream Board 

(5)  SUSTAINABILITY 
 CONT.  

Reuse & Recycling Centres leaflets have been printed and distributed. An advert for Hornsey Reuse 
& Recycling Centre and the white goods collection service will be printed in September’s Haringey 
People. Leaflets for the white goods service and the Community Volunteers scheme are being 
updated. New leaflets for kerbside sort recycling collections and estate recycling collections are in 
design. 

 
Estates Recycling 

• This project will commence in October 06, following the successful transfer of recycling services to the 
Council.  

• Project planning is underway and site visits are being carried out prior to service roll-out.  

• Planning is taking place in partnership with Homes for Haringey. 

• This project will serve the Northumberland Park and Seven Sisters areas with approx. 3,000 
households on estates receiving a doorstep commingled service, and a further 3000 households 
served by near-entry recycling bring banks. 

• Budget in 2006/7 is £65K, with current spend at end of Period 6 - £nil – spend is profiled from October 
2006 to March 2007. 

 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 5

8



 

Page 43 of 69 43

SECTION 5 – HOUSING STREAM BOARD 

Housing Improvement Partnership Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 

• To achieve the procurement of a value for money responsive repairs and maintenance service for 
Haringey’s tenants and leaseholders. 

• Test the R+M market in order to identify providers of the service best able to deliver a fit for purpose 
solution for both the council and its housing clients. 

• High level objectives for this project are to: 
o establish and confirm resources to oversee development of service specification, appointment of 

external resources and the procurement process 
o develop and implement a housing repairs procurement strategy that adopts modern procurement 

practices that aim to secure value for money and efficiencies.  

(1)  REPAIRS 
 PROCUREMENT 

 

Original End Date: Apr-07 
End date last month: Apr-07 

Current End Date: Apr-07 Project Budget: £100,000 
 

Spend to date: £Nil 
Forecast spend: £100,000 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G A G G G A 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Stephen Clarke 
 
Project Manager: 
Ridge and Partners 
 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
Following revisions to the delivery programme, the overall RAG status remains Green. 

• A soft market test was held on 20 September and board Report presented on 27 September.   

• The OJEU notice and PQQ have been developed and are ready for issue.   

• HR have assembled initial TUPE information. 

• The Board, advised by EMT, has decided to seek alternative bids in respect of vehicle leasing and call 
centre.   

• Leaseholder consultation notice has been approved and should now have been issued to all 
leaseholders. 

• Meeting with Director of Environment was undertaken by HfH CEX to identify holistic approach to Accord 
negotiations. 

• DLO staff notified about intended procurement. 

• Ridge confirmed as project manager. 
 
• Risk: Risk has been highlighted as amber and is contingent on the outcome of key concerns 

including:  
o The cost of a new provider may exceed the budget available in Housing Revenue Account 

medium term financial strategy.   
o Buy- in and change management associated with a possible TUPE of repairs staff. 

 

P
a
g
e
 5

9



 

Page 44 of 69 44

 

Housing Improvement Partnership Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 
• To implement a new service structure and processes in Occupational Therapy and Adaptations based on 

the recommendations of the scrutiny review and business process re-design project.   
• The aim of these changes will be to improve the end-to-end process time for users, from the first point of 

contact with the council to completion and sign off of adaptations, so that it does not exceed 164 days. 
• The project will also implement a new performance management system, develop shared IT system 

usage and contribute to a 2* score in the ALMO inspection. 

(2)  ADAPTATIONS  
 PROJECT 

Original End Date: Dec-06 
End date last month: Dec-06 

Current End Date: Dec-06 Project Budget: £2,350m 
 

Spend to date: £440k 
Forecast spend: £2,350m 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

A A A G G A A 

Project Sponsor:  
Anne Bristow 
 
Project Manager: 
Gary Jefferson 

 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
Activities 

• All key processes have been examined and mapped and an action plan has been prepared.  The 
procedures manual is waiting amendment to align with the new structure. 

• Phase 2 PID developed, to be presented to the project board on the 9th October 2006. 

• New structure implemented: new admin and surveyors started 02/10/06.  They are working as a team 
from 639 as accommodation is not available presently. They are cleaning up all cases which require 
closing, payments and retentions and will be putting new cases on site to ensure this year’s spend.  

 
Budget 

• The budget status has returned to green.  £1.3m additional capital obtained; £319,000 to private 
sector adaptations, £981,000 to council property.  Authorisation to be requested to potentially move 
capital between private and public sector adaptations to ensure full commitment and the achievement 
of targets. 

• Commitment within council housing is £1,534,500. 

• Commitment within Disabled Facilities Grants (DFG) and repairs is £800,000, a further £319,000 will 
be committed to 2 surveyor posts (£40k) and £279,000 additional approved grants to go on site 
shortly.  This will enable an additional 25 adaptations to be put on site; however this could leave in 
excess of 250 cases which have been assessed as outstanding.  This could relate to a spend of 
£1.8m.  Next years allocation of £800k will deal with approx 900 cases.  It is likely that 250 new cases 
could be assessed next year and therefore the problem is clear that waiting lists in the private sector 
will continue to grow unless cases can be resolved alternatively. 

 

P
a

g
e
 6

0



 

Page 45 of 69 45

Housing Improvement Partnership Board 

(2) ADAPTATIONS 
PROJECT CONT.   

 

Issue 

• On-line catalogue is not yet operational.  An exception report was requested at the last HIPB. 

• SAP materials management went live on 18th September but due to technical difficulties with financial 
postings it was taken down.  Problems have now been resolved and it will be back running on the 11th 
October. 

 
Timescale 

• Framework I go-live delayed until 31st October 2006 (slipped from 1st Oct 2006).  This is due to 
resource constraints in the E-Care Team. 

 
Risk 

• Contingency plan needs to be drafted if funding is not secure for council property adaptations 07/08 
onwards and £1.450 has been put into the PBPR. 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

1



 

Page 46 of 69 46

 

Housing Improvement Partnership Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 
• To implement all the recommendations of the Empty Property Management Review by October 06. 
• To improve performance on the process of managing empty properties including customer satisfaction 

and VFM by the next inspection in April 07.  
• To improve the standard of repair and cleanliness within empty properties by October 06. 
• To reduce the overall turnaround time to 27 days by October 06. 
• To identify areas of further review and improvement by March 07. 
 

(3) EMPTY PROPERTY 
PROJECT 

 
 

Original End Date: Apr-07 
End date last month: Apr-07 

Current End Date: Apr-07 Project Budget: £40,000 Spend to date: £0 
Forecast spend: £40,000 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c
a

le
 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

R R A A A A R 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Beverley Taylor 
 
Project Manager: 
George Georgiou 
 

Management Summary 
 
For the month of September, there has been significant progress on reducing the monthly turnaround figure, 
reducing the total number of current voids to the lowest figure for this financial year and on increasing the 
percentage of voids being repaired and let within the 27 day target to the highest figure for this financial year.  
 
The year to date turnaround figure continues to be high reflecting the fact that we are letting a substantial 
backlog of voids with considerable void periods and are not turning around a sufficient number of properties 
within the 27 day target. 
 
Progress has been made on reducing the backlog of voids held within the Voids Repair Team and this 
reduction will allow the team to concentrate on turning around new voids more quickly. 
 
The Lettings Team have also made progress on increasing the monthly acceptance rate to the highest figure 
for four months and in maintaining the number of successful lets to the high level achieved in August – these 
improvements are predominately due to offers being validated more effectively as well as last month’s 
introduction of accompanied viewings.  
 
A further review of all voids at the repair stage (as at 17/9/06) has been completed and target repair dates 
have been set for all voids to include those with Structures, day to day repairs, those undergoing mini-
modernisations and adaptations.   
 

P
a

g
e
 6

2



 

Page 47 of 69 47

Housing Improvement Partnership Board 

(4) EMPTY PROPERTY 
PROJECT CONT. 

 

Work has been completed this month to project the monthly and year to date turnaround performance taking 
into account the current voids held and the anticipated number of new voids from October 06 to March 07 
inclusive. 
 
From this, the year to date turnaround performance which currently stands at 63.61 days is projected to fall 
to 45 days by the end of March 07. 
 
A comparative analysis of turnaround performance has also been completed for new voids received and let 
since April as well as for all voids held and let.  This analysis is contained within this report. 
 
Key priorities for October include:- 
 

• Pre-allocation of all ‘offerable voids’ 

• Further reducing the total number of voids and the number of voids at the repair stage 

• Pro-actively managing the voids held at 17/9/06 as a separate project 

• Turning around more new voids within the 27 day target 

• Ensuring that the information recorded on OHMS is correct - in particular ready for let dates 

• Addressing productivity issues within the Void Repairs Team and Lettings Team 

• Assessing the implications of Home Connections and gearing the organisation for its implementation 
 

Generally, there will be an increased focus on ensuring that voids at the repair stage are turned around more 
speedily and the Voids Manager will hold weekly performance meetings with each Voids Co-ordinator to 
facilitate the objective. 
 
The Lettings Team will also concentrate resources on pre-allocation, accompanied viewings and the speedy 
letting of voids; particularly VUNs. 
 
Budget 

• Additional Lettings staff will impact on budget 

• Additional contractor spend will impact on budget 

• No budget allowed for printing and publication of Lettable Standard: 16 page full colour document x 
10,000 copies - £4262.25.  20 page full colour document x 10,000 copies - £5359 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

3



 

Page 48 of 69 48

 

Housing Improvement Partnership Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 

• The closure of the separate homelessness foyer at Apex House and the delivery of the service via 
Customer Services in one site on a trial basis, extending to four if the trail is successful.   

• To merge the housing advice and homelessness teams.   

• Increased emphasis on helping applicants to help themselves and to encourage the widest possible use 
of private sector accommodation as an alternative to Council-based temporary accommodation.  In so 
doing, to reduce the number/proportion of applicants for which we accept housing duty, as alternative 
options will be offered. 

 

(4)  HOMELESSNESS 
 AND HOUSING 
 OPTIONS 
 PROJECT 

Original End Date: 30-Aug-05 
End date last month: 30-May-06 

Current End Date: Jan-2007 Original Budget: £0 
Revised Budget: £123,000 

Spend to date: £0 
Forecast spend: £123,000 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G G G G G 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Julian Higson 
 
Project Manager: 
Graham Cutts 

 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
Successful official launch on the 4 October 2006.  Very good attendance by both stakeholders and 
members. The new P&O manager – Hilda Bond is settling into the post well and is being provided support by 
both the staff and managers in the service. 
 
Problems with the Rent Service have led to the slow down of available housing options for our customers but 
the Housing Supply Team have recently met with them and we should see some improvement soon.  
Due to further successful appointments the P&O service will soon be running to full staff capacity and which 
will allow for the development of homeless prevention work. 
 
A meeting with Unison has also been held to review risk assessments for both Wood Green Customer 
Service Centre and Apex House. Although it was agreed to leave unchanged it must be noted that staff and 
the health and safety rep present stated that working practices have improved dramatically since the launch 
especially in regard to stress levels.  
 

P
a

g
e
 6

4



 

Page 49 of 69 49

 

Housing Improvement Partnership Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 

• Develop and implement a new allocations policy and pointing scheme for the London Borough of 
Haringey that meets housing need and supports council strategy. 

• Develop and implement allocations procedures and validations processes; 

• Undertake a review of the current Housing Register and implement improvement activities; 

• Undertake a re-registration exercise for all clients currently on the Housing Register; 

• Implement Home Connections, a new choice based lettings service, which will become LB Haringey’s 
method for allocating housing; 

• Improve the lettings service and in particular the letting of sheltered accommodation. 
 

(5) LETTINGS AND 
ALLOCATIONS 
PROJECT 
 
 
 

Original End Date: Dec-06 
End date last month: Dec-06 

Current End Date: Dec-06 Project Budget: Budget under development 
 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c
a

l
e

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

A A A G A A A 

 
 

Project Sponsor:  
Julian Higson 
 
Project Manager: 
Graham Cutts 

 
 
 
 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
Executive approval for the Lettings Policy was given on 12 September 2006. 
 
Timescales / Resources / Risks:  
The start date for the electronic Re-Registration exercise projected to begin on 21st August 2006 was 
delayed but commenced on 30th August 2006.   All forms were dispatched and the formal date for return has 
passed. There have been approximately 11,000 returns to date.  
 
The Re-Registration delay has impacted on the Home Connections Go-Live date, which is now expected to 
be achieved by the end of November.   
 
To minimise this delay, additional staff have been recruited to deliver on the Re-Registration exercise and 
steps have been introduced to reduce the day-to-day management workload of key staff involved in the 
project. An action plan outlining these measures has been prepared.  
 
The Project is at a critical phase in terms of ICT solutions for re-registration and pointing. Daily contact with 
key suppliers is being maintained to minimise and address risks and issues.   
 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

5



 

Page 50 of 69 50

SECTION 6 – PEOPLE STREAM BOARD 

People Stream Board 

Project Description/Objectives 
To implement a new pay and conditions package that takes account of equal value considerations and 
meets the 2004 National Local Government Services pay deal for single status harmonisation of manual and 
officer conditions.  To this end the pay and conditions package will deliver the following: 

• A new pay and grading structure with simplified grades and progression criteria 

• One job evaluation scheme to be used for all staff within a specified pay range 

• Pay protection arrangements 

• A set of premium rates to be applied to employees required to work 

(1)  EQUAL PAY 
 REVIEW 

Original End Date: 31-03-07 
Revised End date: 31-03-07 

Current End Date: 31 March 
2007 

Project Budget: £100,000 
 

Spend to date: None  
Forecast Spend: £100,000 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G A G G G G 

Project Sponsor:  
Andrew Travers 
 
Project Manager:  
Steve Davies 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY  
 

• The national pay agreement 2004 for Local Government Service workers ensures that Local Pay 
Reviews must be completed and implemented by 31 March 2007. The national agreement also specifies 
that management and trade unions should enter into negotiations, with a view to reaching an agreement 
on new local pay structures and systems. 

• A Pay and Conditions Proposal has been drafted to address the above. This outlines proposed changes 
to the pay structure, the job evaluation process, allowance proposals and suggested changes to other 
employee benefits. 

• The above proposal has been shared with the Project Board and Trade Union Representatives. 

• Following the initial meeting to discuss the proposal with Trade Union Representatives, negotiations 
have been extended beyond the original target date. This is due to the contentious nature of some of the 
issues in the proposal and the increased length of time needed for negotiations required to reach 
agreement on these issues.  

 

P
a

g
e
 6

6



 

Page 51 of 69 51

People Stream Board 

(1)  EQUAL PAY 
REVIEW CONT. 

Progress since last period 

• Due to conflicting meetings, meetings were not held with Trade Union Representatives to discuss the 
following (an additional meeting will be scheduled for October to address this) 

o Price tag and assimilation 
o Initial and future job evaluations 
o Accident pay 
o Long service awards 
o Pay date 

 

• The following aspects have already been agreed: pay structure, range grades, pay progression, 
recruitment and retention allowances 

• Meeting with Change Manager to discuss communication did not take place due to staff absence. 
 
Timescales  

• Stakeholder negotiations deadline were extended from March to October this year.  Negotiations with 
Trade Unions are not now expected to be completed until December.  This means that timescales for 
implementation will have to be shortened and more work will be required in the last quarter of this 
financial year.  We still expect to meet the main timescales for implementation. 

• As the negotiations will take longer than originally anticipated there may be an impact on the subsequent 
timescales but at this stage there is no anticipated affect on the project budget or overall implementation 
date because less jobs will be evaluated than originally envisaged.  As the project is only in its early 
stages this will be monitored and reviewed at a later date. 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 6

7



 

Page 52 of 69 52

 

People Stream Board 

Project Description/Objectives 

• This project covers the activities to achieve success in the post recognition review for Investors in 
People Standard by April 2007 and retain IiP status. 

 

(2)  INVESTORS IN 
 PEOPLE 

Original End Date: Apr-07 
End date last month: Apr-07 

Current End Date: Apr-07 Project Budget: £11,000 
 

Spend to date: £600 
Forecast Spend: £11,000 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G A G G G G 

Project Sponsor:  
Philippa Morris 
 
Project Manager: 
Karen Rowing 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
Progress  
It has been agreed that we should reschedule the re-recognition process to Oct 07, given the results of the 
staff survey.  This will provide the opportunity to embed and then assess the effectiveness of the new 
competency framework, performance appraisal and other initiatives to improve management effectiveness.  
A new milestone plan will be presented to the stream board in November. 
 
The current milestones in the IiP PID will be revised to take account of the rescheduling of the recognition 
process, from Jan 07 – Oct 07.  The revised milestones will include the new Competency Framework and 
Performance Appraisal and the Leadership Programme Phase 3 as these initiatives will be included in the 
scope of the IiP re-recognition process. The work on the Impact projects will continue and the Evaluation 
project will be included in the Corporate Framework timetable. The revised milestones and a Corporate 
Action Plan will be presented at the November Stream Board meeting. 
 
An Impact Project Group methodology has been drawn up and will be presented at this Stream Board 
meeting.  Also, meetings have been held with the service heads of the three Impact Project Groups, BLT, 
Housing Services and Parking. 
 
Risks 

• Making it Happen groups are up and running or there is a commitment to establishing them in all 
directorates.  There is a risk to the project if these groups are not effective. They were an essential part 
of the process of gaining IiP status in 2005.  To mitigate this risk, OD&L consultants are attached to 
each MiH group to drive forward the work programme. 

• Reshaping of the council structure may affect staff morale.  We are mitigating this risk by rescheduling 
to allow the restructuring time to embed. We also have change management principles and methods 
applied in reorganisation projects. 

P
a

g
e
 6

8



 

Page 53 of 69 53

 

People Stream Board 

Project Description/Objectives 
• To reduce work related accidents by 30% by 2010. Interim Targets will seek a reduction of 

approximately 10% per year.  (To be tested by Corporate Audit in 2007-2008) 
• To improve the Council’s Health and Safety Management Systems so that all Directorates integrate  

service health safety and welfare issues into Business Planning and Performance Management by 
March 2007 

• To increase knowledge and awareness amongst managers and other staff about their health and safety 
roles and responsibilities by March 2007. (To be tested by Corporate Audit in 2007-2008) 

• To form an effective partnership with the Health and Safety Executive in demonstrating best practice in 
health and safety performance by March 2007. 

(3)  CORPORATE 
 HEALTH & SAFETY 
 ACTION PLAN 

Original End Date: 31-03-07 
End date last month: 31-03-07 

Current End Date: 31-03-07 Budget: £N/A – activities to be met from current budgets or 
staff time.  See note below. 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G A G G G 

Project Sponsor:  
Stuart Young 
 
Project Manager: 
Dave Cope 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 

 

Progress 

• The new corporate health and safety policy was presented to Corporate Health and Safety Committee 
on 27th September. Directorate Service Liaison Officers will now cascade the policy to all service 
workplaces under their responsibility. It was agreed that the forthcoming Council reshaping will mean 
that a further review of the policy will be necessary during April 2007.  

 

• The Stress Policy has been revised and is awaiting final comments from the Working Group and Trade 
Union representatives.  All comments to be received by 13th October.   

 

• It is intended that the Stress Policy Working Group should be transferred to the HR Well-Being 
Strategy Group once the new corporate policy has reached final agreement.  The project manager will 
continue to lead this group. 

 

• The E-Learning Software being procured by Organisational Development and Learning is being 
finalised and will be ready for demonstration during October. The Corporate Health and Safety Team 
will agree the roll-out strategy with OD&L by 13th October. 

 

• A Social Services representative has joined the Project Board with effect from October 2006.      
 
 

P
a
g
e
 6

9



 

Page 54 of 69 54

People Stream Board 

(3)  CORPORATE 
 HEALTH & SAFETY 
 ACTION PLAN 

Budget 

• The funding of the e-learning software package amounts to £18,000 and will be provided by 
Organisational Development and Learning.   Necessary changes to the Project Initiation Document 
have been made and will be submitted to the October Stream Board. 

 
Issues 

• Responses from Directors/ Assistant Chief Executive’s for additional Safety Liaison Officer resources 
for Corporate Health and Safety Committee to cover Access, Legal, Customer Services and 
Neighbourhood Management have still not been received.  Head of Personnel to resolve. 

 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 7

0



 

Page 55 

SECTION 7 – VALUE FOR MONEY STREAM BOARD 

Value for Money Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES 
 
To ensure development and implementation of the corporate Asset Management Plan and the effective 
provision and utilisation of assets to support  the Council’s overall objectives. 
 
Specific project objectives are to:- 

• Introduce a single framework for the corporate  management of property which will increase 
the efficiency and effectiveness of building management. 

• Rationalise the accommodation portfolio and provide office space which is suited to modern 
ways of working. 

• Review of Commercial and Community Building portfolios to align them with Council priorities 
and value for money objectives 

(1)  ASSETS STRATEGY 
 

Original End Date: Dec-2008 
End date last month: Dec-2008 

Current End Date: Dec-2008 Original Budget: £2319k 
Revised Budget: £3063k  

Spend to date: £349.6k  
Forecast spend:£2545k (£518k 
variation carried over to 2007/08) 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

A A A G G G G 

Project Sponsor:  
Andrew Travers 
 
Project Manager: 
Dinesh Kotecha 
 

 
CORPORATE MANAGEMENT OF PROPERTY 
 

• A report recommending the transfer of management responsibility of the operational property assets 
from Directorates to Corporate Property Services, was approved by the Executive on 12th September 
2006.   

 

• A new communications role has been established to ensure continuous and clear communications 
throughout the project and liaise with Key Stakeholders across the Council to take Corporate 
Management of Property forward.  This additional resource has enabled an evaluation of the Helpdesk’s 
performance and user satisfaction. Feedback from staff and customers has been positive. 

 

• The Helpdesk report writer is now fully installed and management information is in the process of being 
extracted and analysed. An initial assessment of backlog of maintenance and compliance issues has 
been made across the portfolio.  Progress has been made with Raindrop who have agreed to address 
issues about support for the report writer.   

 
 

P
a
g
e
 7

1



 

Page 56 

Value for Money Stream Board 

(1)  ASSETS STRATEGY 
 CONT.  
 

ACCOMMODATION STRATEGY 
 

• Refurbishment of Alexandra House is continuing to timescale.  A Capital bid has been submitted in the 
Business Planning process in relation to refurbishment of 40 Cumberland Road using the new office 
model established in River Park House.  

 

• Work is continuing to establish future accommodation requirements and complete the vacation of 
buildings (Town Halls and Civic Centre) from Phase 1. 

 
Timescale:  

• Timescales for the refurbishment of 40 Cumberland Road are not known.  This is now subject to Capital 
bid thus work is unlikely this financial year.  Decant space needs to be identified.   

 
PORTFOLIO REVIEWS 

 

• PIDs have been prepared for reviews of Commercial and Community Buildings portfolios.  The timescale 
for reporting is March 2007 and  Executive on 31st October 2006 respectively.  

 
 

P
a

g
e
 7

2



 

Page 57 

 

Value for Money Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES 

• To deliver Gershon recommended efficiencies in terms of cashable and non-cashable savings. 

• To achieve a target of £2m (£3m stretch target) savings over 2005/7 (£2m cashable, £1m non 
cashable). 

• To deliver against National Procurement Strategy milestones and deliver procurement objectives. 

• To ensure the Council’s Procurement Strategy is updated, published and embedded. 

• To develop a best practice model for the provision of temporary staff and permanent recruitment. 
 
Analysis of annual procurement spend (2004/5) on goods and services has identified key areas for efficiency 
review. These are Bought in Legal Services, Temporary Accommodation, Training Consultants, Marketing 
and Communications and Transport Services. 

(2)  PROCUREMENT 
 PROGRAMME  

Original End Date: Apr-2007 
End date last month: Apr-2007 

Current End Date: Apr-2007 Project Budget: N/A.  £200k savings achieved in 2005/6; £800k expected in 
2006/7 from the new agency contract; Projected shortfall of £1m anticipated to 
be achieved through new efficiency review projects. 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

R R R R A A R 

Project Sponsor:  
Anne Bristow 
 
Project Manager:  
Michael Wood 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY  
 
Exception Report 

 

• The September Procurement Project Board was cancelled due to annual leave resulting in a lack of 
attendees.  

• Management information is being generated globally and by directorate/BU by Hays and should be 
available week beginning 9 October.  This will provide information on number of agency placements 
and charge (£).  This will be logged as a regular request and timed to tie in with this highlight report.  
This will provide more up to date information that is available at any time on SAP as, although there is 
now a better flow of invoices, there will always be inherent delays.  

• Savings originally identified have either, failed to produce the expected savings, or the savings have 
been put against budget reductions. A paper was presented to CEMB at the beginning of October 
setting out options to deal with the current issues.  Following discussion at CEMB it was agreed that a 
further review of the Procurement programme and processes will be undertaken.  The Head of 
Procurement will be developing a briefing paper on the Transport Procurement Project for Members 
which will be reported to VfM Stream Board.   

•  
 

P
a
g
e
 7

3



 

Page 58 

Value for Money Stream Board 

(2) PROCUREMENT 
 PROGRAMME CONT. 

DETAIL:  
 

Transport Services 

• Project team meetings and Project Board meetings have taken place in this period.  A revised PID has 
been circulated for comments. The deadline for the PQQ return has now expired and 27 returns have 
been received and are currently being evaluated. 
 

Training Consultants 

• PID to be bought to eh November PPB 
 
Marketing and Communications – Reporting to Customer Focus Board 

• Spend analysis is currently being undertaken on all external printing  works. Progress to be reported 
back to December PPB 
 

Energy. 
 

• New contract to be entered into in November. 
 
Directors Reports 

• No Directors reports have been received to date. CPU to follow up and issue guidance to directorates. 
  
New Wins- carried forward from August PPB. 

• New areas for savings have been identified as 

• Social service care 

• Telecommunications 

• Voltage optimiser 

• FM Contracts 
 

 

Value for Money Stream Board 

P
a

g
e
 7

4



 

Page 59 

Value for Money Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES 
The project will implement the action plan developed in response to the Audit Commission assessment of 
the Use of Resources block of the CPA completed in October 2005.  The aims include: 

• To achieve an overall level 4 criteria of the Key Lines of Enquiry in September 2006 

• To improve from level 2 to levels 3 and 4 on value for money and internal control respectively. 

• To improve from level 3 to level 4 on financial standing, financial reporting and financial management. 

• To show progress on District Audit recommendations from September 2005 by April 2006. 

(3)  USE OF RESOURCES 

Original End Date: Dec-06 Current End Date: Dec-06 Project Budget: N/A – all activities delivered by current staff establishment with 
no additional revenue costs. 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G A G G G G 

Project Sponsor:  
Gerald Almeroth 
 
Project Manager:  
Kevin Bartle 
 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 

• The project will implement the Use of Resources Action Plan. 

• A report with the revisions to the efficiency review methodology was presented to the value for money 
stream board in August.  An efficiency review in benefits and local taxation has begun and additional 
recommendations for reviews include learning disabilities and street cleaning.  The report will go to 
management board on Oct 24th. 

• The Use of Resources self assessment has been submitted in mid September and will also be audited in 
October. 

• Results of the Use of Resources and Value for Money will be known in December 2006 but will not be 
published until February 2007. 

• The partnership list has been requested by the audit commission as evidence for the use of resources. 
The list needs to be updated by member services. 

 
Timescales:  

• The review of effectiveness and costs of debt recovery was due to be completed by March 2006.  This 
was pushed back to July/August 2006 but has not yet been completed.  An exception report is required 
for the next UOR meeting on debt recovery. 

 

P
a
g
e
 7

5



 

Page 60 

 

Value for Money Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES 

• To identify the reasons for Haringey’s BLT service appearing to be a high cost service in relation to 
similar Local Authorities.  

• To establish/verify current cost, performance and productivity levels and to make comparison to similar 
Local Authorities and the wider market place. Make recommendations for cost reduction, and/or 
improved performance/productivity, if applicable. 

• To examine the correlation between cost and performance and to establish whether high cost is a factor 
in achieving a high performing service.  

• To establish current and predicted volumes of work and the optimum resource levels required to handle 
them and to review the current staffing structure to reflect the current and predicted future need. (This 
will be referenced to the Council’s desired CPA Use of Resources and VFM scores) 

• To examine the performance of Customer Services and the CITS provision to the BLT service in terms of 
cost and quality. Where appropriate make recommendations to improve the quality of service received. 

• To identify other models for service provision (added by VFM stream board) 

(4)  BENEFITS & LOCAL 
 TAXATION VFM 
 REVIEW 

Original End Date: February 2007 Current End Date: February 2007 Project Budget: N/A – Project being undertaken within existing resources 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G G G G A 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Paul Ellicott  
 
Project Manager:  
Jaine Le Cornu 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
The purpose of the project is to carry out a Value for Money (VFM) review of Benefits and Local Taxation 
(BLT). The Audit Commission VFM profiles identify Haringey Council’s BLT service as high cost in relation 
to our neighbours. The project will assist in verifying the source data, addressing the Council's efficiency and 
value for money agenda and will contribute to the Use of Resources block of the CPA.  
 
The review started in September and this is the first Project Highlight Report covering the period 1 – 30th 
September 2006. 
 
The key activities undertaken during the period are outlined below: 

• Initial project documentation including Project Brief and draft Project Plan signed-off by Project Board 

• Service self assessment completed and returned to Project Manager  

• Initial interviews with relevant staff undertaken. 

• Internal financial and performance data/information for BLT and Customer Services identified and 
requests made for relevant documents.  

P
a

g
e
 7

6



 

Page 61 

Value for Money Stream Board 

(4) BENEFITS AND 
LOCAL  TAXATION 
VFM REVIEW CONT. 

 

 

• Existing external financial and performance benchmarking material identified 

• Customer survey activity identified. 
 
Risks:  

• Lack of quality benchmarking data.  Informal contacts will be used if information is not being made 
available.   

P
a
g
e
 7

7



 

Page 62 

 

Value for Money Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTON / OBJECTIVES 
Business Intelligence (BI)  

• To provide management information (MI) on the type, value, term, product category and financial value of 
all contracts. To also capture information on health and safety, equalities, BME/SME, risk, performance 
and contract monitoring. 

Implement the Contract Management System (CMS)  

• To act as a document depository for all contracts over £5K 

• To provide a tool to send out tenders and deal with incoming bids, providing an on-line capability for the 
evaluation of tenders and effective communication with suppliers and users. 

SAP Upgrade ERP 2005 

• Deliver an as-is upgrade from SAP R3 4.6c to My SAP ERP 2005 
Transactional Efficiency 

• Reengineer back office processes across the council to increase efficiency and value for money for our 
customers.   

(5)  TRANSACTIONAL 
 EFFICIENCY.  
 

Original End Date: 
BI: 1-Aug-06 
CMS: 5-Dec-06 
Upgrade: 31-Oct-06 

Current End Date: 
BI: Not achieved, new date TBC 
CMS: 5-Dec-06 
Upgrade: 31-Oct-06 

Project Budget: £500k 
(upgrade & transactional 
efficiency) 

Spend to date: £51.946k 
Profiled budget to date: 
£45.741k 

CMS 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

A R G G G A A 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Andrew Travers 
 
Project Managers:  
Ian Andrews / Jane West / 
Kamla Chetty / Julia McClure 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY  
 
CMS 

• The cFolder resource from Logica came on site on the 14th September to carry out a demo of cFolders. 
Access has been provided to the project team for them to be in a position to become familiar and 
commence work in this area of the system. 

• We are on track for the completion of the priority scripts for CMS (eTendering) estimated completion is 
the 8th October with less priority ones being completed during testing. Two resources have been 
identified to support the test manager in the production of testing material, and to also commence work 
on training material for CMS in readiness for the phased roll out in 2007. 

• The Change Management workshop went ahead on the 24th August and identified areas of the business 
that CMS would affect. A communications Plan was drafted and has been agreed. Work has commenced 
on communications going out to the business and meetings have been arranged. 

 

P
a

g
e
 7

8



 

Page 63 

 

Value for Money Stream Board 

(5)  TRANSACTIONAL 
 EFFICIENCY CONT.  
 
 
Business Intelligence 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

R R R G G R A 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Upgrade  

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

A G A G A A A 

 

Risks/Issues:  

• Due to the project Team becoming more familiar with the CMS System, there are various changes that 
are needed to ensure that it meets requirements of the business, there are also requirements from the 
business that were not specified in the Blueprint, due to this both Logica’s and Haringey’s Project 
Managers will be drafting a change / issues log with priorities, which will need to be agreed at the Board. 

 
 

BI 
Timescales / Issues/Risks:  

• The work on the standard 10 reports has been completed as far as it can. Validation of the data extracted 
into the reports has not been possible due to the problems encountered with the BW PRD server. 
Documentation has been provided by LogicaCMG to enable the FST to understand the build of info-
providers (the way data is stored in BW for compiling reports). This documentation together with skills 
gained from external training courses should enable internal FST staff to undertake BI report 
development with reduced input from LogicaCMG in the future. 

• A deadline of 24th August was set for LogicaCMG to produce a plan, should SAP be unable to resolve the 
issue of data transfer from the R3 PRD server to the BW PRD server. This plan was put into place and 
three options to resolve the problem identified. Option 1 was SAP could fix the issue; Option 2 was that 
the data would be transferred in small chunks (labour intensive). The most radical was a complete rebuild 
of the BW server if options 1 & 2 failed. Option 3 had to be implemented. 

• The rebuild has begun and a plan is being drafted by Mark Tindall to schedule the completion of this 
work. It is anticipated that a completion date of 25th September is envisaged.  

• Due to the technical difficulties with the data extraction and server rebuild, the scheduled go-live did not 
materialise on the 1st August, a new date will be agreed once the rebuild has been finalised. 

 
 

UPGRADE 

• The new test environment has been released to Finance and Procurement to commence user 
acceptance testing (UAT), which is progressing well.  

 

P
a
g
e
 7

9



 

Page 64 

Value for Money Stream Board 

(5)  TRANSACTIONAL 
 EFFICIENCY CONT.  
 
 
 
Transactional Efficiency 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

R N N N N N N 

 

 
Timescales / Issues:  

• HR have been unable to run payroll which has meant that the HR module has not been released for 
testing.  Logica has assigned key resources to resolve these problems and there has been progress.  
Testing has not however been able to commence in this area and the project is now two weeks behind 
schedule.  Logica are however fairly confident that we should have a system by 20th October to 
commence testing. 

 
TRANSACTIONAL EFFICIENCY  

• This project has been placed on hold until further notice. 
 
 

 
 
 
 

P
a

g
e
 8

0



 

Page 65 

SECTION 8 – CUSTOMER FOCUS STREAM BOARD 

Customer Focus Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 

• To transition support of the infrastructure delivered by the Tech Refresh programme from the project 
team to permanent staff 

• To outsource the Networks and Security element to a new managed service provider and to purchase 3rd 
party software tools as required by the service management design 

• To design processes and develop role definitions to deliver a user support and infrastructure 
maintenance service based where applicable on ITIL recommendations. 

• To design an organisational structure that encapsulates the defined roles and processes, utilising existing 
resources as much as possible to fill the new structure and recruiting additional skilled resources where 
necessary. 

 

(1)  INSOURCING ICT 
 

LEVEL 1 PROJECT 

Original End Date: Dec 2006 
End date last month: Dec 2006 

Current End Date: Dec 2006 Project Budget: £6.435m Committed spend to date: £3.336m 
(expected) 
Forecast Spend: £6.045m 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G A G G G 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Davina Fiore 
 
Project Manager: 
Lidia Lewis 

 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
The Programme continues to progress within time, cost and quality tolerances allowing the overall 
programme RAG status to continue at Green.  The contributing factors to the overall status are highlighted 
below. 

 

Timescale:   

While there are some concerns regarding the acknowledged tight timescale for external recruitment and 
possible pressure on the target completion date for legacy environment decommissioning, the overall end 
date for the programme is still viable and therefore the programme timescale RAG status remains at Green. 
 

Budget:   

Continuing detailed analysis of the programme’s projected budget outcome for reporting to the Board at the 
Board meeting of 19th October as previously agreed.  In the meantime the programme budget RAG status 
continues at Amber. 

 

P
a
g
e
 8

1



 

Page 66 

Customer Focus Stream Board 

(1)  INSOURCING ICT 
 CONT. 
 

Resources:   

One outcome of the ring-fencing process is that a number of engineers were lost from the Legacy 
Environment Decommissioning (Green) team – the resulting resourcing shortfall has been partly and 
temporarily mitigated by transferring engineers from other ITS teams, but the situation needs to be 
monitored.  The Procurement stream has identified a potential resource squeeze in the face of ongoing 
diversion of stream resource to support another high-profile Council initiative, but this is being reviewed and 
the outcome is not yet certain.  Given the uncertainty and the low impact on the programme overall, the 
programme resources RAG status continues at Green. 

 

Issues:   

All issues are being satisfactorily managed, thus the programme issues RAG status remains at Green. 

 

Risks:   

Overall risks are being managed satisfactorily through their mitigation plans, despite a slightly higher level of 
concern within the Service Delivery stream, and therefore the programme risks RAG status continues at 
Green. 

 

A key success in this reporting period was the final signing of the contract with Computacenter for supply 
and support of the Service Management Tool (Infra).  While agreeing of Terms & Conditions was a long, 
drawn-out process, it was thought to be coming to a satisfactory conclusion at the time of the last Board 
highlight report.  Unfortunately, at the last minute Computacenter raised an issue that jeopardized getting the 
contract signed within the GCat agreement by 30th September.  Perseverance by the ITS Service Delivery 
Manager and IT Procurement Manager in negotiations with Computacenter finally succeeded in resolving 
the issue and getting the contract signed just in time.  See the section “Key Activities in this reporting period” 
below for more details of this. 

 

 

P
a

g
e
 8

2



 

Page 67 

 

Customer Focus Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 

• The Customer Service Strategy aims to ensure that 80% of contacts with customer services (including 
the website and automated telephone lines) will be resolved at the first point of contact and that access 
will be offered across more Council services, working towards 80% of all customer contacts. 

 

(2)  CUSTOMER 
 SERVICES 
 STRATEGY 

Original End Date: March 2006 
End date last month: March 2009 

Current End Date: March 2009 Project Budget: Development work is funded from mainstream funding and the 
net revenue effect is nil. 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

R A A G G A A 

Project Sponsor:  
Jane Waterhouse 
 
Project Manager: 
Carla Segel 

 
 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
 

• The partial fix for Parking Permits is in place at CSCs.  An Exception Report will be presented to 
Customer Focus Stream Board. 

• An Exception Report on ‘customer present’ ePayments will be presented to Customer Focus Stream 
Board. 

• Agreement to proceed has not been reached with HALS. An Exception Report will be presented to 
Customer Focus Stream Board. 

• Customer Services will book Pest Control appointments from Monday 9th October. 

• The go-live date for Enforcement has been brought forward four weeks to the 1st November to reflect the 
virement received. 

• Homes For Haringey requested that the deepening of their implementation project be put on hold due to 
financial constraints and the need for user buy-in of their IT system to ensure reliable data would be 
available to Customer Services.   

• The Siebel Development Release 3 project is on schedule for delivery as planned on 23rd October.  The 
revised business case and plans for Release 4 have been agreed with Senior Management and work is 
underway. 

 
Achievements 

• Development of the first handover to back office via Siebel email functionality for the PEPPS service.  
This function merges customer information collected within the service request into a template, replacing 
dual keying into an eForm or Outlook email. 

• ACD changes delivered to prepare for future implementations and better reflect service groupings. 

• Home Connections virement received. 
 

P
a
g
e
 8

3



 

Page 68 

 

Customer Focus Stream Board 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION/OBJECTIVES 
To help set and instigate a Customer Focus agenda for Haringey, ensuring that customers are at the heart of 
service design and delivery through: 
 

• Getting Haringey to be better outward focussed 

• Enabling bottom-up involvement in developing and actioning change 

• Getting back to basics and getting them right 

• Working towards a strategic, coherent and cohesive approach 
 
Current pilot projects are the WOW! Awards, ICS Staff awards Programme and the Customer Focus 
Network 
 

(3)  CUSTOMER 
 FOCUS PROJECTS 

Original End Date: 31 March 2007 
End date last month: 31 March 2007 

Current End Date: 31 March 2007 Project Budget: Not applicable.  There is no dedicated capital budget for 
Customer Focus.  All costs for pilot projects are being met from revenue 
budgets. 

S
ta

tu
s
 

T
h

is
 

M
o

n
th

 

S
ta

tu
s
 

L
a

s
t 

M
o

n
th

  

T
im

e
s
c

a
le

 

B
u

d
g

e
t 

R
e

s
o

u
r

c
e

s
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 

R
is

k
s
 

G G G G G G A 

 
Project Sponsor:  
Justin Holliday  
 
Project Manager: 
Chris McLean  
 

MANAGEMENT SUMMARY 
 
WOW! Awards 
 
225 nominations were made within the first three months of the pilot – a response much better than even 
highest expectations.   Only the very exceptional are being forwarded to the WOW! organisation for 
consideration.  Both of the first two submitted were given WOW! Awards – presented to the winning staff by 
the Leader on 6th October. A further 3 have since been submitted and we are awaiting the outcome. 
Given the scheme’s success, a report recommending corporate roll out and draft procedures will be 
prepared earlier than scheduled, hopefully before Christmas.  
 
ICS Awards programme 
 
The pilot was launched on 25th September and the application process is underway. All preparation to run 
the pilot has been completed and formal briefing sessions are scheduled. The need to explore a contingent 
bid for post pilot funding has been flagged with the Head of OD+L.  
 

P
a

g
e
 8

4



 

Page 69 

Customer Focus Stream Board 

(3)  CUSTOMER 
 FOCUS PROJECTS 
 CONT. 

Customer Focus Network  
 
This too was formally launched on 25th September.  Membership will be expanded to include those involved 
in the ICS Awards pilot  
This is the most ambitious of the three pilot projects and the one most dependant upon the active interest 
and support of services, which to date have been extremely disappointing. I need both senior and middle 
managers to help promote and push this and I will particularly mention this point on 17th October when 
Customer Focus will be debated by CEMB.  
 
Risks:  
Engaging the organisation and lack of corporate clout to help achieve this. The active interest and support of 
the Customer Focus Stream Board has been sought.   This especially applies to the Customer Focus 
Network project as well as the more general brief of Customer Focus.  Customer Focus is to be discussed at 
CEMB on 17th October 06 and will attempt to address this risk of non-engagement.   
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

P
a
g
e
 8

5



Page 86

This page is intentionally left blank



  

1 of 20 

    
          Agenda Item   

 

 EXECUTIVE                                                     On  21 November 2006 
 

 

 
Report title:  The Council’s Performance – September 2006 
 

 
Report of:  The Chief Executive and Acting Director of Finance  
 

Ward(s) affected:  All  
  

Report for: Key Decision    

 
1. Purpose 
 
1.1 To set out an exception report on the finance and performance monitoring for 

September 2006 using the balanced scorecard format.  
 

 
2. Introduction by Executive Member for Finance (Cllr Toni Mallett) 
 
2.1 I am pleased to report a balanced financial position and this is now rated as green. This 

demonstrates that significant progress has been made since last month. 
 
2.2 I have arranged a series of budget monitoring meetings with The Children’s Service, 

Social Services and Environment as I want to be assured that the monies committed in 
the provisional budget plans meet borough needs and manifesto commitments.  

 
Introduction by Executive Member for Organisational Development and Performance 
Management (Cllr Dhiren Basu) 
 
2.3 In September, 72% of indicators are on target or close to the end of year target. In 

addition 69% of indicators have maintained or improved performance since the end of 
last year. 

 
2.4 My colleagues and I are still disappointed with performance as regards NEETS, rent 

collection, processing children’s act complaints and the number of call centre calls 
answered within 15 seconds. Clearly work still needs to be done in these areas and I 
will be working alongside officers to make sure the necessary steps are taken. 

 

3.  Recommendations 
 
3.1 To note the report. 
 
3.2 To agree virements set out in section 14. 
 
 

Agenda Item 8Page 87



  

2 of 20 

Report authorised by:  Dr Ita O'Donovan – Chief Executive 
 

Contact officers:  John Hardy – Head of Finance – Budgeting, Projects and Treasury  
                               Telephone 020 8489 3726 
                              
                               Margaret Gallagher – Performance Manager 
                               Telephone 020 8489 2553 
 

Head of Legal Services Comments 
There are no legal implications 

4.    Executive Summary 
 
4.1 This report sets out the routine financial and performance monitoring for September 

2006 in the balanced scorecard format.    
 
4.2 In summary the balanced scorecard shows that for the excellent service perspective  

69% of indicators are on target or close to the end of year target at the end September. 
For 24 of the 36 (67%) customer focus measures, performance targets are being met or 
close to being met. For financial health 22 of the 31 measures achieved amber or green 
status meaning for 71% of indicators performance levels are achieving target or being 
maintained at an acceptable level. Our organisational development /capacity indicators 
including staff survey results show that for 17 of the 18 (94%) measures, performance is 
at or close to expected levels.  

 
4.3 Overall 72% of indicators are achieving or close to achieving target. In addition 69% of 

indicators have maintained or improved performance since the end of last year. 
 
4.4 The scorecard appendix also includes for the first time some estimated top quartile data 

so that progress can be assessed not only against the targets we set but in terms of 
how we compare with others and how close we are to attaining what we ultimately are 
aiming to achieve. 

 
4.5 In summary, based on the September position, the revenue budget shows a balanced 

position.  Net variations of £1.1m made up of the cost pressures in Social Services 
budgets of £2.4m, Asylum Seekers of £0.9m, and underspends of £2m on 
homelessness and £0.2m in Chief Executives Service, will be offset by a proposed 
virement from the service development / contingency for 2006/07. 

 

 
5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable) 
 
5.1 None 
 

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report: 
     Budget management papers 
     Service PI returns including unit cost data 
 

Strategic Implications 
This report monitors Haringey’s position in relation to a number of indicators that will be 
used to assess the Council in the Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA). 

Page 88



  

3 of 20 

Performance against these measures will determine Haringey’s rating in 2007. The 
report also gives an indication of the level and quality of services delivered on the 
ground. 

 

Financial Implications  
 

In summary, based on the September position, the revenue budget shows a balanced 
position.  Net variations of £1.1m made up of the cost pressures in Social Services 
budgets of £2.4m, Asylum Seekers of £0.9m, and underspends of £2m on 
homelessness and £0.2m in Chief Executives Service, will be offset by a proposed 
virement from the service development / contingency for 2006/07.  

 

       The aggregate capital projected position in 2006/07 is currently projected to under 
spend by £0.2m.  

Legal Implications  
There are no specific legal implications arising from this report, however the response 
rate for freedom of information requests although improving still needs to improve 
further to ensure we meet the statutory time limit. 

 

Equalities Implications 
Whist equalities is a central thread throughout out the council’s performance, this report 
does highlight some areas with positive results around equalities issues but also some 
areas where performance needs improvement. For example the pressure on services in 
Physical and Learning Disabilities combined with the TPCT efficiencies is an area of 
concern, however as this report details the strategy of providing services to help people 
to stay living in the community will be of benefit to people from black and minority ethnic 
groups who are high users of community based services. On a positive note, black and 
minority ethnic people are high service users of both parks and libraries where we are 
exceeding targets.  

 
 

Consultation 
The scorecard includes a number of resident and staff perception measures and shows 
how well the Council is performing in this area. The results show the level of satisfaction 
with the Council currently and should provide a baseline as well as informing action to 
improve satisfaction levels. 

 

 
 
 
 
7.   Background 
 
7.1 This is the regular finance and performance monitoring report for September 

2006.  It is based on the financial monitoring reports prepared for the budget 
management meetings held on 26 October for period 6 and the service 
submission of the basket of performance indicators that have been agreed for 
2006/07. 

 
7.2 The reporting is in the form of a balanced scorecard. The scorecard looks at 

performance across four dimensions: service excellence, financial health, 

Page 89



  

4 of 20 

customer focus and organisational development. The scorecard consists of 
corporate and service performance measures. 

 
7.3 The report includes routine monitoring of unit costs so that performance and 

costs reflect activity enabling us to make judgements around whether we deliver 
value for money services.  

 
7.4 For 2006/07 the indicators contained within the balanced scorecard include key 

threshold indicators used in the Council’s Comprehensive Performance 
Assessment (CPA) and those which reflect the Council’s priorities including 
some key local indicators for the Council.  

 
7.5 Performance data is shown in Appendix 1. Progress continues to be tracked on 

a monthly and year to date position against the target using a traffic light 
annotation where: 

 

• green: =  target achieved / performance better than planned 

• amber: = just below target 

• red: = target not achieved / below expectation 

In addition, trend arrows depict progress since the last financial year, so whilst 
an indicator may receive a red traffic light for not achieving target, it will show an 
upward trend arrow if performance had improved on the previous year’s outturn. 
Between them, the lights and arrows indicate current progress and predict the 
likely annual position.  
 

7.6 The scorecard appendix also includes for the first time some estimated top 
quartile data so that progress can be assessed not only against the targets we 
set but in terms of how we compare with others and how close we are to 
attaining what we ultimately are aiming to achieve. 

 
 

8 Service Positions on Delivering Service Excellence 
 
8.1 For the excellent services arm of the scorecard 54% of indicators are shown as 

Green, 15% Amber and 31% Red, with 36 out of 55 showing an improvement 
or maintained performance compared with 2005/06 outturns. 

 
 
8.2  Children and Young People 
 
8.2.1 Based on the September position the children and young people’s spend is 

anticipated to be within budget at the year end, excluding the asylum issue.  
The current projected net cost of the asylum service in this financial year is 
£0.9m, down from £1.7m last month.  

 

8.2.2 In relation to Looked After Children (LAC), there is a cost pressure of  £0.3m.  
This will be contained by under spending on both commissioning and non-
commissioning areas and managers have been made aware of the need to 
restrict spending on all areas wherever possible. Currently LAC numbers are 
400 (excluding unaccompanied asylum seeking minors), which is an increase 

Page 90



  

5 of 20 

of 9 compared with the end of August.  The budget assumption was 365 by the 
end of March 2007. 

8.2.3 The main change since last month relates to the commissioning costs of 
looked after children that have reduced by £120,000 to £251,000 from that 
reported in period 5. This has been achieved through a review of expensive 
placements at the newly-formed resources panel. Planned actions in relation 
to the five children who could be moved into more appropriate and less 
expensive accommodation, identified at the September meeting, are being 
implemented. One of these children has now returned home. Further reviews 
at the October panel have identified additional children who can move. The 
total savings from these placements is estimated at £300,000 in 2006/07 and a 
full-year saving of about £600,000. The impact of new placements and other 

changes will also continue to be closely monitored.    

8.2.4 The asylum position shows a gross shortfall of £3.5m and relates to both 
children and adults. This is largely covered by a contingency of £1.3m and 
assumed special case grant claims for 2005/06 of £0.8m and for 2006/07 of 
£0.5m, leaving a net overspend of £0.9m. The previous forecast was based on 
an assumed successful claim for ‘special circumstances’ grant for 2005/06 
costs of £463k.  However, following a meeting of London Councils where 
funding proposals from the DfES and the Home Office were considered and 
supported, it is anticipated that the additional Home Office grant for 2005/06 
will be an additional £371k above that anticipated. Proposed changes to the 
funding arrangements from the DfES could also mean an increase in grant of 
about £106k in 2006/07 although this is not yet factored in. 

8.2.5 In terms of a special grant claim for 2006/07, there is no clear indication 
whether or not this level of additional funding will be made available again. A 
claim for 2006/07 will be submitted for which an estimate of £500k is included.  

8.2.6 Previous reports have highlighted a possible issue in respect of national 
insurance contributions for peripatetic music teachers. This follows on from a 
review by the HM Revenue & Customs (HMRC) where incorrect treatment has 
been suggested for which back-dated contributions for 6 years, plus interest 
and a possible significant penalty may have to be paid. This potential claim (of 
up to £0.5m) was strongly opposed and, following negotiations with HMRC, it 
has been agreed that the backdating will apply from April 2006 only, with an 
estimated cost of about £80,000 per annum. 

8.2.7 As previously reported the service have been working on a revision to the 
three year capital programme which will take account of slippage and other 
factors. The capital budget is currently projected to be £0.7m above budget 
due to the overspend on Children’s Centres phase 1 of £0.9m less an 
underspend on formulaic schemes of £0.2m. This assumes the application of 
identified funding of £1.611m to the programme for which Executive approval 
will be sought in due course.  

Performance highlights for the Children and Young People's Service are as follows. 

8.2.8 All 59 statements of special educational need, excluding exceptions, issued in 
the year to September were prepared in the 18 week timescale. When 
exceptions are included 59 out of 68 (86.8%) statements were issued within 18 
weeks, exceeding the 85% target. The good performance continues with both 
parts of the indicator exceeding target.  

Page 91



  

6 of 20 

8.2.9 As at September the percentage of 16-19 year olds who were Not in 
Education, Employment or Training (NEETs) in Haringey reduced to 15.9% 
from 16.7% in August against a target of 12.9%.  The 16-18 cohort grew by 
6.8% in September compared with September ’05 but the number whose 
status is ‘not known’ has increased to 33.6%. The increase in the figures is in 
part due to the new classification system which now bases NEETs on their 
place of residence and an increasing trend of post 16 drop out from education 
and training.  Actions are in place to comprehensively analyse the reasons for 
drop out with the post 16 cohort and to review support mechanisms to get 
them back on track.  An alternative range of pathways 14-19 are also being 
put into place to aid retention, particularly for the more vulnerable young 
people. This measure has also been put forward as a stretch target in our 
Local Area Agreement. 

8.2.10 Children with three or more placements reduced to 10.8% of children looked 
after in September exceeding our 13% target. This figure remains inside the 
best performance banding and in line with our 13% target.  

8.2.11 All 25 reviews of children on the register due in September were completed in 
timescale. (BV162). Excellent performance (100%) has been sustained in this 
area in the year to date with robust systems in place to ensure this continues. 

8.2.12 There was one adoption in September (BV163) and six in the year to date. 
The service is on track to achieve a further twelve with all but four of these 
children already placed with their proposed adopters. In addition there are at 
least six special guardianship orders linked to present proceedings which 
should be granted in the next six months making a possible total of 24 
adoptions by year end. 

8.2.13 Performance on responding to Children’s Act complaints remains below target 
with 68% of stage 1 complaints received in the year so far responded to within 
the 14 day timescale against a target of 80%. However for Children’s and NHS 
complaints new statutory timescales have been introduced from 1st September 
’06 which will reduce the stage 1 timescale to 10 days with a possible 
extension to 20 days. Likewise the timescale for stage 2 changes to 25 
working days from 28 with a possible extension to 65 days, Provisional targets 
have been agreed with Children’s and Social Services of 80% and 90% for 
stage 1 and 40% and 90% for stage 2. Performance will be reported against 
these targets as from October. 

8.2.14 The cost of service per child for both play, £3,483 and early years, £16,460 are 
both above the targets of £2,763 and £14,606 respectively. Both of these are 
due to lower ‘take-up’ than assumed in the original target (targets assumed too 
high figures and the capacity has been reduced as a result of building 
refurbishment work). The target for play schemes also included the cost of the 
summer scheme, which distorts the overall figure. Reviews of both of these 
services are being carried out, with a view to developing benchmarks and 
comparators with other London authorities. 

 

8.3      Environment Services 

 
8.3.1 The projection based on the September position is a balanced budget position. 

The service has now identified measures to contain the previously reported 

Page 92



  

7 of 20 

shortfall in parking income of £500k resulting from the recently reported delays 
in the implementation of CPZ plans and other pressures within the parking 
budget.  A further risk has been identified in connection with non-valid PCNs 
(the Barnet case) and the financial implications arising from potentially not 
being able to recover unpaid tickets, initial revenue impact estimated at about 
£600k. It is proposed to deal with this through the review and adjustment of the 
parking debt provision. Therefore the latest position is that these issues can be 
contained as one-off items in the current year and therefore the budget is 
projected to be balanced.  The impact on future years will be considered as 
part of the budget planning process.  

 
8.3.2 Previously reported other pressures of £100k in Recreation and £200k in 

Streetscene will be managed within these Business Units' currently approved 
budgets.  

 

8.3.3 Capital is currently projected to spend on budget. However, there is a degree 
of risk associated with some of the projects achieving full spend this financial 
year, e.g. the CCTV control room, the parking plan schemes and London 
Cycle Network schemes funded from TfL grant. Some under spends may need 
to be carried forward. However, it is intended to monitor these very carefully to 
ensure that spend is maximised particularly on grant funded schemes by year 
end.         

8.3.4 Parking income recovery target is 61% and actual performance to September 
was at this level. 

8.3.5 The annual projected cost of household waste collection per tonne is now £70 
compared to the target of £72 for 2006/07. The reduction is due to higher 
weight of household waste being collected within existing budgets    

 
 
Performance highlights and issues in Environment are: 
 

8.3.6 22.4% of household waste was recycled or composted in the six months to 
September ’06 exceeding our 22% target for 2006/07. This has resulted from a 
change in the way the figures are calculated from an apportionment system to 
actual tonnage. The change has been applied back to April and for Haringey 
this has had a beneficial effect and led to an increase in the rate of recycling 

8.3.7 The waste tonnage collected for September was maintained at 31 kg per head 
and although higher than expected shows a slight improving trend. Further to 
the on-going investigation, Haringey Accord is addressing non-household 
waste collected out of borough and identification of unknown vehicles that 
have been tipping and allocated to Haringey. It is hoped that this work will 
have a positive impact and the results will be reported on next month.   

8.3.8 Waste collections missed per 100,000 stand in excess of 3,700 in the year to 
date making the target of 130 for the year unobtainable. The August figure was 
very high as a result of the strike but the figure for September is back down to 
usual levels. 

Page 93



  

8 of 20 

8.3.9 August saw 36 out of 45 minor planning applications (80%) determined in 8 
weeks however the year to date, 88% still exceeds our 83% target and beats 
the government target (65%).  

8.3.10 The first phase survey results on street and environmental cleanliness were 
disappointing showing that 41% of our roads had unacceptable levels of litter 
and detritus against a target of 25% for 2006/07. Our 2005/06 performance at 
37% was deterioration on the 32% achieved in 2004/05 and places us 
amongst the worst performing boroughs in London.  

8.3.11 Performance on planning application appeals that have been allowed against 
the authority’s decision to refuse permission improved in September. However 
our performance in the year so far at 45% is outside our 30% target for 
2006/07. This relates to 32 out of 71 cases from April to September. The 
service is revisiting the ‘practice’ of refusing almost all applications for mobile 
phone masts as these are steadily being lost on appeal.  In addition refusals in 
relation to conversions policy are also being looked at. 

8.3.12 The number of seasonally adjusted visits to our sports and leisure centres at 
1.12 million continues to be above the target of 1.08 million. Tottenham Green 
performed strongly in most areas and attendance at White Hart Lane was up 
16%. 

8.3.13 The parks cleanliness index of 85 in the year to September continues to 
exceed the target of 80. Following training, the assessment is now more in line 
with ENCAMs principles.  

8.3.14 The average number of days to repair streetlights was 1.9 days in September 
well inside target of 3.5 days.  

8.3.15 Faults relating to power supply handled by our District Network Operator 
(DNO) - currently EDF – increased in September with the average days to 
repair the fault at 15.5 days for the month. The year to date position has now 
increased  to 15.2 days although still inside the target 20 days. 

8.3.16 There were 62 people killed or seriously injured (KSI) in the period January to 
June ’06, 11 of these in June. With numbers scaled up, there would be more 
people killed and seriously injured than in 2005 although the trend from the 
1994-1998 baseline is improving. Although KSIs in June placed us above 
target the position in the 6 months to June was at 124 KSIs is at the target for 
the calendar year 2006. 

 

8.4    Adults' & Older People's Social Care, Housing 

 
8.4.1 The projected overspend in Social Services is £2.4m and this is £0.5m lower 

than reported last month. The improvements reflect both the application of a 
provision made by the PCT of £0.2m in respect of older people that are 
currently being assessed against the continuing care criteria and may be 
transferred to Health, and some clients in Adults services where services have 
ceased.  There have been no major changes to the other budget areas.  

 
8.4.2 The main elements of the overspend remain largely unchanged from those 

reported in previous months.  These include, the loss of funding from the PCT 

Page 94



  

9 of 20 

of £0.4m in respect of jointly commissioned services and continuing pressures 
in the Adults commissioning budgets in respect of client care packages. 

 
8.4.3 The national context for Social Services is a trend of growth in both the 

demand and complexity of services.  In particular, the numbers of people with 
learning disabilities are predicted to increase in the next decade and in 
Haringey, we have a larger than usual population with mental health needs.  
This has been evidenced by the London Observatory.  The Older People’s 
Service has seen an increase in the numbers with dementia and there have 
been increasing pressures from Health around reducing waiting lists.  The 
current projections for commissioning reflect these pressures. The Adults 
commissioning projections include an overspend of £1.6m of which £0.7m is in 
respect of mental health, £0.5m in respect of physical disabilities and £0.4m in 
respect of learning disabilities.   

 

8.4.4 The main element of the overspend in mental health is in the residential 
placements budgets where there are some 31 clients supported in excess of 
the budget.  There continue to be pressures in the mental health sector with 
reduced funding available in the PCT and performance targets to reduce in-
patient beds. The long term management action for mental health is the 
reconfiguration of supporting people services for mental health service users in 
order to develop more high support services with a focus on active 
rehabilitation and recovery.  The service is also working towards extra care 
supported housing schemes to support older clients.   In physical disabilities 
there has been a growth in demand in terms of both client numbers and levels 
of need.  At period 6, there were 44 clients supported in excess of what the 
budget could pay for, mainly in domiciliary care.  The projected overspend in 
learning disabilities relates to growth in client numbers and slippage in the 
opening of Whitehall Street following refurbishment. 

 
8.4.5 The Social Services budgets continue to be under severe pressure because of 

both demand pressures and reductions in services in the Health sector. These 
are being managed with some success through the management action put in 
place to contain these pressures.  The growth in commissioned services in this 
financial year has been significantly below the underlying trend experienced by 
the council in recent years. 

 
8.4.6  Management action is being taken to try to ensure that these pressures do not 

result in any additional overspend and include, reviews of jointly funded 
expenditure, a freeze on vacant posts and reducing agency staff where there 
would be minimal impact on front line services.  No projections have been 
made for growth in commissioning services between now and the end of the 
financial year.  Given the pressures in the sector, there remains a risk to the 
council that these projections will not be sustained despite the management 
action in place. 

 

8.4.7 Social Services capital is projected to spend £0.9m below budget in this 
financial year. This is due to revised phasing of the budgets for the E-Care 
(£0.6m) and Osborne Grove Older People’s Services (£0.3m) projects.  

8.4.8 The performance appendix reports the latest performance figures on some key 
indicators in Adults' and Older People's services. This shows that: 

Page 95



  

10 of 20 

 

• 74.6% of items of equipment were delivered in 7 working days in September, a 
reduction for the third month running and short of the 88% target. The poor 
performance has been attributed to a number of changes to the staffing 
structure. This performance is now below the IPF average and a number of our 
comparator boroughs are performing in the high nineties.  (BV56/PAF D54). 

 

• 121 adults and older people per 100,000 population were receiving a direct 
payment as of September, short of the 136 target for the month and a decline 
on last years performance (BV201/ PAF C51). Performance on this indicator is 
cumulative with the target of 150 to be achieved by 31 March ’07. Social 
Services DMT have requested an urgent report outlining the issues affecting 
direct payments and the recovery plan to improve performance and achieve 
the target. 

 

• In the year to August there were 77 admissions, when scaled up per 10,000 
population of older people, to residential / nursing care (PAF C72). Current 
performance places Haringey just inside the top banding for this indicator, 
despite being outside our target of 70. The service is taking a closer look at 
this area to understand the increasing trend in admissions since April.  

 

8.4.9 Some areas where we need to sustain focus and improve our performance in 
Adults' and Older People’s services remain:  

 
Acceptable waiting times for assessment- new older clients aged 65+ (BV195) 

• This indicator is the average of the percentage of clients where time from 
initial contact to first contact with the client is less than or equal to 48 hours 
and the percentage where time from first contact to completion of 
assessment is less than or equal to 4 weeks. In September the average of 
these reduced further to 48.8% falling well below the key threshold levels 
for this year of 60% and 70% respectively and our target of 71%. 

 
 

Carers receiving a carer’s break or specific carer’s service (PAF C62) 

• 4% of Carers for Adults and Older People received a carer's break or 
specific carer's service in the year to September against a target of 12%. 
An issue around  counting services for carers has been identified because, 
in common with a number of other authorities, our practice incorporates the 
carer’s assessment with that of the person they care for making it difficult to 
identify  which services belong to the carer and which to the cared for 
person. Staff have been instructed that carers should have their own 
assessment and in the meantime a manual count of panel decisions is 
being undertaken quarterly to give some indication of the support in place 
for carers. 

 
Adults and older clients receiving a review as a percentage of those receiving 
a service (BV55) 

• 54.4% of adults and older clients were recorded as having received a 
review as at September ’06, an improvement on the 43% in April and the 
highest performance of the year so far although still short of the 60% target 
for 2006/07. Most services now have individual action plans to tackle this 
problem with weekly targets set for each service group in the four service 

Page 96



  

11 of 20 

areas. Performance remains well below the IPF average of 65% and the 
worst amongst our comparator boroughs. 

8.4.10 Social Services are in the process of moving from a position of reporting 
performance in rolling year format, to financial year. This will increase the 
accuracy of the data that is being presented and also incorporate the 
improvements that have been achieved so far this year. The elimination of the 
rolling year data will reduce the impact that previous data projects, or 
downturns, will have on current performance and altogether it is believed that 
a more robust and reliable representation of the performance position will be 
achieved.  

8.4.11 The projected improvement on the homelessness general fund budget has 
increased from the £1.6m previously reported to £2m.  This is a financial 
consequence of the successful programme of private sector lease 
procurement and movement of families from short-term bed and breakfast 
accommodation and the favourable grant position on these cases.  

8.4.12 The level and cost of repairs in the HRA are being carefully monitored 
following pressures in this area last year.  Increased costs on gas 
maintenance contracts of £0.9m are being contained within the HRA 
contingency.  There is also a risk that there will be a shortfall in rent income as 
a result of the lower performance on collection set out below, however this is 
partly offset from a lower number of right to buy sales than previously 
estimated.   This will be carefully monitored as the actions to improve 
collection performance are implemented.  The net current projection is an 
overspend of £139k which is mainly as a result of a shortfall of leasehold 
service charge income compared to the budget. 

8.4.13 On HRA capital there is a cost pressure of £1.2m, however this will be 
managed through the over-programming allowance so that the capital budget 
will spend to target.  

 
Performance issues in Housing are as follows: 

 

8.4.14 The cost per nightly rated accommodation at £41.23 is slightly above the 
target of £40.20. The cost per private sector lease has been steadily 
increasing throughout the year and now stands at £873 against a target of 
£842. 

8.4.15 BV213 records households who have been prevented from becoming 
homeless. There were 6 in September and 174 in the year to date which 
scaled up to an annual equivalent falls short of the target of 400 set for 
2006/07. September’s figure is lower owing to the fact that data has yet to be 
input following an IT change. 

8.4.16 The average re-let time of local authority dwellings reduced to 48 days in 
September bringing the year to date position to 55.75 days. It is unlikely that 
the 2006/07 target (27 days) will be achieved.   

 

 

 

Page 97



  

12 of 20 

Rent Collection 

8.4.17 Rent collected as at September (BV66a) is projected at 95.44% of rent due for 
the year against a target of 97.5%. This performance places us in the worst 
quartile, compared to our 2005/06 outturn of 97.4% which placed us in the 
second best quartile. However Housemark quarter 1 benchmarking with other 
ALMOs puts their performance in the second quartile. A new performance 
management regime has been introduced following the creation of specialist 
income collection teams with focus on ensuring that all appropriate action has 
been taken where arrears are increasing.  

8.4.18 The percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks rent arrears increased 
further to 15.51% in September remaining short of our target of 10% for 
2006/07.     

8.4.19 The proportion of local authority homes which were non ‘decent’ as at July ’06 
was 44.5% against a target of 42%. The estimated top quartile for this 
indicator is 21%. 

Repairs 

8.4.20 In September 97.6% of appointments were made and kept based on data 
taken from our IT scheduling system. New performance management systems 
are being introduced to optimise and ensure performance is closer to the 99% 
target of appointments made and kept.  

8.4.21 The average time to complete non-urgent responsive repairs increased  to 14 
days in September against a target of 14 days.  

8.4.22 The percentage of urgent repairs completed within Government time limits 
increased to 95% in September although short of the 97% target. 

 

8.5       Finance 

 

8.5.1 As previously reported the revenue budget has some pressures and variations 
that the directorate are going to contain within the approved budget. The main 
budget pressure is in Property Services regarding a potential £400k under-
achievement of commercial rent income. The shortfall is largely around 
vacancies at Technopark.  Work is being done to market the vacancies as well 
as reviewing the demand for different types of workspace to attract further 
business.  Management action to reduce spend is also being taken and 
therefore the Finance Department as a whole is projected to be on budget.  

8.5.2 The capital budget is projected to spend at budget. 

 
Council Tax and Business Rates 

 

8.5.3 94% of Council tax was collected in September exceeding the 93.75% target 
for the first time this year. Collection in the second quarter has been consistent 
with a year to date position just slightly short of the target at 93.4%. Based on 
the latest estimates of London performance Haringey is now very close to 3rd 
quartile boundary improving from previously bottom quartile performance. 
(BV9) 

Page 98



  

13 of 20 

8.5.4 The collection of business rates in September at 99.3% continues to exceed 
the 99% target placing us amongst the best authorities in London. (BV10) 

Invoice payments (BV8) 

8.5.5 Performance improved in September with 87.75% of invoices paid in 30 days, 
up from 83% in August. Whilst still short of the 92% target performance in the 
year to date is now 85.2%. This is being monitored carefully with services to 
further improve performance. 

Benefits 

8.5.6 The performance for the number of days to process a benefit claim has 
improved from an average of 50 days in April to 42 days in August and 
September although still short of the 36 day target.  Benefits and Local 
Taxation has concentrated on reducing the waiting time between the receipt of 
new claims and their allocation for processing by an Officer.  During the first 
few months of the year a backlog occurred and there were between 350 and 
400 benefit claims awaiting allocation with waiting times of over 20 days.  A 
reduction in the number of outstanding claims has been achieved by an 
increase in staff productivity and process improvements particularly around the 
holding of claims whilst awaiting additional information. The management of 
the New Claims Team has also been strengthened with the appointment of a 
new team manager and a redefining of team leader roles and responsibilities.  
Further planned improvements include introducing mobile working so claims 
can be assessed with the customer present and tackling delayed processes 
such as setting up rent accounts.  

8.5.7 Performance on the accuracy of benefit cases was disappointing in the second 
quarter with 95.6% of cases for which the calculation of benefit due was 
correct, against a target of 99%. Significant improvement of quality and 
accuracy is a key objective for Benefits and Local Taxation. 

8.5.8 Positive progress is being made on the majority of other benefits measures 
putting us on track to achieve the standards set for 2006/07. 

     

8.6 Chief Executive's 

 

8.6.1 The revenue budget is projected to underspend by £0.2m. This is mainly due 
to vacancies and time needed to recruit to posts in OD&L, Members' Services 
and Equalities that is projected to save £0.3m. This is offset by a projected 
overspend of £90k in Legal Services in respect of Local Land Charges income 
where there is now a projected shortfall based on the current housing market 
activity. 

8.6.2 As reported last month there are no capital budget variations reported at this 
stage.  

8.6.3 Visits to our libraries in September equated to just over 10 visits per head of 
population in the year exceeding our target for 2006/07 of 9 visits per head. 
The cost per visit/ interaction to our libraries in the year to date is £2.88 and 
reflects higher expenditure in the early part of the year and a lower number of 

Page 99



  

14 of 20 

visitors. It is expected to fall once the lower level of expenditure later in the 
year is taken into account. 

8.6.4 There were 192 domestic burglaries in September which seasonally adjusted 
and scaled to an annual equivalent is well inside the target with burglaries in 
the year to date (1,202) when seasonally adjusted and scaled to an annual 
equivalent of 2,485 are inside the target of 2,711 for 06/07.  

 

9 Customer Focus  
 
9.1 The September balanced scorecard shows 67% of customer focus indicators on 

or near target including some key measures from the Better Haringey survey. 
  
9.2 Environment directorate has started to collect resident satisfaction data in all the 

areas currently included in the CPA service assessment. Some results are 
included in this report for consideration ahead of the Local Government BVPI 
survey results which will be available in December. The findings are based on 
341 face to face interviews (178 ‘exit interviews’ from Customer Service Centres 
and 163 ‘in street’ interviews in Crouch End Broadway, Wood Green High Road 
and Tottenham High Road) and give some indication of how public perception 
has changed over the past year.  

 
9.3 The results show some encouraging news with the majority of key indicators 

achieving target and showing an improving trend but need to be taken in the 
context of the smaller sample size and the fact that face to face surveys usually 
achieve better results. Confidence intervals have been calculated for each of 
the measures reported so that the precision of the results can be gauged. 
These survey results should not be directly compared with the local government 
BVPI survey results but do give some indication of how perception is changing.   
Some of the key findings are as follows:  

 

• 70% of residents rated the refuse collection service good or very good. 
Performance is marginally better than that reported in the annual residents' 
(TNS) survey and the last BVPI survey in 2003 but this is encouraging given 
the fact that the survey was conducted during the refuse strike. 

• 62% of residents were satisfied with street cleaning exceeding the 55% target 
and showing a significant improvement on figures reported in the annual 
residents' and BVPI survey in 2003.  This is at odds with the BV199 litter and 
detritus results reported earlier. 

• Satisfaction with parks, playgrounds and open spaces at 66% is close to the 
70% target with a net good increase of 16% over waves 4 and 5 of the survey. 

• 62% of residents expressed satisfaction with re-cycling facilities  close to the 
60% target taking account of the +/- 7% confidence interval. It is hoped that the 
roll out of new, improved and expanded recycling over the next few months 
should improve both performance and perception in this area.  

• Satisfaction with local tips or Re-use and Re-cycling centres at 57% was well 
below the 70% target. A return of 40% ‘don’t know’ answers suggests that 
more work needs to be done to promote these centres. Work has already 
begun with further promotion planned for coming months. 

9.4 Performance on complaints handling timescales continues to disappoint with 
only stage 3 reviews hitting target. In September 167 of the 231 (72%) 

Page 100



  

15 of 20 

complaints at stage 1 (local resolution) were responded to within the 10 working 
day timescale against a target of 80%. For the more complex service 
investigation (stage 2), performance improved in September, with 21 out of 25 
(84%) of complaints resolved within the 25 working day timescale.  The year to 
date position of 70% still falls short of the 80% target. Figures exclude Homes 
for Haringey performance which is at similar if not lower levels with 66% and 
69% of stage 1 & 2 complaints responded to within target timescales. 

9.5 In September all 5 stage 3 complaints (independent review) received were 
completed within the 20 working day timescale with 24 out of 25 in the year to 
date.  

9.6 Of Members' enquiries cases closed in September 253 (81%) were handled 
within 10 working days, 83% (1489) of cases in the year to date, both falling 
short of the 90% target.  

9.7 Freedom of Information (FoI) performance in September improved to 73.8% 
bettering the 70% target for the second consecutive month. However only 65% 
of Freedom of Information (FoI) requests were actioned within the 20 day 
timescale in the year to September.  

 

9.8 75.2% of Council wide telephone calls were answered within 15 seconds in 
September, falling slightly short of the 77% target, although the year to date 
position of 78% still exceeds the target.  

 
9.9 Customer Services performance is continuing to cause concern. In September 

performance deteriorated further to just 22.2% of call centre calls answered 
within 15 seconds against a 70% target for the year. In addition, the average 
queuing time in September increased to nearly two minutes from 43 seconds in 
July. With a year to date figure of 1 minute 48 seconds the 40 second target is 
unlikely to be met. The Customer Services improvement plan is now being 
implemented and we expect to see improvement in the coming months. 

 
 
10 Organisational Development/ Capacity 
 
10.1 Some staff survey results were reported in the June report. These have been 

reviewed and a  more representative sample of indicators has now been 
included in the scorecard. 
 
 
Sickness 

10.2 The average number of working days lost to sickness per full time equivalent 
employee in the six months to September is 8.56 days per annum inside our 8.8 
day target and an improvement on last year's outturn of 10.4 days. This will be 
closely monitored during the year to ensure the target is met for the year. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 101



  

16 of 20 

11 Performance Summary 
 
11.1 In summary the balanced scorecard shows that for service delivery 69% of 

indicators are on target or close to the end of year target as at the end of 
September. For 24 of the 36 (67%) customer focus measures, performance 
targets are being met or close to being met. For financial health 22 of the 31 
measures achieved green or amber status, meaning for 71% of indicators 
performance levels are achieving target or being maintained at an acceptable 
level. Our organisational development /capacity indicators including the recent 
staff survey results show that for 17 of the 18 (94.4%) measures, performance 
is meeting or close to expectation. Overall 72% of indicators are achieving or 
close to achieving target up from 69% reported in August. In addition 69% of 
indicators have maintained or improved performance since the end of last year 
up from 58% reported in August. 

 
12 Summary - Budget Monitoring 
 
12.1 Overall revenue budget monitoring, based on the September position, shows a 

balanced position overall. A net service variation of £1.1m can be met from the 
service development / contingency set aside in the 2006/07 budget process.  It 
is now proposed to formalise those virements. 

 
12.2 The aggregate revenue projected position in 2006/07 is as shown in the 

following table.    
 

General Fund revenue Approved 
Budget 

Projected 
variation 

 £m £m 

Children and Young 
People   

215.5 0 

Asylum Seekers 0.3 0.9 
Social Services  56.7 2.4 
Housing (1.2) (2.0) 
Environment 51.7 0 
Finance 9.9 0 
Chief Executive's 26.0 (0.2) 

Non-service revenue 7.6 (1.1) 
   
Total 366.5 0.0 

12.3 Executive agreed to fund the one-off pension fund deficit costs in 2006/07 in order 
to facilitate the proposed development of Alexandra Palace on a long lease to 
Firoka.  This was to be funded from the Council’s budget for the operational 
deficit, which would no longer be fully required.  The lease agreement has not yet 
been finalised and therefore the ability to fund this one-off cost in full this year will 
need to be reviewed.   

12.4 The Bernie Grant Centre Partnership is a company limited by guarantee and a 
registered charity established in September 2006 to build a theatre and arts 
centre, including education and training facilities, on a disused site adjacent to 
Tottenham Town Hall. The Council is a member of the company and is 
represented on the Board by the Chief Executive. 

Page 102



  

17 of 20 

12.5 Following demolition and site preparation construction work began in November 
2005 and is due to be completed in July/August 2007 with the centre opening in 
September 2007.  

12.6 The current capital budget for the construction project, which includes setting up 
the operational phase of the centre, is £14,292,700. This is being funded largely 
by four government sponsored agencies with a contribution of £200,000 from the 
Council which represents just over 1% of the budget.  

 
 

 

 
Original 
funding  

    
  £  
1 Millennium Commission 5,850,000 41% 
2 London Development Agency (LDA) 3,500,000 25% 
3 Government Office for London  (ERDF) 3,592,700 25% 
4 Arts Council, England 1,150,000 8% 
5 LB Haringey 200,000 1% 
    
  14,292,700 100% 

 
 

12.7 Although construction on site is now progressing satisfactorily there was a 
significant delay during the early part of the works which has had a significant cost 
impact. Together with the effect of unforeseen additional works to the listed 
building incorporated within the project and ground conditions this has resulted in 
current budget projections showing a potential over spend of approximately 
£1.5m.  

 
12.8 The project has carried out a thorough review of all costs and budgets and has 

also approached the project funders with a request for additional funding. The 
Government Office for London has informed that it does not have the flexibility to 
make any further funding available to the project therefore the other four funders 
are being asked to consider funding the current projected budget shortfall.  

 
12.9 Although no formal decisions have yet been taken, other funders are considering 

the following sums: 
 
      £m 
 

Millennium Commission 0.30 
Arts Council   0.35 
LDA    0.35 

 
Total    1.00 

 
The contribution requested from the Council is therefore £0.5m. 

 
12.10 Should Members, wish to agree this contribution, the most appropriate source of 

funding would be the LPSA reward grant. 
 
 

Page 103



  

18 of 20 

13. Capital  

13.1 The aggregate capital projected position in 2006/07 is as shown in the 
following table 

  

Capital Approved 
Budget 

Spend to 
date 

Projected 
variation 

 £m £m £m 
Children and Young 
People 

45.3 18.1 0.7 

Social Services  7.0 1.3 (0.9) 
Housing – General Fund 2.9 0.5 0 

Housing – HRA 18.2 2.3 0 
Environment 17.2 4.1 0 
Finance 5.6 1.1 0 
Chief Executive 14.5 3.5 0 
    
Total 110.7 30.9 (0.2) 

14.      Financial administration 

14.1   Financial regulations require proposed budget changes to be approved by 
Executive. These are shown in the table below.  These changes fall into one of 
two categories: 

• budget virements, where it is proposed that budget provision is to be 
transferred between one service budget and another. Explanations are 
provided where this is the case; 

• Increases or decreases in budget, generally where notification has 
been received in-year of a change in the level of external funding such 
as grants or supplementary credit approval. 

14.2   Under the Constitution, certain virements are key decisions.  Key decisions are: 

• for revenue, any virement which results in change in a directorate cash 
limit of more than £250,000; and 

• for capital, any virement which results in the change of a programme 
area of more than £250,000.  

 

Key decisions are highlighted by an asterisk in the table. 

14.3    The following table sets out the proposed changes.  Each entry in the table 
refers to a detailed entry in the appendices, which show the budgets that it is 
proposed to change. There are two figures shown in each line of the table 
and the detailed sheets. The first amount column relates to changes in the 
current year’s budgets and the second to changes in future years’ budgets 
(full year). Differences between the two occur when, for example, the budget 
variation required relates to an immediate but not ongoing need or where the 
variation takes effect for a part of the current year but will be in effect for the 
whole of future years. 

 

Page 104



  

19 of 20 

14.4     Proposed virements are set out in the following table: 
 

Period Service Key Amount 
current year 

(£’000) 

Full year 
Amount   
(£’000) 

Description 

6 Chief 
Executives, 

Housing, 
Social 

Services, NSR 

Rev* 3,300  Asylum Seekers   £0.9m 
 
Social Services £2.4m Adults & O.People 
 
Total                  £3,3m 
 
Met from homelessness underspend of £2 
million, Chief Exec £0.2m and from 
service development contingency £1.1m 
 

6 Chief 
Executives 

Cap* 500  Bernie Grant Centre – additional 
contribution to meet higher capital costs 
to be funded from LPSA grant; 
paragraphs 12.4 to 12.10 refer. 

6 Social 
Services 

Rev 37 37 Transfer of budgets from Older People 
and Adults for two policy and planning 
assistants within the Policy and 
Performance Team. 

6 Environment Rev* 626  Budget revised to reflect Planning and 
delivery grant (PDG) allocation. 

6 Children’s, 
Finance 

Rev 10     10   Transfer of non staff costs for Children’s 
Finance Team to Corporate Finance 

6 Housing Cap* -1,144  Reversal of carry forward from 05/06 

6 Housing Cap 42  Additional budget for Recycling Estates 
(£30k) and for Booster Pumps (£12k) that 
are funded from monies received.  

6 Chief 
Executives 

Rev* 413  SSCF Neighbourhood element monies  

6 Environment Cap* -1,000  Revision of 06/07 spend profile re 
Haringey Heartlands Spine Road project.  

6 Environment Cap* 621  Reallocation of £579k of TFL funded 
schemes to other TFL schemes in our 
budget and the balance of £42k is new 
TFL monies. 

6 Environment Cap* 545  Additional budget for Finsbury Park HLF 
project that is largely funded from HLF 
monies and the balance of £160k from 
capital receipts. The capital receipts have 
been generated due to lower capital 
spend requirements on the Lordship Rec 
project (£100k) and on the Parks and 
Open Spaces project (£60k).  

6 Environment Rev 120  Greenways allocation funded by TFL 
monies. Highgate Station to Alexandra 
Palace Station (£60k) and Finsbury Park 
to White Hart Lane (£60k). 

6 HRA  167  Reallocation of managed budgets for 
grounds maintenance, waste 
management and pest control. 
 
- pest control “ 

Page 105



  

20 of 20 

6 HRA * 1,913  - waste management “ 

6 HRA * 1,233  - grounds maintenance “ 

6 HRA * -3,313  - central recharges “ 

6 HRA  3  Homes for Haringey proposes to fund 
various environmental works from the 
management fee budget.  
 
- pest control “ 
 

6 HRA  60  - waste management  “ 

6 HRA  70  - grounds maintenance “ 

6 HRA  45  - landscaping works “ 

6 HRA  -178  - management fee – retained budgets 

6 HRA * -732  Leasehold income - an over-recovery of 
leaseholder income of £732k is forecast. 
This reflects the recovery of  
leaseholders’ insurance costs. This is 
offset by a matching overspend in the 
Retained Budget where the costs have 
been incurred.  

6 HRA * 1,500  Reallocation of the provision of bad debts 
from leaseholder income. 

 
15.     Recommendations  

 
15.1   To note the report. 
15.2   To agree the virements set out in section 14. 
    
 
16.    Use of Appendices 

Appendix i. September balanced scorecard and Performance summary 

Page 106



Appendix 1

Haringey

Corporate  Scorecard

September 2006

Financial Health
Excellent Services

Green
44

Red
25

Green 15

Amber 2

Amber
8

Green
14 11

Amber

Red 1

Red
9

O
rg

a
n

is
a

ti
o

n
a

l 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t

C
u

s
to

m
e

r 
F

o
c

u
s

Red 12

Amber 10

Green 14

VFM

Page 107



Monthly Performance Review - 2006/07 September 2006

Key:
Same as last year Better than last year Worse than last year

Red Performance missing target Amber Performance close to target Green Performance on target

Persp

ective
Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Monthly

Progress

YTD

Progress

Target

06/07

Children & Young People's Service Monthly indicators

 BV 

43a

100%

100% 100% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% Green Green 99%

BV

43b

86.8%

85% 94.1% 77.8% 92.9% 100.0% 87.5% 69.2% Green Green 85%

BV 49

A1

10.8%

13% 10.5% 11.1% 11.6% 11.6% 12.1% 10.8% Green Green 13%

SD44

15.9%

14.8% 10.3% 10.6% 16.9% 15.7% 16.7% 15.9% Red 12.9%

BV 161

A4

75.00%

68% 25.0% 62.5% 83.3% 63.6% 62.5% 75.0% Green Green 70%

BV 162

C20

100%

99% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100% 100.0% 100.0% Green Green 100%

BV 163

C23

6

adoptions

1.8%

6% 0.0%

3

adoptions

0.9%

0.0%

2

adoptions

0.6%

0.0%

1

adoption

0.3%

Amber Amber 7%

 L60

92% 87.0% 89.0% 92.0% 95% 89.4% 94.0% Amber 96%

Local

68%

69% 67% 67% 67% 0% 86% 71% Red Red 80%

Local

0%

8% None None None 0% None None Red 40%

Unit

Cost

3,483

£ 3,341 3,806 4,197 5,012 3,463 3,483 Red 2,763

Unit

Cost

16,460

£ 16,687 16,687 16,628 16,517 16,628 16,460 Red 14,606

Unit

Cost

£873

£931 £883 £899 £905 £920 £894 £873 Green £908

Children & Young People's Service Other indicators

BV 45

8.63% 8.24% Green 6.0%

Top Band 

8<23%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

7.6%

Top Band 

0<16%

National

Target

11%

Top Band 

60%+

Top Band 

100%

Final figures for school year 2005/06 are shown in the June column

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

% of half days missed due to absence in secondary schools maintained by the local education authority.

Cost of service per child (early years)

From 1-9-06 new statutory timescales apply to Children’s and NHS complaints. These are:

Stage 2: 25 working days with possible extension to 65 days 

We expect to achieve 23 adoptions this year. In addition to the 6 adoptions to date, we are on track to achieve a further twelve, all but 

four of these children are already placed with the proposed adopters. In addition there are at least six special guardianship orders

linked to present proceedings which should be granted in the next six months making a possible total of 24.

Improved recording procedures allowing social workers to directly input their visits onto the system should ensure maintained progress

This is a cumulative indicator which relates only to those care leavers who turned 19 in each month. Based on the cohort of young

people who are to turn 19 in the remainder of the year, we are on track to achieving the target of 70%.

Reviews of child protection cases: The % of child protection cases which should have been reviewed during the year that 

CPA Key Threshold

Adoptions of children looked after: The number of looked after children adopted during the year as a % of the number of 

SSI 50: % of all children on the register (excluding those missing and registered in the last week of the month) who were 

Excellent performance has been sustained in this area in the year to date with robust systems in place to ensure this continues. All 25 

Children's act complaints -  Stage 2 responded to in 28 days

Children's act complaints -  Stage 1 responded to in 14 days

9 cases in September and 59 in April - September

Employment, education and training for care leavers: The % of those young people who were looked after on 1 April in their 

17th year (aged 16), who were engaged in education, training or employment at the age of 19

LPSA Indicator Target 65% based on 60-70 clients. Cumulative indicator.

Proportion of 16-19 year olds not in education, employment or training (NEETs) (Sustainable Development National Indicator 44 -

http://www.sustainable-development.gov.uk/progress/national/44.htm)

Stability of placements of children looked after by the authority by reference to the % of children looked after on 31st March 

CPA Key Threshold 2005/06 

Cost of service per looked after child

This figure remains well inside the top banding and in line with our target.

Cost of service per child (Play)

From 1-9-06 new statutory timescales apply to Children’s and NHS complaints. These are:

Stage 1: 10 working days with possible extension to 20 days 

CPA Key Threshold

Reported 3 times a year

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

100%

% of statements of special educational need issued by the authority in a financial year and prepared within 18 weeks 

including those affected by “exceptions to the rule” under the SEN Code of Practice.

% of statements of special educational need issued by the authority in a financial year and prepared within 18 weeks 

excluding those affected by “exceptions to the rule” under the SEN Code of Practice.

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

90%

9 cases on time out of 13 in September and 59 out of 68 in April to September

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Sep 06 Page 2 of 11 10/11/2006

Page 108



Persp

ective
Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Monthly

Progress

YTD

Progress

Target

06/07

BV 46

Reported 3 times a year

6.41% 6.63% Red 5.6%

BV

221a

15% 9.6% 19.6% 15%

BV

221b

7.5% 0.5% 7.0% 7.5%

BV

222a

45% 50%

BV

222b

42%

 38 Target

05/06

46%

48.5% 53.6% Green 49%

Environment Monthly indicators

BV

109a

57%

86.05% 50% no cases 50% 100% 0.00% no cases Red Red 82%

BV

109b

87.6%

81.52% 89.5% 93.8% 93.1% 87% 80.0% 82.9% Amber Green 83%

BV

109c

90%

92% 98% 90.6% 92.7% 86% 79.6% 94.5% Green Amber 92%

BV 204

45%

32% 43.8% 44.4% 38.9% 60% 66.7% 30.0% 71% Green Red 30%

BV

215a

1.90

1.92 2.08 1.68 1.91 2.96 1.40 1.89 Green Green 3.50

BV

215b

15.21

21.96 9.75 2.13 3.73 48.71 4.00 15.54 Green Green 20.0

BV

 218a

98.7%

96.0% 94.2% 100.0% 97.9% 99.6% 100.0% 99.6% Green Green 90.0%

BV

 218b

97.9%

93% 92.6% 96.8% 100.0% 98% 100.0% 100.0% Green Green 90%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

88%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

25%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile 4

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

16

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

Lon. 40%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

100%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

69%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

75%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

5.1%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

25%

Provisional 2006 results shown in the June column

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

58%

Final figures for school year 2005/06 are shown in the June column

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

% of minor applications determined in 8 weeks (Gov't target 65%)

Our District Network Operator (electricity supplier) is EDF

% of reports of abandoned vehicles investigated within 24 hrs of notification

New from 2005/06 reported 3 times a year

Quality of early years & Childcare Leadership - leaders % of leaders of accredited early education settings funded (or part 

funded) by the LA with a qualification of level 1 or above

Quality of early years & Childcare Leadership - Postgraduate input

Participation in and outcomes from youth work: Young people aged 13-19 gaining an Accredited Outcome as % of 

all 13-19 year olds involved in youth work.

Participation in and outcomes from youth work: Young people aged 13-19 gaining a recorded outcome as % of 13-

19 year olds involved in youth work.

3 out of 10 in September, 32 out of 71 in Apr-Sept. We continue to be concerned about our performance. The service is currently

undertaking a detailed analysis of appeal decisions allowed over the last couple of years to identify any common trends in these cases.

This month the repair times are within target limits. EDF appear to be applying the correct level of resource to repair the faults.

This indicator is showing consistent performance.

Average days to repair street lighting faults (except faults relating to power supply - see below)

Excellent performance. Again, we have achieved the maximum of 100%.

CPA Key Threshold. The low number of major cases means a high percentage change when any miss the target

% of 15 year old pupils in schools maintained by the local education authority achieving five or more GCSEs at grades A*- C 

% of major planning applications determined within 13 weeks (Gov't target 60%)

% of abandoned vehicles removed within 24 hrs (from when the LA is legally entitled to remove them)

Average days to repair street lighting power supply related faults, once they are with our District Network Operator (DNO)

No cases in September. 4 out of 7 on time in Apr-Sept. Of the three which missed the target two were complex and required further

consultation (Hornsey Treatment Works N8 & Unit 21 Cranford Way N8). The other was deferred at Committee at the end of April 

resulting in the target being missed when it was decided at a subsequent Committee (16-52 High Road N15).

Very good performance. YTD figure is well above the annual target.

% of half days missed due to absence in primary schools maintained by the local education authority.

CPA Key Threshold

% planning application appeals allowed against the authority's decision to refuse.

CPA Key Threshold

34 out of 41 on time in September. 233 out of 266 in Apr-September.

120 out of 127 on time in September. 699 out of 780 in Apr- September.

% of other applications determined in 8 weeks  (Gov't target 80%)

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

91%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

83%

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Sep 06 Page 3 of 11 10/11/2006

Page 109



Persp

ective
Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Monthly

Progress

YTD

Progress

Target

06/07

BV

82ai+bi

22.40%

19.23% 22.10% 23.30% 23.40% 20.7% 22.6% 22.6% Green Green 22%

BV 84a

383.4

(actual

191.7)

359.16

370

(actual:

30)

407

(actual:

35)

411

(actual:

34)

376

(actual:

32)

363

(actual:

31)

372

(actual:

31)

Red Red 355

BV

99a

2005 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 124 (62)

94 70 (6) 130 (10) 139 (12) 114 (9) 159 (14) 131 (11) Red Green 124 in 2006

BV

99c

2005 Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 623 (312)

712 546 (47) 545 (42) 382 (33) 760 (60) 748 (66) 751 (63) Green 849 in 2006

Was

BV  88

3,729

129.41 113.4 121.1 124.0 126.8 21,759.0 128.0 Green Red 130

Local

1,119,750

910,749 1,070,115 1,148,567 1,120,812 1,179,673 1,179,673 1,060,108 Green Green 1,083,445

Local

85.16

80.92 84.10 86.87 83.70 83.45 86.03 86.00 Green Green 80

CPA

 E32

119% (25 

visits)

100%
100% (2 

visits)

100% (5 

visits)

67% (8 

over 12)

367%

(11 over 

3)

none

done or 

due

100.0% Green Green 75%

BV217

100%

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100.0% 100.0% Green Green 99%

Local

61% 61% 61% 61% 61% 61% Green Green 61%

Unit
Cost

£ £72 £73 £73 £72 £72 £70 Green £72

Unit

Cost Surplus shown as minus (-)

£ -£13.40 -£13.40 -£13.40 -£13.40 -£13.40 -£13.40 Green -£13.40

Environment other indicators

BV Target

199a 05/06

28%

37% 40.0% Red 25%

BV Target

199b 05/06

7%

7% 6.0% Green 6%

BV Target

199c 05/06

4%

4% 4.0% Green 3%

CPA Upper 

Threshold

100%

2005/06

Est.Top

Qrtle Lon 

collect

only 371

2000 /01 

Top

Quartile

28

Projected net cost of service per parking ticket issued

Local street and environment cleanliness (litter)

Local street and environment cleanliness (Graffiti)

Number waste collections missed per 100,000 household waste collections (from Accord)

Number of casualties - People killed or seriously injured (KSI). Seasonally adjusted annual equivalent.

% of household waste which has been recycled or composted

Figures here (actuals in brackets) are the latest available  from TfL. Trend arrow is from 1994-8 average.n (161). The target for June 

was missed, but we are confident that, with our investment and education programme, we will meet the target for 2006 .

CPA Key Threshold

Amber is awarded if performance is top quartile (London 2005/06 est.). CPA upper threshold is 355

September shows a slight improvement. Further to the on-going investigation, Haringey Accord are addressing non-household waste

collected out of the borough and identification of unknown vehicles that have been tipping and allocated to Haringey, this should have 

a slight positive impact and will be included in next month's reporting.

Kg of household waste collected per head (seasonally adjusted annual equivalent - actual in brackets)

There has been a change in the way this monthly figure is calculated - it is now changed from an apportionment system to actual

tonnage basis. For Haringey this had a beneficial effect and led to an increase in the rate of reported recycling. The change has been 

applied back to April with the year to-date figure showing 2006-07 target of 22% has been exceeded.

The projected waste collection cost per tonne has fallen to £70 because higher tonnages are being collected within existing budgets. A 

2.9% increase in volume of waste is currently projected.

Projected waste collection costs per tonne

Trading standards visits to high risk premises. No done / no due

There are no outstanding improvements required in respect of our Environmental Protection Act permitted processes.

Debt recovery – parking income recovery target (%)

Parking income recovery rate continues to be on  target.

Pollution Control - % of improvements carried out of those due

We are currently up to date with High Risk inspections

Calculated as 100% minus % of those due not  carried out.

Local street and environment cleanliness (Fly - posting)

The frequency of reporting this indicator is planned to increase over the course of the year

The frequency of reporting this indicator is planned to increase over the course of the year

The frequency of reporting this indicator is planned to increase over the course of the year

Net surplus per pcn continues to be on target, because previously reported income shortfalls are to be managed within approved 

budget.

Sports & Leisure usage (seasonally adjusted annual equivalent)

Tottenham Green performed strongly in all areas except dryside activities. We are addressing with active marketing. White Hart Lane

attendance was up 16%, which was mainly due to strong performance on the astro turf and a late Sept athletics match.

to be phased out as BV199 becomes available more frequently

Figures seasonally adjusted to a profile supplied by Recreation.

Parks cleanliness Index

This is now is more in line with  ENCAMS principles, following training, and continues to be above target. 2nd quarter figure 85.1.

The figure for September and the year excluding the strike is better than the target. Owing to strike action the target for the year 

cannot be met. 

Number of casualties - People slightly injured. Seasonally adjusted annual equivalent (actual)

Figures here (actuals in brackets) are the latest available  from TfL. Target is from Mayor of London's Strategy. Trend arrow is from 

1994-8 average (1010). The level of casualties remains on target.

2005/06

Est.Top

Qrtle Lon 

collect

only 21%

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Sep 06 Page 4 of 11 10/11/2006

Page 110



Persp

ective
Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Monthly

Progress

YTD

Progress

Target

06/07

Survey

CPA
E32

79% 72.0% 78% Green 76%

Survey

CPA
E32

82% 86.0% 89.0% Green 76%

Better

Haringe

y

Survey

64% 70% Amber 69%

Better

Haringe

y

Survey

44% 62% Green 55%

Better

Haringe

y

Survey

67% 66% Amber 70%

Better

Haringe

y
Survey

55% 62% Amber 60%

Better

Haringe

y

Survey

42% 57% Red 70%

Social Services Monthly indicators

Ex.

BV 185

HfH

91% 91.9% 94.51% 91.4% 95.98% 96.1% 97.7% Red Red 99%

BV 212

LHO 4
HfH 55.75 29

29.00 33.63 38.04 46.58 90.71 70.51 48.20 Red Red 27

BV 66a

HfH
95.44%

97% 93.5% 96.0% 95.8% 95.15% 95.6% 95.44% Red 97.5%

BV 66b

HfH 15.51%

13.1% 13.6% 14.2% 14.49% 14.51% 15.1% 15.51% Red 10.0%

(BV73)

 LHO 6
HfH 12

13.98 17.71 16.86 11.87 12.63 12.43 14.08 Amber Green 14

(BV 72)

LHO 5
HfH 96.2%

98% 95.9% 93.4% 95.2% 92.6% 91.6% 95.0% Amber Amber 97%

BV

184a

2007/8

HfH

44.7% 44.5% 44.4% 44.5% 44.5% 44.5% Red 42%

Unit

Cost
HSG

£872.65 £852.43 £862.57 £866.91 £866.91 £873.01 Amber  £842.24 

Confidence interval ±5%.  These survey results should not be directly compared to the BVPI Mori survey as whilst it asks similar 

questions the face to face questions, sampling methodology and smaller sample size will each affect the results.

Confidence interval ±5%.  These survey results should not be directly compared to the BVPI Mori survey as whilst it asks similar

questions the face to face questions, sampling methodology and smaller sample size will each effect the results.

Confidence interval ±6%. These survey results should not be directly compared to the BVPI Mori survey as whilst it asks similar 

questions the face to face questions, sampling methodology and smaller sample size will each affect the results.

Confidence interval ±7%. These survey results should not be directly compared to the BVPI Mori survey as whilst it asks similar 

questions the face to face questions, sampling methodology and smaller sample size will each effect the results.

Satisfaction with local tips or Re-use and Recycling Centres

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

98%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

90%

The % of responsive (but not emergency) repairs during the year, for which the authority both made and kept an 

Percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks rent arrears

Local authority rent collection and arrears: proportion of rent collected

Year to date only. Bottom quartile 05/06 London (est) 96.1%

The average time taken to complete non-urgent responsive repairs (calendar days)

This pi is measured at the beginning of the year.  05/06 outturn 50%  06/07 outturn 44.7%. Monthly target based on 0.225% reduction 

each month. 42% target and monthly figures are for 07/08 outturn.

Average relet times for local authority dwellings let in the financial year (calendar days)

Monthly figures exclude late reporting but the year to date includes late reports for all but the last month

Customer Satisfaction with trading standards

Business Satisfaction with trading standards

Was BV 68 

Year to date only. Bottom quartile 05/06 London (est) 96.1%

The % of urgent repairs completed within Government time limits.

Monthly figures exclude late reporting but the year to date includes late reports for all but the last month

The proportion of local authority homes which were non 'decent' 

Cost per Private Sector Lease

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

CPA Upper 

Threshold

75%

CPA Upper 

Threshold

75%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

21%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

4%

Satisfaction with Refuse collection 

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

Satisfaction with Street Cleaning

Confidence interval ±5%.  These survey results should not be directly compared to the BVPI Mori survey as whilst it asks similar

questions the face to face questions, sampling methodology and smaller sample size will each affect the results.

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

Satisfaction with recycling facilities

This score is below target. A return of 40% ’don’t know’ answers suggests more work needs to be done to promote the Reuse and 

Recycling Centres. This work has already begun and further promotion will be happening over the coming months. 

Satisfaction with Parks, playgrounds and open spaces

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Sep 06 Page 5 of 11 10/11/2006

Page 111



Persp

ective
Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Monthly

Progress

YTD

Progress

Target

06/07

Unit

Cost
HSG

£40.77 £40.71 £40.91 £40.93 £41.10 £41.23 Amber  £40.20 

BV

64
HSG 114 (57)

414 48 (4) 132 (11) 156 (13) 36 (3) 204 (17) 108 (9) Green Green 100

BV

183a

HSG 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Green Green 1

BV

183b
HSG

67.71

67.41 Nil 108.62 Nil 61.8 40.33 77 Red Red 35

based

on BV 

213

HSG 348 (174)

381 264 (22) 324 (27) 156 (13) 828 (69) 444 (37) 72 (6) Red Red 400

BV 54

C32

Soc

156 156 156 155 133 113 99.86 Red 121

BV 55

D40

Soc

42% 43.0% 42.0% 40.0% 47.6% 51.4% 54.4% Red 60%

BV 56

D54

Soc
86.93%

86% 85.0% 91.7% 96.2% 89% 87% 74.6% Red Amber 88%

BV 58

D39

Soc

70% 64.0% 64.0% 64.0% 79% 76.0% 80.0% Amber 84%

BV 195

D55

Soc

59% 58% 53% 47.6% 47.8% 49.8% 48.8% Red 71%

BV 196

D56 CPA Key Threshold. This PI is based on acceptable waiting times for care packages for new older clients (65+).

Soc

80% 78.9% 71.1% 78.4% 82.6% 80.9% 84.6% 87%

Paf

C72

Soc

69 34.30 37.00 48.00 63.00 75.43 77.00 Amber 70

Paf

C62

Soc

5% 5.0% 3.0% 2.5% 2.6% 3.6% 4.0% Red 12%

Top Band 

90<100

Top Band 

80+

Top Band 

12% +

The number of carers for Adults & Older People receiving a carer's break or specific carer's service as a proportion of all 

Adult clients receiving a community based service

CPA Key Threshold (using 2004 mid year estimate population of 21,000). Good performance is low. Top banding is <80.

Acceptable waiting time for care packages - % where the time from completion of assessment to provision of all services in a 

care package is less than or equal to 4 weeks

Top Band 

60<90

Top Band 

85

Top Band 

100

Top Band 

90<100

Private sector dwellings that are returned to occupation or demolished during the year as a direct result of action 

by the local authority. (Annual equivalent - actuals in brackets).

September's figure is low owing to the fact that data has yet to be input following an IT change.

Improvement projects to increase data accuracy have been carried out in this area. Due to this we had expected and planned for a

slight dip in performance. We are now focusing on getting this indicator back into top banding.

Adult and older clients receiving a review as a percentage of those receiving a service

 We have weekly targets set for each service group out of the four service areas. These are being closely monitored and if this level of 

performance is retained we will achieve the set target. 

This is a joint (older people and adults) indicator.

The average length of stay in bed and breakfast accommodation of households which include dependent children 

or a pregnant woman and which are unintentionally homeless and in priority need.

The average length of stay (weeks) in  hostel accommodation of households which include dependent children or a 

pregnant woman and which are unintentionally homeless and in priority need.

This indicator does not exclude pre 2004 cases as previously reported. 

% of items of items of equipment & adaptations delivered within 7 working days 

There has been a slight dip in performance over the summer: We do expect to get back on course, but as a safeguard have decided

to incorporate this indicator into the monthly performance call-overs with third and fourth tier managers. 

Joint Indicator for Adults & Older People - Deleted as BVPI from 05/06

Approaches from households who considered themselves as homeless to the local housing authority's housing advice 

service where advice/intervention resolved their situation. 

CPA Key Threshold

Again this is an indicator that we monitor on a weekly basis and we have moved to a position of requiring managers to respond to an 

exception report that provides us with an explanation of why they have authorised a care plan without a statement of need.  We are

talking with the service areas to consider other mechanisms that they can think of to push performance up in this area - our aim is to 

exceed the target set for this year. 

Older people helped to live at home per 1000 population aged 65 or over

This is a complex problem. Our practice, which is similar to that of other authorities, has been to incorporate a carer's assessment with 

that of the person they care for, but we have found it difficult to count which services belong to the carer and which to the cared for 

person.  Quarterly, we do a manual count of panel decisions: This verifies that we are undercounting our position.  An instruction has 

been issued to all staff making it clear that we want carers to have their own assessment so that we can clearly identify what services

they receive - this will be monitored closely and we do expect to see an improvement. 

CPA Key Threshold. This PI is based on acceptable waiting times for assessment for new older clients (65+).

The streamlining of processes and staff re-organisation has caused a slight downturn in recent performance however we are confident

that the completion of this will now assist in performance being back up to the target for the next period. 

Part of the indicator is monitored on a weekly basis and performance in that area is improving.  We have just introduced performance

call-overs with third and fourth tier managers at performance call over.

Older people aged 65 or over admitted on a permanent basis in the year to residential or nursing care per 10,000 older people 

population

Amber

% of people receiving a statement of their needs and how they will be met.

Acceptable waiting time for assessment - average of (I) % where time from initial contact to first contact is less than 48 hours

& (ii) % where time from first contact to completion of assessment is less than or equal to 4 weeks 

Annual equivalent  (actuals in brackets)

Cost per Nightly Rated Accommodation

We are still in the top banding for this PI but realise that we will have to closely monitor this indicator for the remainder of the year. 

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

21

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

Eqv. To 

485

Top Band 

100+

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile 1

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

56

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Sep 06 Page 6 of 11 10/11/2006

Page 112



Persp

ective
Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Monthly

Progress

YTD

Progress

Target

06/07

BV 201

C51 September Target 136

Soc

122 122 124 121 118 117 121 Red 150

Local

Soc

80%

71% 100.0% 80.0% 66.7% 80% 33.3% 90.0% Green Green 80%

Local

Soc
0%

0% None 0% None 0% 0% None Red Red 50%

Unit

Cost
Paf B17

Soc £20.60 £20.60 £20.60 £20.60 £20.60 £20.60 Red £15.50

Unit

Cost
Paf B12

Soc £616.00 £632 £661 £712 £729 £724 Red £590

Social Services other Indicators

BV 214

HSG 1.55%

1.55% 2.1% Green 8%

HSG

71% 46.3% 46.3% Green 46

HSG

99% 96.5% 96.5% Amber 97%

BV 53

Soc

23 23 Amber 24

Finance Monthly indicators

BV 8

85.2%

89% 88.3% 83.3% 83.1% 88.1% 83.08% 87.75% Red Red 92.0%

BV 9

93.41%

93.35% 93.7% 93.0% 93.9% 92.8% 93.7% 94.04% Green Amber 93.75%

BV 10

99.5%

98.98% 99.3% 99.4% 99.4% 99.7% 99.9% 99.3% Green Green 99%

PM1

47

41 50 56 49 43 42 42 Red Red 36

PM7

54% 66% 51% 58% 49% N/A N/A 60%

Top Band 

£11<£15

Top Band 

£415<£553

CPA Key Threshold

Top Band 

150

An urgent report has been requested by DMT outlining what the issues are here - why performance has dropped and what the 

recovery plan will be to improve performance and achieve our target. 

No Stage 2 replies sent in September, YTD 0 out of 3 in 28 days, 2 out 3 in 90 days

From 1-9-06 new statutory timescales apply to Children’s and NHS complaints. These are:

Stage 2: 25 working days with possible extension to 65 days.

Year to date performance indicates we should manage to achieve our target for this year. 

From 1-9-06 new statutory timescales apply to Children’s and NHS complaints. These are:

Stage 1: 10 working days with possible extension to 20 days 

NHS  & Community Care Act Complaints - Stage 1 responded to within 14 days

PAF C28

Proportion of households accepted as homeless who have been previously accepted as homeless within last two years

Supporting People KPI 2 (Client Group) The number of service users who have moved on in a planned way as a percentage 

of service users who have left the service.

Supporting People   KPI 1 The number of service users who have established or are maintaining independent living (existing 

service users and those who have departed) as a percentage of the total number of service users in the period.

 NHS  & Community Care Act Complaints - Stage 2 responded to within 28 days

Cost of home care per client 

Cost of intensive social care per client 

Measured in days

Consistent collection performance in the second quarter

There is a current software problem that does not enable the collation of accurate data.  The software company is aware of the 

situation and will correct shortly.

Average speed of processing new claims (Standard 36 days)

The percentage of non-domestic rates due for the financial year which were received in year by the authority.

Performance Indicator for the amount of HB overpayments recovered during the period as a percentage of total amount of 

HB overpayments identified during the period.

Consistent collection performance in the second quarter

The second quarter shows a significant improvement from the first quarter. A number of initiatives are in place to

ensure that improvement is maintained.

The percentage of council taxes due for the financial year which were received in year by the authority.

Adults and older people receiving direct payments at 31 March per 100,000 population aged 18 or over (age standardised)

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

Top Band 

16+

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

96%

The percentage of invoices for commercial goods and services that were paid by the authority within 30 days of such 

invoices being received by the authority

Intensive home care per 1,000 population aged 65 or over.

2.1% of accepted homeless applications in the first quarter of 2006/07 were from applicants who had been accepted in the last two

years.

Average of client groups.

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

98%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

99%

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Sep 06 Page 7 of 11 10/11/2006

Page 113



Persp

ective
Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Monthly

Progress

YTD

Progress

Target

06/07

PM9

4% 2.9% 0.2% 0.3% 0.14% N/A N/A 2%

PM11

100%

100% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100% 100.0% 100.0% Green Green 91%

Fin 1

0.4% 0.9% 1.0% 1.26% 1.23% 0.00% Green

Fin 2

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% Green

Fin 3

Under 20% green, 20% to 40% amber, over 40% red

12.0% 12.0% 12.0% 12.0% 12.0% 12.0% Green

Fin 4a

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% Green

Fin 4b

91.2% 91.2% 91.2% 91.2% 98.5% 98.5% Amber

Fin 4c

94.3% 94.3% 94.3% 94.3% 101.8% 99.1% Amber

Fin 5b Debt

Target £8.803m N/A £8.293M £8.038M £7.783M £7.528M £7.273M £7.018M £6.763M £6.508M £6.253M £5.998M £5.74M

Actual £8.803m N/A £8.603M £8.326M £8.118M £7.793M £8,197M Red £5.74M

Unit

Cost

£230.13 £214.91 £214.91 £214.91 £214.91 £214.91 £214.91 Green £214.91

Finance Services other indicators

BV 156

27%

27% 27% 27% Green Green 28%

PM2

16

17 23 14 14 Amber Red 12

PM5

22

37 28 27 19 21 Green Amber 20

PM6

95.6%

96% 96.8% 95.6% Red Red 99%

PM10

52%

105% 25% 52% Green Green 100%

Treasury management - Authorised Limit for external debt

Treasury management - The Council's operational boundary for external debt.

Measured in days

The performance indicator is being reviewed by the DWP due to the introduction of changes last year. The performance is close to

target and is being monitored closely to ensure that the target is met.

Average speed of processing change of circumstances (Standard of 9 days – subject to review)

Percentage of new claims outstanding over 50 days (Standard 10%)

The percentage of authority buildings open to the public in which all public areas are suitable for and accessible to disabled 

people

Adaptation work in relation to the Disability Discrimination Act is continuing with the work expected to complete by the end of the 

calendar year. Some of the adaptation work will improve our performance to BV156 (known as Document M compliance). Independent 

surveys, for audit purposes, of these buildings are being commissioned following the adaptation work that should result in BV 156

performance coming in above the target during the latter part of the year. 

Data for this indicator will be reported on quarterly.

Performance is consistent but just short of target. The recent introduction of 'claims management' software should enable the target to 

be met in the third quarter.

 Projected general fund reserves – projected unplanned use of balances

Performance Indicator for the amount of HB overpayments written-off during the period as a percentage of total amounts of 

HB overpayment debt outstanding at the start of the period plus amount of HB overpayments identified during the period.

Consistent high performance in the second quarter

What is the percentage of data-matches resolved within 2 months?

Net overspend variance under 0.5% green, 0.5% to 1.0% amber, over 1.0% red

Overall revenue budget monitoring

Net overspend variance under 0.5% green, 0.5% to 1.0% amber, over 1.0% red

Overall capital budget monitoring

Cost of office accommodation per sq metre (corporate property)

 - Remain within upper limit of 30%  = green, between 30% and 50% amber, over 50% red

There is a current software problem that does not enable the collation of accurate data.  The software company is aware of the 

situation and will correct shortly.

Treasury management- Exposure to Variable interest rates

 - remain within 95%  = green, 95% to 100% = amber, over 100% = red

 - remain within 95%  = green, 95% to 100% = amber, over 100% = red

What is the percentage of interventions when review action commenced in the last quarter against the annual target?

Performance Indicator for accuracy – percentage of cases for which the calculation of the amount of benefit due is correct 

(Standard 98%)

A disappointing second quarter and a significant quality improvement  is a key objective for the Benefits and Local Taxation 

Performance is exactly on target to achieve 100% at year end

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 
H

e
a
lt
h

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

75%

£1.3m short against target, Children's £800k (mostly schools) & Leaseholders £350k short.CE & Social on target, Env will be on target

in next 2 mths, Fin will hit by EOY. Increase this month due to £325k Gladesmoor, £78k PCT and £65k Pembury debt rolling forward.

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Sep 06 Page 8 of 11 10/11/2006

Page 114



Persp

ective
Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Monthly

Progress

YTD

Progress

Target

06/07

PM12

48%

118% 20% 48% Green Green 100%

PM13

15

12 13.2 15 Green Green 15

PM15

6.4

8 2.8 5.2 Green Green 8

PM16

2.2

2.4 1.09 2.9 Green Amber 3

Unit

Cost

£34.73

£117 £35.01 £34.90 £34.54 £34.73

Chief Executive's Monthly indicators

BV 12

8.56

10.37 5.4 8.25 8.23 8.69 7.63 8.09 Green Green 8.80

was

BV 117

9,532

9,850 9,008 10,216 9,340 9,387 9,181 10,057 Green Green 9,000

Local

83%

85% 84% 77% 78% 80% 76% 81% Red Red 90%

Local

*05/06 Threshold was 15 days

71.4%

80%* 71.6% 69.3% 71.3% 69.5% 73.5% 72.3% Red Red 80%

Local

70.2%

74% 66.7% 52.9% 77.8% 84% 61.1% 84.0% Green Red 80%

LCE1

*05/06 Threshold was 25 days

96%

94%* 100% 100% 83.3% 100% 100% 100% Green Green 90%

Local Freedom of information act replies within 20 day time scale

From June, this PI excludes HfH FOI requests

65%

65% 66% 59% 54% 66% 71.0% 73.8% Green Red 70%

Local

45.8%

63% 41.1% 54.1% 47.8% 49.4% 48.3% 35.1% Red Red 70%

Local

95.4%

98% 97.9% 96.3% 95.4% 95% 94.3% 93.5% Green Green 90%

Local

78%

79.3% 78.7% 79.7% 79.4% 79.2% 77.5% 75.2% Amber Green 77%

Local

27.1%

55% 11.4% 12.7% 33.5% 49.3% 39.0% 22.2% Red Red 70%

Local

77.4%

86.2% 66.4% 64.8% 83.0% 91.3% 86.3% 76.2% Red Red 90%

These figures now exclude Homes for Haringey (HfH). HfH year to date figure is 69%

Service investigation complaints (stage 2) responded to within 25 working days

Local Resolution complaints (stage 1) responded to within 10 working days 

These figures now exclude Homes for Haringey (HfH). HfH year to date figure is 66%

Second consecutive month above target.

Council Wide Position - Telephone Calls answered within 15 seconds as a % of total calls 

Customer services improvement plan is being implemented

Members' Enquiries, percentage responded to within 10 working days

These figures now exclude Homes for Haringey (HfH). HfH year to date figure is 65%

Switchboard - Telephone answering in 15 seconds

Call Centre: Calls answered as percentage of all calls presented

Call Centre: Calls answered in 15 Secs as % of calls presented

Customer services improvement plan is being implemented

(total includes those that reached the busy signal and unanswered calls) From June, this excludes HfH telephone performance.

Year to date position above target

Performance is exactly on target to achieve 100% at year end

Performance is on target to achieve 8 at the end of the year.

What is the number of successful sanctions?

To be produced quarterly

Cost per housing benefit application 

What is the percentage of visits carried out against the annual target?

Performance is on target to achieve 3 at the end of the year.

What is the number of fraud investigations closed?

2005 / 06 - No Target - Actual 12

Performance is exactly on target to achieve 100% at year end

2005 / 06 - Target 2.5 - Actual 2.4

What is the number of fraud referrals received?

2005 / 06 - Target 6 - Actual 8

Independent review (stage 3) public complaints responded to within 20 working days 

Customer services improvement plan is being implemented

FTE = full time equivalent.  Shown as annual equivalent. The year to date figure includes some late reported sickness inevitably

missing from Monthly figures

Working days lost due to sickness per FTE employee

Shown as an annual equivalent. 

The number of physical visits per 1,000 population to public libraries

Waiting times - % personal callers  to Customer Service Centres (CSC) seen in 15 minutes

Continuing Above Target.

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

O
D

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

8.4

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Sep 06 Page 9 of 11 10/11/2006

Page 115



Persp

ective
Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Monthly

Progress

YTD

Progress

Target

06/07

Local

01:48

00:49 03:14 02:56 01:17 00:43 01:04 01:56 Red Red 00:40

Unit

Cost

£4.29

£4.41 £4.80 £4.33 £4.08 £4.42 £4.43 £4.37 4%

Unit

Cost

£2.88

£2.34 £2.21 £2.02 £2.44 £2.31 £2.32 Red TBC

BV 126

(part)

2485

(1202)

2,851
3,352

(241)

2,949

(240)

2,430

(179)

2,436

(176)

1,879

(174)

2089

(192)
Green Green 2,711

Chief Executive's Other indicators

 BV 14

Annual equivalents shown

0.10%

0.09% 0.08% 0.13% Green Green 0.20%

 BV 15

0.19%

0.13% 0.20% 0.19% Green Green 0.30%

BV 17a

44.6% 44.8% 44.9% Green 39.3%

BV 11a

55.9% 58.4% 57.3% Green 50%

BV 11b 

21.1% 18.2% 18.6% Red 26%

BV 11c 

4.06% 2.5% 2.5% Amber 4.90%

Staff

 Survey

82% 90.0% Green 86%

Staff

Survey

N/A 64.0% Green 90%

Staff

Survey

71%

77% 71.0% Green 77%

Staff

Survey

N/A 63.0% Green

Staff

Survey Target for 2006: the 2006 survey will provide the baseline for 2007/8 and beyond…

59% 64.0% Green

Annual equivalents shown

Employees retiring early (excluding ill-health retirements) as a % of the total work force

Three ill health early retirements in the first quarter

The percentage of top 5% of earners from ethnic minority communities

Employees retiring on grounds of ill health as a % of the total workforce

Data for this indicator is taken from the staff survey carried out every 18 months. Results for the recent survey will soon be analysed

and reported. 

Percentage of staff who feel that their manager provides them with timely feedback on their performance

This PI is designed to help measure the degree to which managers are moving away from managing task – to managing their staff to

deliver tasks, and giving them the support and feedback they need to successfully do so.

Percentage of staff who feel that their opinion is sought on decisions that affect their work 

Percentage of staff who believe their performance has improved as a result of the learning and development activities they 

Cost per transaction (customer services)

Data for this indicator is taken from the staff survey carried out every 18 months. Results reported here are from the staff survey

Percentage of staff that have a written work plan or performance appraisal that sets out priorities and tasks for the year

Percentage of staff who understand Haringey Council's aims and objectives

Data for this indicator is taken from the staff survey carried out every 18 months. Results reported here are from the staff survey

Domestic burglaries, annual equivalent seasonally adjusted to 2005/06 figures. Actuals in brackets

Call Centre: Average queuing time

Cost per visit/interaction (libraries)

One early retirement in the first quarter

The percentage of staff from minority ethnic communities 

Customer services improvement plan is being implemented

The percentage of top 5% of earners that are women

The percentage of top 5% of earners declaring they meet the Disability Discrimination Act disability definition 

This represents 2 members of staff short of target.

Min:Sec

C
u
s
to

m
e
r 

F
o
c
u
s

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

F
in

a
n
c
ia

l 

H
e
a
lt
h

E
x
c
e
lle

n
t 

s
e
rv

ic
e
s

O
D

O
D

O
D

O
D

O
D

O
D

O
D

O
D

O
D

O
D

O
D

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

0.2%

2005/06

Est.Top

Quartile

0.15%

Current performance against this PI compares extremely well against other organisations of a similar size and complexity. Changes to 

the Performance Appraisal framework and better use of the manager’s desktop with SAP will allow better monitoring of the PI – and

subsequently targeting of areas of under performance. 

Note: Few organisations achieve a better result than 85% without either linking the completion of appraisal to the payment of 

performance related pay, or making the non completion of appraisal a disciplinary matter.

Current performance against this PI is extremely good and the result of much effort to ensure that the Council’s vision and priorities

are communicated and form a strong discussion thread between the business plans, individual appraisals and work plans.

The Council’s aims and objectives were tweaked in 2005, and will change again as the new community/council strategies are 

developed. This means that our current excellent performance is likely to be a challenge to maintain.

Data for this indicator is taken from the staff survey carried out every 18 months. Results reported here are from the staff survey

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Sep 06 Page 10 of 11 10/11/2006

Page 116



Persp

ective
Ref. 05/06 Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar

Monthly

Progress

YTD

Progress

Target

06/07

Staff

Survey Target for 2006: the 2006 survey will provide the baseline for 2007/8 and beyond…

N/A 59.0% Green

Staff

Survey Target for 2006: the 2006 survey will provide the baseline for 2007/8 and beyond…

N/A 47.0% Amber

Staff

Survey Target for 2006: the 2006 survey will provide the baseline for 2007/8 and beyond…

N/A 73.0% Green

Staff

Survey

56% 68.0% Green

Staff

Survey

N/A 68.0% Green

 Percentage of staff that believe that Haringey staff work with integrity and deliver on what we promise

Percentage of staff who believe that as an organisation we can be proud of what we do

This is a new PI. It is designed to provide a baseline against which the organisation can measure how well we are living our agreed

way of working (values)

This is a new PI.

This is a new PI. It is designed to provide a baseline against which the organisation can measure how well we are living our agreed

way of working (values)

Percentage of staff that believe that people in different parts of Haringey Council work well together

O
D

O
D

O
D

O
D

O
D

Percentage of staff who believe that the way we do things keeps on improving

This is a new PI.

Data for this indicator is taken from the staff survey carried out every 18 months. Results reported here are from the staff survey

carried out in early 2006.

Percentage of staff who believe that Haringey is committed to ensuring that everyone has a equal opportunity to learn and 

develop

Data for this indicator is taken from the staff survey carried out every 18 months. Results reported here are from the staff survey

carried out in early 2006.

Target for 2006: the 2006 survey will provide the baseline for 2007/8 and beyond…

Corporate scorecard v3_6 Sep 06 Page 11 of 11 10/11/2006

Page 117



Page 118

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 1 

     Agenda item:  
 

   EXECUTIVE                       On 21 NOVEMBER 2006 

 

Report Title:     Haringey Council’s proposal for the New School in Haringey              
Heartlands 
 

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference] 
  

Report of: Sharon Shoesmith – Director of the Children and Young People’s Service 
 

 
Wards(s) affected: [All / Some (Specify)] 
 

Report for: [Key / Non-Key Decision] 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 To provide an update on the new secondary school consultation. 
1.2 To agree Haringey Council’s own proposal to promote the new secondary school.  
 

2. Introduction by Executive Member 

 
2.1 This report sets out the councils own bid to establish the new secondary school 

located in Wood Green as a community school.  This proposal is fully in line with 
the council’s policy on community secondary schools. 

2.2 Although the regulations require the Council’s proposal to be set out in the form 
shown in Annex 2, I will ensure that, in the event of a competition with other 
proposals, this proposal is presented effectively and  professionally to all interested 
parties. 

 

3. Recommendations 

3.1 To agree the Haringey Council Proposal for the establishment of a community 
secondary school, as set out in Annex 2 to this report.  

 

Report Authorised by:  
       Sharon Shoesmith  
                                    Director  
                                    The Children and Young People’s Service 
 

[No.] 

REPORT TEMPLATE: 
FORMAL BODIES & 

MEMBER ONLY EXEC 

Agenda Item 9Page 119



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2 

 
Contact Officer:           David Williamson – Head of Secondary Innovations 
                                    020 8489 2939 
 

4. Executive Summary 

 
4.1 The paper sets out Haringey Councils bid for a mixed comprehensive community 

school, to open in September 2010 with specialisms in visual arts and media.  
Additional specialisms will be in areas of SEN (Autism) and vocational diplomas. 

4.2 The new school will open with six forms of entry and grow until it eventually has 
eight forms of entry. It will be an 11-16 school, with a roll of 1080 when at full 
capacity plus an additional 25 places in a special unit for students with autism.  

 
 

5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if 
applicable) 

5.1 N/A 
 
 

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

 
6.1 The Education (New Secondary School Proposals) Regulations 2006 
6.2 BSF Strategic and Outline Business Cases 
 

 

7.     Background 

 
7.1 On 13th June 2006, Executive agreed that statutory consultation and the competition 

processes for the new secondary school under The Education Act 2005 could begin.   

7.2 The first phase of the consultation finished on 11th August 2006.  On 4th September 
2006 Statutory notices were published inviting bids for the new school.  The notice 
invites bids from independent promoters to be received by the council no later than 
4th January 2007.   

 

7.3 On 3rd October 2006 a meeting was held by representatives of the Department for 
Education and Skills (DfES) for interested parties and potential sponsors at The 
Decorium, in Wood Green.  Representatives of the council discussed why a new 
school is needed, listened to comments and answered questions. 

7.4 It was also agreed on 13th June 2006 that Executive would receive a further report in 
October setting out a Haringey Council proposal.  This report details the bid for 
members to comment on. 

Page 120



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3 

8.      Consultation update 
 
8.1 Twenty-one (21) responses have been received to date from the public consultation.  

Fifteen (15) prefer the new school to be a Community school and two (2) would 
prefer a Voluntary Aided school.  Four (4) did not state a preference. 

 
8.2 The main points responders commented on were as follows: 
 

• support for an inclusive community school; 

• assurances that the school facilities are opened up to wider community use; 

• concern about the location being near the railway line, and;  

• concerns over the timing of the consultation. 
 
8.3 In response to the final point, we have agreed to continue to accept responses to the 

consultation throughout the period of competition (see 10).   
 

9.     The Process 

9.1 From 1st September 2006 the Education Act 2005 came into force.  Under Section 
66 local authorities are now required to hold a competition whenever statutory 
proposals are required for a new secondary school, including proposals by the 
council.  

9.2 As noted above, the council has now published a preliminary notice inviting bids for 
the new school.  The notice invites bids from independent promoters within 4 
months. After this deadline the council must publish details of all received bids, 
along with the councils bid.  

9.3 There will then be a six week representation period in which comments or objections 
can be made by anyone with an interest in the new secondary school.  

9.4 This includes: 

• prospective parents  

• local primary and secondary schools  

• local residents  

• councillors and  

• community & special interest groups.  

 

9.5 After the representation period the details of the bids and all comments received – 
whether about specific bids or about the proposal to open a secondary school itself 
– will be forwarded to the School Organisation Committee (SOC) for a decision on 
whether to accept any of the proposals.  

9.6 The SOC is independent of the council. It is made up of five groups who represent a 
number of different interested parties.  

Page 121



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4 

9.7 If the SOC is not able to make a unanimous decision, then it is the schools 
adjudicator who will decide. The Adjudicator is completely independent of the SOC 
and the Council. The Adjudicator’s decision is final. 

10.      Timetable 

 
10.1  The following timetable has been constructed to comply with the new regulations, 

which came into force from 1st September 2006. 
 

Report to Executive 13 Jun 2006 

Consultation  
26th June 2006 – 
11th August 2006 

 

Invitation to bid published  4th September 2006  

Bids Deadline  4th January 2007 

Representation period (six weeks 
for comments and objections to 
bids, including Haringey’s bid) 

10th  January 2007 

public meeting discussing all bids 16th Jan 2007 

 
Representation period ends  

20th Feb 2007 

 
Deadline to forward Bids to SOC 
to make a decision  

2nd March 2007 

 
Deadline for decision by SOC 

2nd May 2007 

 
 

11. Haringey’s Bid to establish a new community secondary school 
 
11.1 The DfES have set out a comprehensive list of questions and criteria for which 

information must be published in a Local Authority proposal; see Annex 1.   

 

11.2 Haringey Councils bid is for a mixed comprehensive community school, opening in 
September 2010 with specialisms in visual arts and media, enriched by links to the 
Wood Green ‘cultural quarter’ regeneration scheme.  Additional specialisms will be 
in areas of SEN (Autism) and vocational diplomas. 

 
11.3 The new school will open with six forms of entry and grow until it eventually has 

eight forms of entry. It will be an 11-16 school, with a roll of 1080 when at full 
capacity plus an additional 25 places in a special unit for students with autism. We 
anticipate that at post 16 many students will go on to study at the new sixth form 
centre, which will open in September 2007. There will also be the option for post 16 
students to enrol at sixth forms located at other local educational establishments, 
particularly to follow planned pathways within the Haringey 14-19 partnership 

 

Page 122



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 5 

11.4  We want the school to have a strong ethos of achieving high standards for all, with 
a fully comprehensive intake on entry. Admissions criteria will follow those agreed 
across all Haringey community schools, thus supporting an inclusive education.  

 
11.5 Annex 2 details Haringey council’s full bid to establish a new community secondary 

school.  The format and what detail is contained within the bid is specified by the 
DfES.  The council will be producing a public bid document which corresponds to 
corporate guidelines in time for the next phase of the consultation process starting 
on 10th January 2007.   

 

12 Summary and Conclusions 

 
12.5 This report sets out Haringey Councils bid for a mixed comprehensive community 

school, opening in September 2010 with specialisms in visual arts and media.  
Additional specialisms will be in areas of SEN (Autism) and vocational diplomas. 

 
12.6 The new school will open with six forms of entry and grow until it eventually has 

eight forms of entry. It will be an 11-16 school, with a roll of 1080 when at full 
capacity plus an additional 25 places in a special unit for students with autism. 

 

13 Recommendations 

13.5 To agree the Haringey Council Proposal for the establishment of a community 
secondary school, as set out in Annex 2 to this report. 

 

14. Financial Implications 

14.1 The new school at Heartlands will be sited on two parcels of land, one of which is 
already in the ownership of the council. The acquisition of the balance site for the 
new school, which is currently owned by British Rail Board Residual Ltd as non 
operational rail sidings, is progressing and due for completion in late November 
2006. Approval to proceed with the purchase was granted by the Executive on the 
21 March 2006 (Minute TEX214) and is funded by the Growth Area Fund, Section 
106 funding allocated for the new school and the BSF programme through the sale 
of the Pupil Referral Unit. 

 
14.2  In principle the VAT incurred on a land purchase transaction can be fully 

recovered. However as this land purchase is part of an overall new build project an 
overall assessment of the VAT implications on the project as a whole needs to be 
made in order to ascertain if there is any impact on the Authority’s partial 
exemption calculation and any subsequent implications. This further assessment is 
underway. 

 
 
 
 

Page 123



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 6 

15. Comments of the Director of Finance 

 
15.1  This is part of the BSF programme currently underway within the Children and 

Young People’s Service capital programme, for which an outline business case has 
been submitted. 

 
15.2 The financial implications of the land acquisition for this project are as outlined in 

the relevant section of this report and as contained in the separate report 
submitted to the Executive on 21 March 2006. The key points are that the funding 
for the purchase of the site has been identified, the construction costs will be met 
from BSF grant from the government and the running costs of the new school will 
be met from the Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). No additional costs, therefore, 
will impact on the Council’s base budget. 

 
15.3 The Director of Finance has no objection to continuing the statutory consultation 

and competition processes subject to the financing arrangements outlined 
 

16 Comments of the Head of Legal Services 

 
16.1     The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report. The 

content of the report, including the proposed timetable leading to the decision by 
the School Organisation Committee, follows the requirements of Section 66 of the 
Education Act 2005 and the more detailed provisions of the Education (New 
Secondary School Proposals) (England) Regulations 2006. Where an authority is 
also the author of a proposal to be considered, the content of that proposal must 
follow the requirements set out in Part 2 of Schedule 2 to the 2006 Regulations, 
which are listed in Annex 1 to the report. The template appended to Annex 2 to the 
report reproduces these statutory requirements. Consequently completion of the 
template in the manner indicated should ensure compliance with these 
requirements. 

 

17 Equalities Implications 

 
17.2 The Haringey proposal, as set out in this report, will, in accordance with the code of 

practice on school admissions, follow admissions criteria which apply across all 
Haringey community schools, with priority for looked after children and children 
with statements of special educational needs. 

 
17.3  The new school will contribute to raising standards of achievement for children 

and young people across all sections of our community. 
 

18 Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs 

 
18.1 Annex 1 - Information that must be published for Local Authority proposals. 
 

18.2 Annex 2 - Haringey council’s full proposal to establish a new community secondary 
school. 

Page 124



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 7 

Annex 1 - Information that must be published for Local Authority proposals 

1. The name of the LA submitting the proposals together with the name and address of the person to 
whom enquiries should be sent. 

2. Whether the school is to be a community or foundation school. 

3. The area or particular community or communities the school is expected to serve. 

4. The proposed ethos of the school. 

5. Whether the proposed school will have any specialisms on implementation and whether the LA 
intends to apply to the Secretary of State for the school to be a specialist school from implementation. 

6. Information on how the school would contribute to enhancing the diversity and quality of education in 
the area. 

7. Information on how the school will help to raise the quality and standard of education in the area and 
contribute to school improvement. 

8. Information on the extended services which will be provided. 

9. Information on how the proposals will contribute to enabling children and young people to: be healthy; 
stay safe; enjoy and achieve; make a positive contribution to the community and society and achieve 
economic well-being. 

10. The following information relating to the proposals—  

a. how the school will promote and contribute to community cohesion;  

b. how the school will increase inclusion and equality of access for all social groups; and  

c. how the school will collaborate with other schools, colleges and training providers. 

 

11. An indication of the admission arrangements and over-subscription criteria for the proposed school. 

12. Confirmation that the size, age-range and admission number of the school will be in line with the 
specification in the notice, or, if this is not the case, the proposed details. 

13. The date on which the proposals are planned to be implemented, or where the proposals are 
planned to be implemented in stages, the date on which each stage is planned to be implemented. 

14. —(1) Information as to whether the school will have provision that is recognised by the LA as 
reserved for children with special educational needs and, if so, the nature of such provision and the 
proposed number of pupils for whom such provision is to be made. 

(2) Details of the proposed policy of the school relating to the education of pupils with special educational 
needs. 

15. Where it is proposed that the school will provide sixth form education, how the proposals will—  

a. improve the educational or training achievements;  

b. increase participation in education or training; or  

c. expand the range of educational or training opportunities 

 

for 16-19 year olds in the area. 

Page 125



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 8 

16. Whether the new school will admit pupils of both sexes or boys only or girls only and, in the case of a 
single sex school where it is intended to provide sixth form education, whether both sexes or boys or 
girls only are to be admitted to the sixth form. 

17. The proposed arrangements for transport of pupils to the school. 

18. Details of any proposals for the school to be federated with one or more schools (by virtue of 
sections 24 and 74(1) of the 2002 Act). 

19. Confirmation that the school will meet the general requirements in relation to curriculum contained in 
section 78 of the 2002 Act and an outline of any provision that will be in addition to the basic curriculum 
required by section 80 to the 2002 Act. 

20. An outline of the proposed senior staffing at the school. 

21. Where the school is to be a foundation school a statement as to whether the school—  

a. will have a foundation established otherwise than under the 1998 Act and if so the identity of that 
foundation;  

b. will belong to a group of schools for which a foundation body acts under section 21 of the 1998 
Act; or  

c. will not fall within sub-paragraph (a) or (b). 

 

22. Whether it is proposed that the new admission arrangements for the school will make provision for 
selection by ability as is mentioned in section 101 of the 1998 Act (pupil banding). 

Page 126



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 9 

Annex 2 Haringey council’s full bid to establish a new community secondary 
school 

 
 

Information Template for a Proposal to establish a secondary school made by a local 
authority 
 
The name of the local authority submitting the proposals together with the name and 
address of the person to whom enquiries should be sent. 

Haringey Council  

 
David Williamson 
Head of Secondary Innovations 
The Children and Young People’s Service. 
Civic Centre  
High Road  
London 
N22 4LE 
 
Whether the school is to be a community or foundation school. 
 

Community school  
 
 
The area or particular community or communities the school is expected to serve. 
 
Wood Green, Hornsey and Haringey Heartlands 
 
 
The proposed ethos of the school. 
 
The council’s school vision is set out in Bright Futures, which will increasingly 
become a key contextual influence on the processes of school improvement planning 
and longer term strategic development, both at individual school level and through 
collaboration among schools.  The school’s vision, and the approaches adopted for 
moving towards its realisation, are fully consistent with the Strategy. 

A Vision for the school 

“Our vision is to establish a successful school which enjoys the 
confidence of local communities, maximises the life chances of 
local children and young people, contributes to the well-being and 
cohesion of the local area and gains from the potential connections 
across the capital.  We intend to achieve high standards and 
ensure the inclusion of all our children and young people.  We 
believe they deserve nothing less” 

 
At the core of our mission is the commitment to: 
 

- achieve the highest standards, to be fully inclusive, to put the aspirations and 
achievement of the learner first and to contribute to community cohesion and 
race equality;  

- transform outcomes for vulnerable individuals and groups; 

Page 127



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 10

- play a key role in neighbourhood regeneration and in the wider agenda that 
supports the well-being of young people;  

- support all our partners with a stake in the future of young people to work 
together to provide the best possible opportunities for young people 

 
A statement as to whether the proposed school will have any specialisms on 
implementation and whether the local authority intends to apply to the Secretary of 
State for the school to be a specialist school from implementation. 
 
We propose that the school would have specialisms in visual arts and media, with 
additional specialisms in areas of SEN (Autism). Additionally the school will form an 
important contribution to the planned collaboration between Haringey schools to 
provide the full range of specialist diplomas, which will provide progression pathways 
14-19. 
 
Information on how the school would contribute to enhancing the diversity and quality 
of education in the area. 
 

Haringey has ten secondary schools, two of which are VA schools and one which is a 
girls school. There is one city academy, four special schools and a pupil referral unit.  

The LA has supported and promoted diversity in its school provision. We believe that 
we already have a secure balance in respect of types of schools to meet parent 
choice and a strong collegiate approach to school specialisms and 14-19 provision.    

Extensive consultation with a wide range of stakeholders strongly suggest that 
parents and other stakeholders would prefer an inclusive, community comprehensive 
school established under LA regulations. 
 
 
Information on how the school will help to raise the quality and standard of education 
in the area and contribute to school improvement. 
Standards in Haringey secondary schools have risen rapidly in the past five years 
due to the strong leadership we have established in our schools and in the effective 
partnerships that we have developed, particularly around 14-19 provision. We have 
already shown, by opening a new school in (1999) that we can establish successful 
new schools that achieve high standards. We believe that a new secondary school 
established under LA regulations, and operating as part of the community of 
Haringey schools, will be able to quickly establish itself and achieve high standards. 

 
Information on the extended services which will be provided. 
 
We propose that the school will provide a range of extended learning, leisure and 
social opportunities for young people, their families and other members of the 
community to include sport, leisure, cultural/arts activities, lettings and social events. 
At the core will be extended provision for pupils to use the facilities beyond the 
normal school day, at evenings, weekends and during holidays. The location of the 
school within the Haringey Cultural Quarter will provide synergies for both the cultural 
industries nearby to use the school’s facilities and for the school to enrich its 
provision through using the resources of local arts and media enterprises.  The 
school provision will include lifelong learning opportunities which will respond to the 
needs of the communities it serves. The LA has already worked with architects to 
develop initial proposals for the school site design to meet the requirements of 
extended community use.  In order to place schools at the forefront of delivery of 

Page 128



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 11

integrated services to children, families and communities, we will include flexible 
open space within our design proposals. 

The school will have close links with the West Haringey Children's Network, to 
provide a delivery framework for the new Children's agenda.  Through the Children’s 
Network, families will have access to a wide range of resources and coherent 
delivery of services. This will be especially important for pupils who will attend the 
specialist autistic unit of the school.   

The school will be the hub of a local network for visual arts and media, taking a lead 
to develop this specialism within the partnership of all secondary schools and 
providing opportunities and development expertise to local primary and special 
schools. 

Having this as an extended school will increase the efficient use of public resources 
for learning and leisure.  The concept of ‘dual accessibility’ will be achieved through 
attending to matters of design such as sports halls, ICT suites and other resources 
that are of benefit to groups other than the children attending or using that particular 
school or facility.  Further efficiencies will be found by flexible use of time, breaking 
out of traditional school hours and days.   

 
Information on how the proposals will contribute to enabling children and young 
people to: be healthy; stay safe; enjoy and achieve; make a positive contribution to 
the community and society and achieve economic well-being. 
We want the school to work to achieve the five outcomes in the Children Act: 
 

• Be healthy 

• Stay safe 

• Enjoy and achieve 

• Make a positive contribution 

• Achieve economic well-being 
 
We want to provide a healthy environment, light, well ventilated, good toilets and 
excellent eating facilities with freshly cooked food and pleasant surroundings in which 
to eat and drink. We want to have good sports facilities, accessible to all and for 
extended hours. We want access to nearby playing fields and other sports facilities, 
such as the ice rink at Alexandra Palace and the extensive facilities at the New River 
sports centre. 
 
We want pupils and staff to feel safe, so the site needs to balance a sense of 
welcome with good security. We want the building to be designed with promoting 
good behaviour in mind and eliminating areas where poor behaviour and bullying 
might happen.   
 
We want pupils to enjoy their school and be proud of its nature and design. We want 
a landmark building that gives a ‘wow factor’ to all that visit it. We want classrooms 
and learning facilities that will enable pupils to achieve their very best in all aspects of 
school life and to attain high standards so that they are prepared well for the next 
stage of their education or for work.  
 
We want pupils to have strong links with their local community and with other 
communities, including those in other countries. By this being an extended school we 
want to make most use of the facilities available, both to encourage the community to 
use the school and to enable pupils to interact with that community, for example the 
opportunities afforded by being in the cultural quarter. When open we want the 

Page 129



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 12

school to host the ‘Youth Parliament’ and other community events.  
 
By establishing excellent facilities in specialist areas and by making strong links with 
other schools and centres, we want to ensure all young people have a firm 
foundation to achieve economic well being.  
 
At lower Key Stage 3 we want strong links with local primary schools and will build a 
‘transition’ facility for years 7 and 8, where some core aspects of the curriculum will 
be taught by teachers dedicated to an integration of English, humanities, PSHE and 
citizenship. In this way we expect to focus on ensuring excellent progress in literacy 
as a platform for high achievement.  
 
We want to establish a strong base in all other aspects of the curriculum, but with a 
special emphasis on visual arts and media, because of the opportunities afforded by 
the location. We want to have facilities for artists in residence to work alongside 
pupils – studios where young people can explore a range of media and techniques 
with practising artists. We also want to establish a media production facility where 
professionals can demonstrate and model the power of effective communication, 
which will further enhance our core of literacy development.  
 
We want to ensure access to specialist facilities in other schools to open up 
opportunities 14-19. We expect to provide high quality facilities in media production 
and visual arts at Key Stage 4 for students in other schools. We also expect students 
wishing to study other pathways to spend some of their time at other locations. For 
example Alexandra Park school specialises in science and we anticipate that young 
people with a passion for science will be able to benefit from both video links, but will 
also attend specialist classes or courses at the school. By working in partnership with 
other local schools we expect to be able to provide a rich and diverse range of 
opportunities for students. 
 
An area of specialism that the school will offer is the education of students with 
autism. We will have a specialist unit and specialist staff, but with a core principle of 
integration across the curriculum. We will provide a resource base for 25 young 
people with autism. It is anticipated that the young people will spend a significant 
amount of time each day in the base and access mainstream classes in accordance 
with their individualized timetable. This provision will consist of teaching rooms and 
ancillary accommodation comprising small group rooms for calming, respite and one 
to one work. There is also a need for social bases and opportunities to develop social 
interaction and independent living skills. The autism unit will be linked to other 
schools in the borough through the SEN strategy and especially with Alexandra Park 
where there will be a facility to support students with Asperger’s Syndrome.   
 
ICT will be integral to all of our work. Students will have access to ICT in all 
classrooms, as and when they need it. Students will be able to log on to their school 
work at any location outside school. Safe Internet access will be ubiquitous at school 
and elsewhere because of managed services. Parents will be able to see what their 
children are being taught and what progress they are making. Governors, school 
leaders and managers will be able to examine the impact of their strategy on 
outcomes for pupils. Teachers will have ready access to pupil data, be able to plan 
their lessons by connecting electronically to peers in the school and in other schools. 
Teachers will be able to have their own lessons recorded and played back by 
teaching in classroom observatories so that they can evaluate what works well, or be 
able to share their work with others. Support staff will use ICT when working with 
pupils and to log their achievements. Coherent Management Information Systems 
will enable administrative staff to work efficiently and increase the effectiveness of 

Page 130



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 13

the school.  
 
How the school will promote and contribute to community cohesion, increase 
inclusion and equality of access for all social groups; and; collaborate with other 
schools, colleges and training providers. 
 
The way the new secondary school will promote and contribute to community 
cohesion, increase inclusion and equality of access for all social groups; and; 
collaborate with other schools, colleges and training providers, is detailed in 
Haringey’s Vision for the new secondary school expressed through four  strands: 
 

• Young People  

• Learning and Teaching  

• Leadership 

• Parents and the Community 

 
Each one will be considered in turn. 
 
Young People: 
 
We will recognise and promote the diversity, achievement and inclusion of all 
young people in the school, but also acknowledge the challenges for them 
growing up in such a diverse borough in the capital city. 
 
We will plan for the future by enabling young people to raise their aspirations 
and improve their attainment. We will champion the voice of young people, 
encouraging them to become active citizens, engaged in making decisions 
and a positive contribution to society. 
 
We will do this by: 
 
- establishing effective partnerships for children and young people. We will 

ensure that young people are healthy, stay safe, enjoy and achieve, make 
a positive contribution and achieve economic well being. In particular, 
through the partnership ensure that young people can feel safe in school. 

- listening to the views of young people and involving them in the design 
process to ensure that we design our provision around their needs to help 
them achieve their ambitions and to feel safe and secure. 

- establishing a Young People’s Council, to promote responsibility, inform 
decision making, secure self-reliance and help young people to make a 
positive contribution to the school and wider community. 

- developing strong partnerships with other schools and providers to 
sustain and improve opportunities for young people and provide the very 
best specialist facilities. 

- establishing  young people’s access to effective independent information, 
advice and guidance so that they can make wise choices about what they 
wish to do. 

- working with Haringey Youth Service to provide additional support and 
guidance and to support out of hours learning and leisure activities.  

- providing excellent access to ICT so that pupils have greater flexibility in 

Page 131



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 14

how they learn and have access to a wide range of information to help 
them to make wise choices. 

- promoting opportunities for young people in the arts and media so that 
they can benefit fully from the opportunities open to them in the capital 
city. 

- ensuring that young people’s physical well-being is supported through 
adequate provision of physical education, sports and health education. 

 
 
Learning and Teaching: 
 
We want to create a vibrant curriculum that inspires young people to be 
curious and self-motivated learners, wanting to know and achieve more and 
having the resources to direct their own learning. 
 
In addition we want to develop a highly motivated and well qualified work 
force that inspires young people, builds upon their creativity and promotes 
their learning.  
 
We will do this by: 
 
- placing young people at the forefront of transforming learning by meeting 

their diverse needs through a range of innovative approaches, including a 
significant use of ICT. 

- building on the innovative work begun on effective transition between 
primary and secondary phases in other schools to ensure that all young 
people make excellent progress in their early years of secondary 
schooling. 

- providing curriculum flexibilities at each Key Stage, especially for young 
people at risk of under-achievement and to enable early entry and 
accreditation for higher achieving students. 

- providing an extensive range of pathways, including at other locations at 
Key Stage 4 so that more young people are inspired by what they are 
learning and are enthusiastic to continue education post-16, or secure 
rewarding training or employment. 

- using ICT to transform learning and teaching 

- being an extended school, providing out of hours access to learning, 
especially for those young people with limited resources at home. 

- using the arts and media to harness and sustain interest in vocational 
training 

- a team of highly skilled and motivating teachers that promotes and 
exemplifies a passion for excellence in learning and teaching. 

- creating a school in which the best staff will want to work because of what 
we offer in the educational opportunities for young people, the working 
environment and excellent professional development opportunities for all 
staff,  

 
 
 

Page 132



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 15

 
Leadership 
 
We are committed to having leaders of the new school that have a deep 
sense of moral purpose, who are able to develop a community role beyond 
the boundaries of the school and who can lead with a collegiate style that 
enables others and builds strong partnerships.  
 
We expect the headteacher that is appointed to have the following qualities: 

• able to provide vision and drive  
 

• an outstanding record of leadership  
 

• strong aspirations for all students, whatever their starting point 
 

• the energy, skills and personality to motivate and inspire all students and staff 
 

• the ability to harness parental and LEA support and commitment 
 

• a track record in successful management, innovation and delivery 
 
The leadership of the school at all levels will influence and champion 
community cohesion and race equality issues.  We want the school to 
establish itself as a hub of community regeneration and cohesion, providing 
the best opportunities for all young people and continue to build strong 
communities. 
 
Leading on learning is the key priority for leadership.  We will establish 
collaborative development within the school and with other schools that will 
continuously refresh our ideas about what makes learning effective, how to 
sustain our strong vision about learning and how to translate our vision into 
the bloodstream of practice in their school. 
 
 
We are committed to the idea that collaboration and collegiality between 
Haringey schools adds to their strength.  We want to build upon this to 
achieve sustainability, strengthening collaboration wherever possible.   
 
 
Parents and the Community 
 
 
We want to promote partnerships with parents/carers in the successful 
education of young people and forge strong working relationships with local 
communities and their organisations. 
 
We will do this by: 
 
- supporting parents to be decision-makers, learners and educational 

providers and governors. 

- sustaining and building on the most effective practice to promote parental 
involvement in schools. 

- promoting family and adult learning through our extended school status. 

Page 133



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 16

- involving parents in a number of forums so they can contribute to the 
evaluation of our effectiveness as a school, and helping us to ensure we 
are meeting the needs of their children. 

- ensuring that all young people and their families have access to high 
quality independent information, advice and guidance, including careers 
advice to enable them to make wise choices about their educational and 
employment pathways. 

 
 
An indication of the admission arrangements and over-subscription criteria for the 
proposed school. 
 
The admission arrangements would be the same as all other Community secondary 
schools in Haringey, as follows. 
 
The admission criteria for the mixed community secondary schools give priority to 
applicants in the following order: 
 
a) Children with special educational needs (SEN) identified through a statement 
issued under the Education Act 1996 which names the school, or children in public 
care, or children who are the subject of an Education Supervision Order under the 
Children Act 1989 which names the school. 

 
b) Children who the Director of The Children and Young People’s Service accepts 
have an exceptional medical, social or educational need for a place at the school. 
Applications will only be considered under this category if they are supported by a 
written statement from a doctor, social worker or other appropriate professional. In 
each case, the connection between the child’s need and the specific school applied 
for must be clearly demonstrated. 
 
c) Children with a brother or sister already attending the school and who will still be 
attending on the date of admission. This category includes foster brothers and 
sisters, half-brothers and half-sisters or stepbrothers and stepsisters. Parents should 
note that in all of these cases, the brother or sister must be living at the same 
address as the child for whom the application is being made. 
 
d) Children living closest to the preferred school (distance is measured in a straight 
line using a computerised mapping system). 
 
 
Confirmation that the size, age-range and admission number of the school will be in 
line with the specification in the notice, or, if this is not the case, the proposed details. 
 
The new Secondary school will accommodate (educate) 1080 boys and girls 
between the ages of 11 and 16.  The school will be built to accommodate 8 forms of 
entry in each year group. The number of pupils to be initially admitted to the school at 
age 11, will be 162 pupils (6 forms of entry). When there is sufficient demand, the roll 
will be increased to admit 216 pupils (8 forms of entry).   
 
The date on which the proposals are planned to be implemented, or where the 
proposals are planned to be implemented in stages, the date on which each stage is 
planned to be implemented. 
 

Page 134



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 17

1st  September 2010 
 
Information as to whether the school will have provision that is recognised by the 
local authority as reserved for children with special educational needs and, if so, the 
nature of such provision and the proposed number of pupils for whom such provision 
is to be made. 
 
There will be an additional 25 places in a special unit for students with autism. 
 
 
Details of the proposed policy of the school relating to the education of pupils with 
special educational needs. 
 
We propose that school would operate within Haringey’s Educational Inclusion Policy 
which seeks to ensure that children and young people with Special Educational 
Needs (SEN), including those with complex and high levels of support needs, are 
fully included in their school community and that they access a rich and enhanced 
educational experience alongside their peers.  We see this as a human rights issue 
and that educational inclusion is about removing barriers to learning and 
participation.  
 
In common with other LA's there has been a significant increase in the number of 
children diagnosed with an autistic spectrum disorder. The high number coming 
through the primary phase indicates the increase in the number of children with a 
diagnosis of autistic spectrum disorder. The data also demonstrates the need for 
more secondary provision over coming years. The Children’s Service therefore 
proposes to establish resource bases in two secondary schools which cater for 
young people with severe and complex needs in relation to their autism and/or 
Asperger’s syndrome. One will be at Alexandra Park school, focusing on Asperger’s 
Syndrome and the other, at the new school.  
 
Where it is proposed that the school will provide sixth form education, how the 
proposals will improve the educational or training achievements; increase 
participation in education or training; or expand the range of educational or training 
opportunities, for 16-19 year olds in the area. 
 
We want the school to make full use of Haringey’s response to the Government’s 14-
19 reforms. The school will be included within the 14-19 partnership so that young 
people will have an opportunity to study specialist diplomas, which will provide them 
with pathway opportunities post 16. For those wishing to follow a general route there 
are many opportunities at local schools, colleges and the Haringey Sixth Form 
Centre.  

The school would benefit from the effective curriculum planning, which is a strength 
in Haringey.  A broad range of demand-led collaborative academic and vocational 
courses at levels 1, 2 and 3 is being introduced across the borough. The school 
would be well placed to benefit from the connections made by the LA and its partners 
who have responded well to meet the diversity of needs at 14-19 and are open to 
innovation.   

 
Whether the new school will admit pupils of both sexes or boys only or girls only and, 
in the case of a single sex school where it is intended to provide sixth form education, 
whether both sexes or boys or girls only are to be admitted to the sixth form. 
 

Page 135



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 18

The school will admit pupils of both sexes. 
 
The proposed arrangements for transport of pupils to the school. 
 
The site is close to Alexandra Palace Station and 600 metres from Wood Green tube 
and bus station, making travel to and from the school convenient. 
 
This plan will encourage the use of greener alternatives for the school run, for 
example walking, using bicycle or public transport.  
 

• Students will be encouraged to use buses and school buses on each route 
before school and after school. 

 

• Students will be encouraged to cycle if their bikes can be stored safely at 
school and if cycle parking at school would keep bikes protected from all 
weather conditions and safe.  

 

• Students will be encouraged to walk if they could do so with friends.  
 
Transport arrangements for students with a statement of educational need will be in 
accordance with the assessment of each individual’s need as detailed in their 
statement. 
 
Details of any proposals for the school to be federated with one or more schools (by 
virtue of sections 24 and 74(1) of the 2002 Act). 
 
There are no plans currently to have the school working under a hard federation. 
However, we would want the school to explore how it can establish strong links with 
other local schools in a soft federation.  
 
Confirmation that the school will meet the general requirements in relation to 
curriculum contained in section 78 of the 2002 Act and an outline of any provision 
that will be in addition to the basic curriculum required by section 80 to the 2002 Act. 
 
The school will meet the general requirements as set out in legislation to provide a 
broad and balanced curriculum and Sections 78 & 80 of the Education Act 2002 set 
out the details.  
 
The school curriculum will comprose all learning and other experiences that the 
school provides for its pupils.  This includes the national curriculum, religious 
education (RE), collective worship, sex and relationship education (SRE) and 
careers education.  
 
The school curriculum has two aims:  

• to provide opportunities for all pupils to learn and achieve;  
• to promote pupils’ spiritual, moral, social and cultural development and 

prepare all pupils for the opportunities, responsibilities and experiences of 
life.  

 
These two aims fully reflect Section 78 & 80 of the Education Act 2002.  
 
The school will meet for 380 half-day sessions a year (190 days, which is consistent 
with the 195 days - including 5 training days - that teachers are required to be 
available).  

Page 136



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 19

 
The school will carry out the appropriate end of key stage assessments and offer 
only approved qualifications within the national framework. 
  
The school will be inspected by the Office for Standards in Education (OFSTED). 
 
An outline of the proposed senior staffing at the school. 
 
The staffing structure of the school will be a matter to be determined by the 
Temporary Governing Body when established, advised by the Headteacher. We 
propose that the headteacher will be in post 18 months ahead of the opening, with a 
phased appointment of other senior staff in the run up to the school opening in 
September 2010.  In general terms, the senior staffing structure is likely to be a 
headteacher with one deputies and a small team of assistant headteachers in the 
first three years, with numbers of staff and the size of the senior team gradually 
increasing as the pupil intake increases to become an eight form entry and reaching 
its 1080 pupils on roll. Through a soft federation with other schools it is possible that 
specialist staff could be shared, so that the school could offer a larger range of 
expertise than might be available to it otherwise with its pupil-numbers based 
income. Haringey will, if supported in its proposals, explore the potential for such 
collaborations with other local secondary schools.  
 
 
Where the school is to be a foundation school a statement as to whether the 
school— 

(a)  will have a foundation established otherwise than under the 1998 Act and 
if so the identity of that foundation; 
(b)  will belong to a group of schools for which a foundation body acts under 
section 21 of the 1998 Act; or 

will not fall within sub-paragraph (a) or (b). 

 
N/A 
 
Whether it is proposed that the new admission arrangements for the school will make 
provision for selection by ability as is mentioned in section 101 of the 1998 Act (pupil 
banding). 
 
Not proposed 
 
 

 

Page 137



Page 138

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

 

     Agenda item:  

   Executive                       On 21st November 2006 

 
 

Report Title: Learner Support Fund (LSF) Policy 
 

Report of: Sharon Shoesmith, Director,  Children and Young People’s Service 
 

 
Wards(s) affected: All 
 

Report for: Key Decision 

1. Purpose  
1.1 All providers of LSF must have a written policy on how the fund is allocated, including 

assessing learners’ income and a procedure for learners to appeal if they are refused 
funding.  These policies must be made widely available and must apply principles of 
equality and diversity. 

 
1.2 Executive to agree Haringey’s LSF policy. 
 

2. Introduction by Executive Member  

2.1 I support the proposal to give the scheme wider publicity – timely given the opening of 
the new 6FC.  

2.2 The LSF policy will provide additional financial support for post 16 students from 
across Haringey so that they can continue their studies, thus improving their life 
chances.  

 

3. Recommendations 

3.1 That Executive approves the LSF policy as set out in Appendix 1. 
 
3.2 That Executive delegate powers to the Director of the Children and Young People’s 

Service in consultation with the Lead Member for Children and Young People’s 
Service to agree this policy in future years. 

 

Report Authorised by:      
 
   Sharon Shoesmith 
   Director 
                                The Children and Young People’s Service  

[No.] 

APPENDIX A 
 
REPORT  

Agenda Item 10Page 139



 

 2 

 

 
Contact Officer: Norma Downer-Powell, Head of Administration  
 

 

4. Director of Finance Comments 

4.1 The Director of Finance was consulted in the preparation of this report and comments 
that the LSF is 100% grant funded and therefore has no financial implications for the 
authority. 

 

 

5. Head of Legal Services Comments 

5.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report and has 
no specific comment other than that the Guidance from the Learning and Skills Council 
referred to at paragraph 6.1 of the report draws providers’ attention to the need to have 
robust systems in place to minimise the risk of fraud.  
 
 

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

6.1 Learning Skills Council, Learner Support Fund: Funding Guidance for 2006/07 
 

7. Financial Implications 

7.1 The LSC gives Haringey a LSF of £10,660, of this 5% (£533) can be applied to offset 
administrative costs leaving £10,127 to be allocated to those who meet the criteria and apply on 
a first come first served basis. 
 
7.2 In the last academic year of the 36 applications received, we approved 27 (£7,337). There 
are still two pending. The highest payment was £400.00 and the lowest was £60.00, with an 
average of £253. 

8. Legal Implications 

8.1 Where applicants have not met the criteria, this may lead to appeals.  

 
8.2 To minimise the risk of fraud applicants must provide their EMA (Education Maintenance 
Allowance) for the year in which they are applying. Their FSM (Free School Meal) authorisation 
letter is also required.  These two documents carries proof of address as applicants must be 
resident in Haringey.  Applicants are also asked to provide proof of purchase. 

9. Equalities Implications  

9.1 Approval of applications will be on a first come first served basis.  As the funds are limited, 
only those applications who meet the criteria, i.e. those getting EMA, FSM, living in the borough, 
have a medical or learning difficulty will be considered. 

Page 140



 

 3 

10. Consultation 

10.1 Due to the small amount of funds available, no formal consultation has taken place.  

11. Background 

11.1 LSF helps learners aged 16 and above with the costs associated with learning, in particular 
where there are hardship and or childcare needs. 

12. Conclusion 

 
12.1 This is the first time in a number of years that this policy has been reviewed.  It is intended 
to publicise this on the web and to all Haringey secondary schools.  This may well increase the 
take up on last year. 
 
13. Use of Appendices: 
 

1. Policy on providing LSF (16-19* Year Olds) for 2006/7 Academic Year 
2. Application Form for LSF 2006/7 – form LSF1 

 
        
 

 

Page 141



Page 142

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICE 

 

 

LEARNER SUPPORT FUND (LSF) 
 

POLICY 2006/2007 

 

 

 

Page 143



 2 

 

      Appendix  

1 
       

Policy on Providing 

Learner Support Fund (16-19* Year Olds) for 2006/7 

Academic Year 

 

1.  What are Learner Support Funds? 

 
1.1  This is a limited discretionary fund which can assist sixth from 

students with a one off grant up to a maximum £400. 

 

2.  Who is entitled? 
All applicants must meet the following criteria:  

 

2.1 If you have a specific financial need which presents barriers to 

studying, or if you have a disability, medical condition or 

learning difficulty; 

 

2.2 aged between 16-19 ( 20* for child care); 

 

2.3  are normally resident in the Borough of Haringey; 

 

2.4  currently receiving an Education Maintenance Allowance( 

EMA ) or 

currently entitled to receive a free school meal; 

 

2.5 attending a school sixth form full time. 

 

3. What the grant may be spent on 
The grant may be used as a contribution towards the cost of: 

 

3.1 special equipment that you may need  for your course; 

 

3.2 books or materials that you may need for your course; 

 

3.3  a school field trip; 

Page 144



 3 

 

3.4 the cost of travel expenses to attend university interviews. Travel 

must be by the  most economical method; 

 

3.5 childcare -  the applicant must be aged 20+ and the main 

carer of the child;  

The child must be cared for by an OFSTED registered 

nursery/creche/ child    minder. 

      

6. How do I apply? 

 
6.1 Complete application form LSF 1.  

This is available from your school, from Haringey's web page 

www.haringey.gov.uk under the heading Learner Support Funds 

or your 

nearest Haringey Customer Service Centre or by telephoning  

020 8489 3863. 

 

6.2 Submit one of the following: 
 
6.3 a copy of  your Education Maintenance Allowance (EMA) 

Award notification        2006/07; 

 

 6.4   a copy of your free school meal entitlement letter which is 

dated within the last two months; 

 

6.5  a statement regarding your disability, medical condition, or 

learning difficulties. 

 

6.6 We will ask you to submit a receipt of your purchase.  Additional 

information may also be requested but if this is the case we will 

let you know. 

 

7. How do I receive payment? 
7.1 If your application is successful you will be notified in writing 

showing how much has been approved.  Payment will be 

made by cheque.  

 

8. What happens if my application is unsuccessful? 
8.1 You have the right to appeal against the decision. You should 

submit an appeal in writing stating your reasons why you feel 

Page 145



 4 

that the Council has not applied the policy correctly. You 

should submit your appeal within 10 working days of receiving 

the decision to: 

Vanessa Giles Student Finance and Entitlements, 

48 Station Road Wood Green London N22 7TY. 

 

9. Please remember 
9.1 The Learner Support Fund is cash limited.  It is administered on a 

first come first served basis. We may not be able to help every 

applicant. 

  

Page 146



 5 

   Appendix 2 

Form LSF 1 

 

 Application for Learner Support Funds 2006/07 
Please complete sections A B and D. Your school representative, course 

tutor or   teacher must sign Section C  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section A 

(Please print) 

 

Applicants full name…………………………………………………………………. 
    

Home address……………………………………………………………………….. 

 

…………………………………………………Post code………………………… 

 

Telephone number…………………………….Date of birth…………………….. 

Section B 

(Please print) 

 

Course name………………………………………………………………. 

 

School name……………………………………………………………….. 

 

Number of hours that you attend school each week…………………….  

 

Please tell us what support you need. Tick only one of the following: 

 

   Special equipment  �   Books  �  Materials �  School Field trip �  

   

   Child care  �  University/ College  interview travel costs � 

 

Please give below the reason(s) you are asking for a contribution 

towards the above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The approximate cost of the items etc you are claiming for.  
(Continue on a separate sheet if necessary) 

     

Page 147



 6 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Section C to be completed by school representative, course tutor or 

teacher.  

 

I confirm that the above named student is in full time attendance on the 

course shown in section B. The claim for a contribution from the Learner 

Support Funds is reasonable and appropriate for the course. 

 

Name………………………………………….Position…………………………….   

 

 

 

School stamp 

Section D Declaration to be signed by the applicant and the parent or 

legal carer 

 

We certify that the information given on this form is correct. The Learner 

Support payment will be used to purchase or pay for the items shown in 

Section B. 

We understand that the Council reserves the right to ask to see any 

receipts as proof of purchase or payment. 

 

Applicants 

signature…………………………………………date………………….. 

 

Please return your completed form with your evidence to the nearest 

Haringey Customer Service Centre or by post to: 

Student Finance and Entitlements 

48 Station Road 

London N22 7TY 

0208 489 3863 

Page 148



 7 

Haringey Council believes equalities monitoring is important because it allows 

the council to monitor take up and use of its services. The information 

collected on this section of the form is confidential and will be used only to 

ensure service provision is fair and equitable to all sections of the community.   

 

Ethnicity: What is your ethnic group? Please tick !!!! one box from the 

appropriate section: 

 

White:   �  British     � Irish      �  Greek Cypriot     �  Turkish Cypriot   �  Kurdish  �    

 

Turkish   �  Other white background please write in…………………………….  

 

 

Mixed:  �  White & Black Caribbean       �  White & Black African      � White & 

Asian  

 

 � Other mixed background please write in…………………………… 

 

 

Asian or Asian Black:      �  Indian      � Pakistani      �   Bangladeshi         �  East 

African  

 

Asian  �   Other Asian background please write in………………………………….. 

 

 

Black or Black British:   � Caribbean      � African   �  

  

Other black background please write in…………………….. 

 

Chinese: �            �  Any other ethnic group please write  

 

In…………………………………. 

 

Page 149



Page 150

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

     Agenda item:  

   Executive                       On 21 November 2006 

 

Report Title: Maximising household income in Haringey 
 

Report of: Director of Social Services 
 

 
Wards(s) affected: All 
 

Report for: Non-Key Decision 

1. Purpose  

1.1 To seek the agreement of the Executive to an income maximisation strategy and 
action plan being developed as set out below. 

 

1.2 To seek the agreement in principle of the Executive to a strategic framework for 
activity to tackle poverty and social exclusion in Haringey being developed as set out 
below. 

 

2. Introduction by Executive Member  

2.1 This report sets out a realistic route to greater success in increasing the disposable 
income of many of Haringey’s most disadvantaged residents. It also paves the way in 
the longer term for greater co-ordination of approaches to tackling poverty and social 
exclusion across the borough. I recommend its approval.  

 

3. Recommendations 

3.1 That the development of a focused ‘income maximisation’ strategy and action plan be 
approved to be taken forward as a project to be planned by January 2007, 
concentrating on improved co-ordination of activity in the areas of welfare rights 
services and advice provision. 

 

3.2 That it be recognised that this is dependent on ongoing resources being found 
through the Council’s business planning process. 

 

3.3 That in addition the future development of a strategic framework for all activity in 
Haringey which tackles poverty and social exclusion be approved in principle, to 
follow after the agreement of the new Community Strategy. 

 

 
Report Authorised by: Catherine Galvin, Acting Director of Social Services 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 11Page 151



 

 2 

 

 
Contact Officer: Catherine Galvin, Assistant Director Business Improvement 
                          catherine.galvin@haringey.gov.uk    (020) 8489 3719 
 

4. Director of Finance Comments 

4.1 The Director of Finance has been consulted and notes the bid to the NRF of £30k to 
fund the mapping project.  The financial implications will need to be identified as the 
strategy is further developed. 

 

5. Head of Legal Services Comments 

5.1 The local authority has the power to implement the recommendations in this report in 
accordance with the ‘well-being powers’ contained in the Local Government Act 2000.  
Section 2 of this Act gives the local authority the power to do anything which it 
considers is likely to achieve promotion or improvement of the economic, social or 
environmental well-being of the area (unless it is prohibited by another enactment).  
The well-being powers should also be exercised with regard to the Community 
Strategy and this is considered in this report. 

 

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

6.1 Review of Advice Funding, March 2006 (abridged version) – for a copy contact Susan 
Humphries, Head of the Council’s Voluntary Sector Team 
(susan.humphries@haringey.gov.uk, 020 8489 6902). 

 

7. Strategic Implications 

7.1 Improved advice and welfare rights provision in Haringey would contribute to several 
objectives of the 2003-2007 Community Strategy: 

 

• Better access to jobs – increased benefit income can be expected to mostly be 
spent locally, which would boost the local economy and create jobs. As benefit 
awards are often ongoing, this boost could be sustainable in the longer term. 

 

• Better housing for all – provision of advice is a key tool both in reducing 
homelessness (by advising on housing debt etc) and keeping housing decent (by 
facilitating equity release, helping secure utility supplies etc). 

 

• Developing the most deprived areas – it can reasonably be expected that a 
successful income maximisation strategy would have most effect on residents in the 
deprived parts of the borough, environmentally (through the positive effect of 
helping people to remain in decent homes) as well as economically. 

 

• Improve access to public services for everyone in the community – information 
about services and rights enables people to know what services might be open to 
them. Increasing income also reduces social exclusion, both by improving people’s 
well-being and confidence, and by alleviating the impact of external barriers such as 
transport and healthcare costs. 

 

Page 152



 

 3 

7.2 It would also contribute to the Well-being Partnership Board’s strategic objective of 
“achieving economic well-being”, which has been an identified priority in the allocation 
of NRF money for 2006/07. The specific outcome targeted has been to increase 
household income by an average of £10 per week in the three wards (Northumberland 
Park, Bruce Grove and Noel Park) with Super Output Areas with the greatest levels of 
deprivation. 

8. Financial Implications 

8.1 The extent of any investment required to implement an income maximisation strategy 
cannot be accurately assessed until a full mapping exercise of existing provision has 
been undertaken.  

8.2 However the rather disparate and un-coordinated nature of existing Council funding in 
this area means that a mapping exercise is likely to highlight scope for rationalisation of 
this existing provision, which may in itself free up resources for some extra provision. 

8.3 This initial mapping exercise will itself require resources, and consequently a bid is 
being made for £30,000 of Neighbourhood Renewal Fund reserve funding to facilitate 
this.  

9. Legal Implications 

9.1 The local authority has the power to implement the recommendations in this report in 
accordance with the ‘well-being powers’ contained in the Local Government Act 2000.  
Section 2 of this Act gives the local authority the power to do anything which it 
considers is likely to achieve promotion or improvement of the economic, social or 
environmental well-being of the area (unless it is prohibited by another enactment).  
The well-being powers should also be exercised with regard to the Community Strategy 
and this is considered in this report. 

10. Equalities Implications  

10.1 It is recognised that many of the issues around maximising household income in 
Haringey relate closely to inequalities in access to services. It will therefore be a 
fundamental part of the development of this strategy to robustly assess the scale of 
these inequalities and which groups they affect (including through the use of 
consultation as described below), and then to identify appropriate and effective actions 
to tackle them. By doing this it is intended that the income maximisation strategy will 
benefit all the diverse communities of Haringey. 

11. Consultation 

11.1 There will be a clear need to consult widely with partners, especially the 
voluntary sector, on the development of this strategy. Public consultation will also be 
actively considered, although it is known to be difficult to engage people in a targeted 
consultation exercise on the basis that they are ‘poor’. 

 

11.2 If Members agree the approach outlined in this report, the detail of appropriate 
consultation on the income maximisation strategy will be considered as an integral part 
of its development.  

12. Background: Income maximisation strategy 

12.1 The Scrutiny Review of Benefit Take-Up agreed by the Council’s Executive in 
September 2005 made a number of recommendations to aid improving benefit take-

Page 153



 

 4 

up rates, particularly by improving strategic direction and co-ordination. These 
recommendations included that an anti-poverty strategy be developed for the 
borough. The Director of Social Services was made the corporate lead officer for 
income maximisation. 

 

12.2 A Review of Advice Funding commissioned by the Council’s Voluntary Sector Team 
and published in March 2006 found that there is “a huge and unmet need” for advice 
in Haringey. It made a number of recommendations to improve provision, including 
that consideration should be given to: 

• developing an advice strategy with partner organisations; 

• developing a strategic planning and commissioning body with partner organisations; 

• providing greater support for voluntary sector capacity-building;  

• providing welfare rights training to appropriate Council staff; and 

• tightening the Council’s commissioning criteria to ensure value for money and to 
minimise capacity and competence issues amongst voluntary organisations 
commissioned to provide advice. 

 

12.3 A study published in October 2006 by London Councils (formerly the Association of 
London Government) entitled ‘Mapping London Voluntary Sector Child Poverty 
Related Activity’ found that there is a general need across London for all tiers of 
government to increase focus on the advice sector. Recommended measures include 
developing understanding and awareness of what services are in place, levelling out 
provision and making it more accessible, particularly to disadvantaged and vulnerable 
groups, and ensuring that an appropriate range of specialist advice is available. 

 

12.4 In addition to the strategic advantages of improving benefit take-up identified in the 
Report of the Scrutiny Review of Benefit Take-Up, national research has also shown 
that: 

• not only is benefits income mostly spent locally, but for every extra £100,000 
spent at local shops and businesses an extra job is likely to be created within 
the local economy; 

• provision of debt advice to tenants (especially private sector tenants) can 
significantly reduce rates of property abandonment; and 

• increases in benefit income result in better physical and mental health both 6 
and 12 months later. 

13. Background: Strategic framework for anti-poverty and social exclusion work 

13.1 The report agreed by the Executive on the Scrutiny Review of Benefit Take-Up 
stressed that it should not be attempted to write a comprehensive “anti-poverty 
strategy” addressing all the underlying determinants of poverty, because this would 
inevitably involve duplication of various existing Council and partnership strategies 
which already address different elements of these determinants.  

 

13.2 However, the absence of any such all-encompassing strategic document does mean 
that: 

• it may be hard to gain an overall understanding of the range of work carried out 
by the Council and partners which impacts upon poverty and social exclusion; 
and  

• there may not be consistent policy principles behind different initiatives stemming 
from different service areas. 

Page 154



 

 5 

14. Conclusion 

14.1 It is proposed that the respective sets of recommendations from the Scrutiny Review 
of Benefit Take-Up and the Review of Advice Funding be taken forward through the 
development of a single ‘income maximisation’ strategy and action plan. This will fulfil 
the decision of the Executive in September 2005 that a strategy on anti-poverty 
issues should be “strongly focused on practical action the Council can deliver 
organisationally and practically”. 

 

14.2 It is believed that this approach has the potential to make a significant impact on 
financial hardship in Haringey over the first three years of the lifespan of the 
Community Strategy. 

 

14.3 Officers are additionally investigating future development of a broader strategic 
framework (as opposed to an actual strategy) for anti-poverty and social exclusion 
initiatives in Haringey. This would have the potential to: 

• identify where gaps exist in current Council and partner activity in this area; and 

• establish basic policy principles to inform all future activity. 
 

14.4 However, it is felt that any such strategic framework should be developed following 
the completion of the new Community Strategy. This will ensure synergy in further 
articulating the broad vision of the Council (and its partners) in relation to addressing 
poverty and social exclusion over the full 10-year lifespan of the new Community 
Strategy.  

Page 155



Page 156

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

     Agenda item:  
 

Executive                              On 21st November 2006 

 

Report Title: Forfeiture Proceedings against  Residential Leaseholders   
 

Report of:   Director of Social Services and Housing 
 

 
Wards(s) affected: All 
 

Report for: Key Decision 

1. Purpose 

1.1 To obtain approval of a proposed change in enforcement policy in relation to 
leasehold service charge debts.   

 

2. Introduction by Executive Member 

2.1 In the last 3 years we have improved tremendously the income collection capacity of 
the council in this area, to the point that the service now exceeds its targets and its 
collection rate is one of the best in London. 

2.2 However we need to maintain this position and there is still some room for further 
improvement. 

2.3 In this context, there is a problem with some persistent cases, exacerbated by a 
recent trend by some mortgage companies to refuse paying (and adding to the 
mortgages) outstanding debts on leasehold properties (a usual procedure in such 
cases) unless the freeholder threatens forfeiture proceedings. 

2.4 For the sake of fairness and equitable treatment, as well as for financial good-
housekeeping reasons, it is advisable that the council agrees with the Homes for 
Haringey request to adopt a policy that involves enforcing the forfeiture clauses in 
residential leases, in undisputed cases and as very last resort. 

2.5 When first approached with the proposal, I asked for assurances about safeguards 
against any potential unnecessary penalisation of leaseholders who may be 
genuinely unable to pay and make use of the range of facilities we have already 
adopted to assist in such cases, or those who otherwise are unable to respond to 
such procedures for other genuine reasons. 

2.6 Subject to members finding the safeguards listed in the report adequate, I 
recommend acceptance of the recommendation. 

3. Recommendation 

The Executive is recommended to approve a policy of taking legal proceedings to forfeit 
the lease    as an enforcement procedure of last resort against residential leaseholders 
who fail to pay leasehold service charges. 

                                                                                                                                                

[No.] 

 

Agenda Item 12Page 157



 

 2 

 

 
Report authorised by:  Catherine Galvin 
    Acting Director of Social Services and Housing 
 
 

 
Contact Officer:    Nesan Thevanesan,  
    Finance Manager Home Ownership Team 
 
 

 

4. Executive Summary 

4.1  The Council is the freeholder of and Homes for Haringey (HfH) manages about 
4300 residential leasehold flats sold under the Right to Buy.  HfH is responsible for 
collecting the leasehold service charges payable to the Council.  These charges 
vary between relatively small debts for annual maintenance charges to more 
substantial debts in respect of the leaseholder contribution to major improvements.   

 
4.2 HfH regularly takes County Court proceedings against individual leaseholders to 

recover unpaid leasehold service charges.  Once a County Court Judgement (CCJ) 
has been obtained it is often necessary to take enforcement proceedings to recover 
the debt.  Various procedures are available.  The most efficient and cost effective 
sanction is likely to be forfeiture proceedings.  This means that if the debtor fails or 
refuses to pay the CCJ debt the Council can ask the Court to order that the lease be 
forfeit and the property returned to Council ownership.   

 
4.3 The Council’s standard Right-to-Buy lease already provides for forfeiture in these 

circumstances.  It is a standard procedure in the private sector but the Council does 
not at present use this method.   

 
4.4 The Home Ownership Team (HOT) at HfH has introduced numerous schemes to 

assist leaseholders who cannot pay.  
 

 

5. Reasons for any change in policy or for new policy development (if applicable) 

 5.1   HfH  already takes enforcement proceedings in which the ultimate outcome for the 
leaseholder could be eviction and loss of the home.     Under current procedures, 
this involves two separate applications to the Court – firstly to obtain a Charging 
Order to secure the debt against the property and secondly to obtain an Order for 
Sale to Enforce the Charge.  The Court also requires expert evidence of the value of 
the property.    Forfeiture proceedings only require a single application to the Court 
and do not require valuation evidence.  They should therefore be more cost effective. 

 
 5.2 The main difference in the outcome is that following an enforced sale the leaseholder 

receives the balance of the proceeds of sale after paying the debts.  Under forfeiture 
proceedings the property reverts back to Council ownership.    The Council does not 

Page 158



 

 3 

particularly want property back – it wants the debt paid.  A leaseholder should be 
able to borrow against the property to pay the debt.  Some mortgage companies are 
reluctant to give a second mortgage.  Some leaseholders are reluctant to ask for 
one.  But most mortgage companies will want to protect the lease rather than lose 
their security and will implement a clause in the mortgage that enables them to pay 
off the debt and add it to the mortgage.  They will not do this unless the Council first 
initiates the forfeiture procedure by serving a “Section 146 Notice” (see para. 11.0  
below – penultimate bullet point). 

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

6.1 Minutes of Leaseholder Panel Meeting 6 May 2006  
 

7. Director of Finance Comments 

7.1 Forfeiture as a method of debt collection was presented and discussed as a final 
solution in the collection process at Debt Management Board meetings. One of the 
main reasons for using it was, that its use was seen as being successful in forcing 
mortgage companies to add outstanding debt to mortgages rather than risk losing the 
security of the lease.  Approval for its use was given on this basis 

 
 

8. Head of Legal Service Comments 

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this Report.  The 
Report accurately sets out the legal implications, likely outcomes,  and statutory 
safeguards in relation to forfeiture proceedings.   

 

9. Background  

 
9.1  The  process for dealing with non-payers is :- 
 

(1) HfH contact the leaseholder and endeavour to resolve any disputes by negotiation.  
If agreement cannot be reached, legal proceedings are issued to obtain a money 
judgement in the County Court (CCJ).  Any disputes will be resolved by the Court 
or the Leasehold Valuation Tribunal. (LVT). 

 
(2) Once a CCJ has been obtained, then in the absence of payment, it must be 

enforced.   
 

(3) Any debtor may apply to the Court to pay a CCJ by instalments.   HfH policy is to 
resist instalment payments at this stage on grounds that the leaseholder owns a 
substantial capital asset and equity against which he can borrow to discharge the 
debt.  The Council should not have to provide what in effect would be an interest 
free loan. 

 
(4) If there is a mortgage, the mortgage company is invited to pay the debt to protect 

its interest.    The mortgage loan is secured against the lease.  If the lease is forfeit 
the security is lost.  Most mortgages therefore contain a clause that allows the 

Page 159



 

 4 

mortgagee to pay the debt and add the amount to the mortgage loan.  This is 
efficient for the Council because it facilitates prompt payment of the CCJ.  It is 
effective for the Mortgagee because it protects their interest and adds to the loan 
which in turn attracts further interest.  It is effective for the debtor because the debt 
is paid off by affordable instalments under the existing mortgage arrangement. 
Unfortunately, some mortgage companies have now adopted a policy of not 
paying unless the council has implemented the forfeiture procedure. 

 
(5) If the mortgage company does not pay, or there is no mortgage,  HfH must enforce 

against the individual.   HfH has experimented with a variety of enforcement 
procedures including:-.   

 
(a)  County Court Bailiff (Warrant of Execution) 
A trial of 15 cases involving debts under £750 established that this is an inefficient 
method.  There was a nil return in all cases.   

 
(b)  Insolvency 
A number of statutory demands were served with limited success.  These require 
the debtor to pay or secure the debt within 21 days. If they do not,  the Council can 
petition for bankruptcy.  In selected cases the procedure can be effective but it can 
be slow and expensive. 

 
(c) Charging Orders 
A number of Charging Orders have been obtained.  These convert the unsecured 
debt into a secured debt.  However, the Court has a discretion and when the 
application is opposed the Court may refuse to make an order if the debt is small.   

 
(d) Enforced Sale 
If a Charging Order is obtained the Council can then apply for an order for 
possession and sale.  Unless the debt is paid by a specified date, the leaseholder 
is evicted and the property sold.   The sale proceeds are utilised firstly to pay off 
the outstanding mortgage and then to pay the debt and costs due to the Council.  
Any balance left over is refunded to the leaseholder.  Several cases have been 
processed.    All have resulted in payment in full. 

 
(e) Other Enforcement Procedures 
Other methods are available (e.g.  Attachment of Earnings (where  the debtor’s 
employer deducts money from the debtor’s wages)  or Third Party Debt Orders 
(seizing money in the debtor’s bank/building society account), but  each has its 
limitations and requires accurate and up to date information about  the 
leaseholder’s  employment and bank account details. 

 
9.2    As shown above, HfH therefore already takes enforcement proceedings in which 
the ultimate outcome for the leaseholder could be eviction and loss of the home.     Under 
current procedures, this involves two separate applications to the Court – firstly to obtain 
a Charging Order to secure the debt against the property and secondly to obtain an 
Order for Sale to Enforce the Charge.  The Court also requires expert evidence of  the 
value of the property.    Forfeiture proceedings only require a single application to the 
Court and do not require valuation evidence.  They should therefore be more cost 
effective. 

Page 160



 

 5 

     
10.0     Forfeiture Proceedings  
10.1  The lease already provides for forfeiture in the event of non-payment but the 

Council has not, up to now, used this method of enforcement. 
 

10.2    In both Enforced Sale and Forfeiture, the leaseholder can be evicted.  The main 
difference is that in Enforced Sale the property is sold and after payment of all 
debts and costs the leaseholder receives the balance of the sale proceeds. In 
forfeiture proceedings the Council gets the property back and the leaseholder still 
has to pay the money judgement to the Council and still has to pay off any 
outstanding mortgage. 

  
10.3    The aim of HfH  remains to recover money not property.  In practice the Court will 

grant relief from forfeiture on terms as to payment.  Most leaseholders have 
substantial equity in the property which both they and their mortgage company  
will want to protect.  If there is a mortgage, the likely outcome will be that the 
mortgage company will pay the debt and add it to the mortgage.  If there is no 
mortgage, the likely outcome will be that the leaseholder will take a loan secured 
against the property in order to discharge the debt to the Council.   Most 
mortgages have a clause that enables the mortgage company to pay off the debt 
and add it to the mortgage but they will not do this unless the Council initiates the 
forfeiture procedure, usually by serving a Notice under Section 146 of The Law of 
Property Act 1925 ( a Section 146 Notice – see para  11 penultimate bullet point        
below).  If there is no mortgage, the leaseholder will almost certainly decide to 
borrow the money to pay the debt rather than face the consequences of re-
possession.  In the case of the elderly on fixed incomes, the “House-proud” 
Scheme (a secured loan with guarantees against re-possession) is available 
where the charges arise from major works.  The procedure is therefore  a cost  
effective and efficient way of forcing payment where all other attempts have failed.
  

11.0 Safeguards 
 Forfeiture is viewed as a last resort. There are various safeguards such as:- 

• The leaseholder has failed to take advantage of or has failed to keep to 
the conditions of any of the range of options open to him/her to pay the 
debt before the Council commences legal proceedings, including:- 

 
Quarterly and monthly Instalment payments; 
Mandatory loans (in selective circumstances); 
“Hardship” Discretionary Loans; 
“House-proud” Scheme (with guarantee against repossession) 

 

• Forfeiture proceedings cannot be taken in respect of disputed amounts.  If 
the leaseholder disputes the charges, HfH must first prove its case in the 
County Court, the Leasehold Valuation Tribunal, or Arbitration.  

 

• If the CCJ is payable immediately, the debt must remain unpaid.  If the 
CCJ is payable by instalments, the leaseholder must be in default. 

 

• If the debt is less than £350 (excluding legal costs), then payment must 

Page 161



 

 6 

have been outstanding for more than three years.   
 

• Finally, before the Council issues proceedings for forfeiture, the 
leaseholder must fail to comply with a Notice under Section 146 of The 
Law of Property Act – a “final notice” calling for payment within 28 days 
and containing a clear warning that forfeiture proceedings will be 
commenced in default.    [The mortgage company, if any, will usually pay 
the debt upon service of this Notice]. 

 

• In the case of the elderly on fixed incomes, the “House-proud “ scheme 
would still be available to them right up to final order stage providing the 
debt relates to major works.   HfH would always consent to adjournment 
of the proceedings and relief from forfeiture linked to an application under 
that scheme. 

 

 
12.0 Consultation  
 
12.1     The Council’s Debt Management Board has been consulted and has previously 

reported favourably to the CEMB on the proposal.   
 
12.2    A Senior Lawyer from the Council’s Legal Service attended the Leaseholder’s 

Panel Meeting on 3 May 2006.  The proposals, implications and safeguards 
were fully explained to leaseholder’s representatives who then had the 
opportunity to ask questions.   The overriding view of the Leasehold 
Representatives was that the proposal was fair.  Forfeiture was already a 
condition of the lease and HfH was proposing adequate safeguards.  There were 
no objections. 

 
 

13.0 Equality Implications 
 
All legal proceedings against individual (as opposed to corporate) leaseholders     
are accompanied by a standard notice in the main ten minority community 
languages drawing attention to the importance of the proceedings.   

 
Age, gender and disability issues are addressed by the various statutory and 
Audit Commission KLOE safeguards mentioned in the body of the report at 
paragraph 11.0 above. 

 
 

 
 

Page 162



Agenda Item 13Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



Page 167



Page 168



Page 169



Page 170



Page 171



Page 172



Page 173



Page 174



Page 175



Page 176



Page 177



Page 178



Page 179



Page 180



Page 181



Page 182



Page 183



Page 184

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 206



Page 207



Page 208



Page 209



Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



Page 227



Page 228



Page 229



Page 230



Page 231



Page 232



Page 233



Page 234



Page 235



Page 236



Page 237



Page 238



Page 239



Page 240

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 14Page 241



Page 242



Page 243



Page 244



Page 245



Page 246



Page 247



Page 248



Page 249



Page 250



Page 251



Page 252



Page 253



Page 254



Page 255



Page 256



 

Hate Crime & Harassment Strategy Report (oct 2006) 1 

     Agenda item:  

   Executive Board                                                             On 21st November 2006 
 
 

 

Report Title: Final Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 
 

 
Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): Full Council 21/11/06 
  

Report authorised:  David Hennings, Assistant Chief Executive (Strategy) 

Signed: 
 

 
Wards(s) affected: All 
 

Report for: Non-Key Decision 

1. Purpose  

 
1.1 To present the finalised Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy with an agreed action 

plan, covering up to March 2008.  This version includes comments from key partners 
and minor issues raised at the Safer Communities Executive Board in September.  
The strategy was also considered by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee on 26th 
October 2006 and the Executive Advisory Board on 7th November. 

 

2. Introduction by Executive Member for Crime & Community Safety 

2.1 There is already a considerable amount of work being undertaken in the borough to 
increase confidence among all communities.  This includes the recent roll-out of 
Safer Neighbourhood Teams in each ward; the continued successful work of the 
Anti-social Behaviour Action Team; the ongoing work of the Equalities and Diversity 
team and the efforts of many front-line staff across the partnership. 

 
2.2 This strategy recognises that there is more work for us to do in co-ordinating and 

improving our delivery and responses to hate crime.  It, therefore, focuses on 
partnership collaboration, training, awareness, intelligence gathering and prevention 
as well as giving a commitment to investigating alternative methods of reporting. 

 
2.3 The strategy has been developed with considerable input from the community, key 

partners and members of staff across the Council. 
 
 

[No.] 

 

Agenda Item 15Page 257



 

Hate Crime & Harassment Strategy Report (oct 2006) 2 

3. Recommendations 

3.1 That Members endorse and support the proposed approach, priorities and actions 
and agree to support the implementation of the strategy. 

 

 
Contact Officer: Jean Croot, Head of Safer Communities       
 

4. Director of Finance Comments 

4.1 As stated, the majority of costs will be contained within existing resources, however 
to fully implement the recommendations contained within the strategy some 
additional costs will be incurred covering items such as publicity, staff training, 
boosting and improving reporting systems.  At this stage actual costs haven’t been 
quantified although they are not likely to be high and it is currently expected that they 
will be met from partnership finances and grant funding.  However, no commitment to 
spend should be made until a clear funding source has been identified. 

 

5. Head of Legal Services Comments 

5.1 The Strategy is drafted to ensure compatibility with the Human Rights Act 1998, 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Crime and Security Act 2001, Criminal Justice Act 
2003, to name a few relevant and key pieces of legislation.  The Strategy also aligns 
itself with guidance received from The Association of Chief Police Officers, entitled 
“Hate Crime: Delivering a Quality Service – Good Practice and Tactical Guidance” 
(March 2005). 

 
5.2 The Strategy is in line with the Government Respect Action Plan (January 2006) and 

its six strands namely; supporting families, a new approach to the most challenging 
families, improving behaviour and attendance in schools, activities for children and 
young people, strengthening communities and effective enforcement and community 
justice. 

 
5.3 Whilst the list of legislation above is not exhaustive, consideration should also be 

given to the Racial and Religious Hatred Act 2006 which received Royal Assent on 
the 16th of February 2006 but which is not yet in force.  The short title of the Act 
states that it is “An Act to make provision about offences involving stirring up hatred 
against persons on racial or religious grounds”.  The Act purports to provide a 
definition for religious hatred as “hatred against a group of persons defined by 
reference to religious belief or lack of religious belief”. 

 
5.4 It is agreed, as stated within the Report, that relationships and publicity throughout 

the immediate and wider community need to be handled sensitively; that appropriate 
heed is taken to ensure the Human Rights Act 1998 and other relevant key 
legislation quoted within the Strategy are adhered to and that appropriate training is 
offered to officers involved in the implementation to ensure a careful and considered 
approach.  The London Borough of Haringey Anti Social Behaviour Policy and 
relevant procedures should also be adhered to. 

 

Page 258



 

Hate Crime & Harassment Strategy Report (oct 2006) 3 

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

6.1 Key guidance and important legislation which has been used to develop the Haringey 
definition of hate crime and harassment and this Strategy  includes the Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998, the Crime and Security Act 2001 and the Criminal Justice Act 
2003, and further guidance comes from The Association of Chief Police Officers. 

7. Strategic Implications 

 
7.1 This Strategy acknowledges the good work already taking place in Haringey and aims 

to build on this and address identified gaps.  The recommended actions have been 
agreed with full partnership collaboration and approval and are designed to be 
achievable.  However, the community event has raised expectations around delivery.  
Relationships and publicity will need to be handled sensitively. 

7 Financial Implication (refer to point 4) 

8 Legal Implications (refer to point 5) 

9 Equalities Implications  

9.1 This Strategy will assist people from all of Haringey’s diverse communities to report 
hate crimes and harassment and gain the support required. 

 

10 Consultation 

 
10.1 The Strategy draws upon consultation events with key partner services and the 

community and voluntary sector, including a large consultation event held in late 
2005 at Alexandra Palace, which over 100 people attended. This was followed up 
with close individual consultation with key partners.  

11 Background 

11.1 In 2005 Middlesex University was commissioned to undertake research on the 
nature and extent of hate crime and harassment in Haringey. This highlighted some 
of the weaknesses in the Safer Communities Partnership’s response to the issue 
including the need for better co-ordination across agencies; the need for a shared 
definition of hate crime and harassment and the need to improve the confidence of 
communities that reports of these incidents are taken seriously and dealt with 
appropriately.  This strategy addresses these findings.  

 
11.2 The Strategy acknowledges key national and local agendas including:  

- The Government Respect Action Plan for combating anti-social behaviour which 
stresses the importance of cohesive communities and asks local authorities to 
monitor the extent to which people feel they are treated with respect.   

- The Community Cohesion Agenda which encourages breaking down barriers 
between different ethnic and religious groups 

Page 259



 

Hate Crime & Harassment Strategy Report (oct 2006) 4 

11.3 Priorities for Action: The strategic priorities outlined in this document are defined 
under five headings.  However, they do overlap and in some cases are dependent 
on each other. The strategy document provides more detail including SMART 
targets and clear responsibilities:  

 
1) Improving Community Cohesion: 
Encouraging the voluntary and community sector (VCS) to work with different 
communities and promote joint working within the VCS and with the Council, Police 
and other partners. This includes new funding guidance from the Voluntary Sector 
Grants Department and co-ordinating the work of this Strategy with developments for a 
Community Cohesion Strategy.  
 
2) Long Term Prevention Work: 
Increase social intolerance to hate crime and harassment amongst young people and 
the wider community. This includes building on work in schools to raise awareness that 
hate crime and harassment is not tolerated and to promote social disapproval of the 
issue. This work also includes action to challenge intolerance of difference.  
 
3) Improving Intelligence:  
Improving the collection and analysis of hate crime and harassment data between the 
Police, Council’s Community Safety Team, VCS, Anti-Social Behaviour Action Team 
and other relevant partners. It also concerns improving front line agencies’ connection 
with communities to increase community intelligence. 
 
 4) Encouraging Reporting of Hate Crime and Harassment: 
This is about increasing awareness about hate crime reporting methods, publicising the 
benefits of reporting and improving the Borough’s capacity to capture reports and 
respond suitably through training. 

 
5) Responding to Hate Crime and Harassment: 
Improving the co-ordination of relevant partners’ work in dealing with perpetrators and 
supporting victims. This includes joint mechanisms for sharing information and making 
referrals as well as improving front line staff’s capacity and understanding of where to 
refer victims and how to deal sensitively with reports through training.   
 

12 Conclusion 

 
12.1 The recommended actions have been agreed with full partnership collaboration and 

approval and are designed to be achievable. This Strategy should greatly improve 
the reporting of hate crimes and harassment and in turn should reduce the number 
of such incidents.  

13 Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs 

13.1    Please see attached the Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy. 
 

 

Page 260



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 1 

 

  

 

HATE CRIME AND HARASSMENT STRATEGY 

 
2006 - 2008 

 

 

Page 261



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 2 

CONTENTS 

1. Background          3 
 
2. What is Hate Crime and Harassment     5 
 
3. Scope          6 
 

4. Strategic Priorities                                                                    6 

 4.1 Improving Community Cohesion     7 
 4.2 Long Term Prevention Work     8 

4.3 Improving Intelligence and Data    9 
4.4 Encouraging Reporting and Recording                   11 
4.5 Responding to Hate Crime and Harassment         13 

 
5. Implementation               14 
 
6. Resources                14 
 
7. Action Plan                 16 
 
 

 

 
 

P
a
g

e
 2

6
2



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Safer Haringey Partnership 
 
Statutory Authorities: 
● Haringey Council 
● Metropolitan Police Service 
● Metropolitan Police Authority 
● London Fire Brigade Service 
● Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust 
● National Probation Service 
● British Transport Police 
 
 

P
a
g
e
 2

6
3



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 4 

Co-operating bodies: 
● Victim Support Haringey 
● Youth Offending Service 
● Haringey Peace Alliance 
● Haringey Magistrates Court 
 
The Partnership also works with other agencies and community groups 
that are involved in working with victims and those affected by crime. 
Senior managers from all the different agencies manage the work of the 
Partnership. Together they form the Safer Communities Executive Board 
(SCEB) which is chaired by the Chief Executive of the Council. 

P
a
g

e
 2

6
4



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 5 

 
“…Strong, cohesive communities are important for children, young people and adults.  They are the essential 
foundation within which individual potential is realised, quality of life maximised and our social and economic 
wellbeing secured.” 

        Respect Action Plan 

 
1. Background  
 
Hate crime and harassment is of considerable concern to all members of our society.  Not only does it impact on individual victims 
and their families, often heightening victims’ distress by undermining their sense of identity and community; 1 hate crime and 
harassment also undermines communities by raising fears amongst people with similar identities. Hate crime and harassment can 
also exacerbate or lead to increased racial and other inter-community tension2. If this happens, the wider community suffers with 
potential increases in civil disturbance, mistrust and fragmentation of communities.  Haringey has a historically diverse borough and 
is felt by many to be comfortable with this diversity. Although this strategy recognises the seriousness of hate crime and 
harassment, whenever it occurs, the departure point is a desire to celebrate our diversity and promote tolerance and respect.  

 

This strategy is not a new piece of work. It builds on the work already done in terms of community cohesion, equalities and 
diversity, ensuring well being and improving the quality of life for Haringey residents.  Services already exist in Haringey that tackle 
hate crime and harassment. The Anti-Social Behaviour Action Team (ASBAT) manages all cases of hate harassment, either 
referred from other agencies such as Homes for Haringey (Haringey’s ALMO3) or self referred by victims themselves. ASBAT is 
able to work with the victim to gather evidence and has the potential to protect victims with civil injunctions and other channels. 
Victim Support Haringey offers emotional support as well as practical advice. The Police Community Safety Unit is designed to 
respond specifically to incidents of hate crime or harassment and there is a victims’ pack available to all victims offering advice and 
information about where to seek help.  This strategy will support and build up good practice and encourage partners, including 

                                                 
1
 Matassa and Newburn, Public Policy Research Unit Goldsmith’s College, 2001 

2
 ibid, 2001 

3
 Arms Length Management Organisation 

P
a
g
e
 2

6
5



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 6 

Teaching Primary Care Trust, Haringey Children and Young People’s Service, Police, ASBAT, Homes for Haringey and the 
voluntary and community sector to work closely together to protect and reassure victims and take action against perpetrators. 
Furthermore, the strategy intends to address long term actions to improve the cohesion of our communities and build up respect 
and tolerance which prevents hate crime and harassment. 

 

During the period 2003-2004, Hate Crime and Harassment reported to the Police in Haringey dropped by 46%.  This was a 
significant drop and seemed unrelated to any initiatives4. In the period 2003-2004, homophobic and race hate incidents reported to 
the Police dropped by 19.6% in Haringey, whereas incidents in all but one of the neighbouring boroughs actually increased5.  
These decreases prompted Safer Haringey to commission the Centre for Criminology at Middlesex University to investigate the 
extent and nature of hate crime and harassment in the Borough and possible causes of underreporting. The research pointed out 
the need to better co-ordinate work in Haringey that impacts on hate crime and harassment and focus partners on common goals. 
This strategy responds to that need.  
 
The Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy assists the Council and its partners to meet core obligations.  An important example in 
Haringey is the development of the Respect Action Plan, the government’s national plan to tackle anti-social behaviour. The Action 
Plan stresses the importance of building respect in communities. This strategy dovetails with that aim and will strengthen the 
Respect Agenda as it is implemented locally. New mandatory indicators introduced to monitor Local Area Agreements6 also 
address the anti-social behaviour agenda, particularly building respect. This includes monitoring percentages of people who feel 
that others in their area treat them with respect and consideration. The Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy will be an important 
way in which these priorities are met and as thus treats Respect and community cohesion as paramount in preventing inter-
community tensions, which can lead to an increase in hate crime and harassment.   
 

How was the strategy developed?  
 

                                                 
4
 A. Goodman et al, ‘Hate Crime in Haringey’ Middlesex University, 2005 

5
 ibid 

6
 Local Area Agreements, introduced since 2004, are new contracts between central and local government which determine how monies will be spent locally. 

P
a
g

e
 2

6
6



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 7 

In February 2005 a community consultation event was jointly hosted at Alexandra Palace by Haringey Police, the Safer Haringey 
Partnership and Haringey Council. The purpose of the event was to generate ideas and build consensus about what needs to be 
done to tackle hate crime and harassment and to support victims. The event was attended by over 100 people from the community, 
including many voluntary and community sector representatives and statutory organisations. The feedback from discussion groups 
and workshops is now drawn upon to inform this strategy. 
 
In addition, this strategy draws upon close consultation with voluntary, statutory and community partners, Police (Safer 
Neighbourhoods Teams, Community Engagement and Community Safety) Victim Support, Health, Social Services, Homes for 
Haringey,  Anti Social Behaviour Action Team, Youth Offending Service, Haringey Council Voluntary Sector Team, Equalities and 
Diversity Haringey Council, Community Safety Team (Haringey Council), Community Police Consultative Group, Haringey Children 
and Young People’s Service, Neighbourhood Management, Environment.  
 
A good practice literature review of other boroughs’ practices was also undertaken and a service gap analysis completed. Actions, 
targets and priorities were developed from the consultations.  
 
The Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy is jointly owned by Haringey Council and the Haringey Police as well as our partners 
within the Safer Haringey Partnership including voluntary and community sectors and other statutory services such as Health and 
Haringey Children and Young People’s Service.   

 
2.0 What is Hate Crime and Harassment? 
 
The Middlesex University research strongly recommended that the Safer Haringey Partnership develop a shared definition of hate 
crime and harassment. This has been developed in close consultation with key partners and takes into account important national 
guidance. Clear direction on the definition of hate crime and harassment comes from legislation such as the Crime and Disorder 
Act 1998, the Crime and Security Act 2001 and the Criminal Justice Act 2003.  Together, the acts require that the motivation of 
racial hatred, hatred of religion or hostility towards sexual orientation or disability be considered when courts sentence an offender. 
Supporting this, the Macpherson Inquiry, which followed the racist murder of Stephen Lawrence in 1993, developed the definition of 
a racially motivated crime as, ‘any incident which is perceived to be racist by the victim or any other person’. The Association of 
Chief Police Officers adopts the same formula for crime or behaviour motivated by religious, homophobic, disability, age or ‘any 

P
a
g
e
 2

6
7



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 8 

person targeted because of their status, group characteristics or affiliation’. In line with these key guiding documents and 
legislation, the Haringey definition of Hate Crime is as follows:  
 
Haringey Definition 
 
“Hate crime or harassment is any behaviour (verbal or physical) that is perceived by the 
victim or any other person to be motivated by hatred because of a particular 
characteristic of that person”. 
 
The hatred can be motivated against:  

- Race  
- Sexuality  
- Disability 
-  Age 
- Religion 
- Travellers 
- Gender7 

 
This strategy covers both crime, alleged crime and Police reported incidents as well as harassment.  Haringey Council defines 
harassment in line with the Protection from Harassment Act 1997, as a ‘deliberate action designed to cause alarm or distress’. As 
with Hate Crime, if the action is perceived by the victims to be motivated by hatred or prejudice, it is considered to be hate 
harassment.  There is no set definition of what constitutes harassment but examples can include:  
 
 

                                                 
7
 Although this strategy does not address domestic violence, as violence between people who had been or are in an intimate relationship. This issue is treated in the Haringey 

Domestic Violence Strategy.  

P
a
g

e
 2

6
8



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 9 

� Physical assaults  
� Spitting  
� Threats                       
� Verbal abuse 

� Offensive graffiti  
� Rubbish dumped on   

doorsteps 
� Property damage 
 

� Arson 
� Wearing racist badges 
� Malicious complaints 
� Mimicking  
� Name calling 

  
 

3.0 Scope 
 
The priority for this strategy is to tackle hate crime and harassment experienced by the residents and people who work in the 
London Borough of Haringey.  This includes hate motivated crime and harassment against employees of the Teaching Primary 
Care Trust and Haringey Council by any member of the public. Discrimination and harassment perpetrated by employees of 
Haringey Council and the other partner agencies against their colleagues during the course of their work duties is outside the scope 
of this strategy.  Internal disciplinary procedures will be evoked to respond to work based incidents of harassment or discrimination.   
 
Domestic Violence is sometimes considered to be a hate crime.  The approach taken by the Safer Communities Partnership is that 
domestic violence requires a separate strategy to address its specific issues. This has been done through the Safety Communities 
Partnership Domestic Violence Strategy 2004-2007.     
 
Other forms of crime and harassment which are not motivated by hatred or prejudice are not covered by this strategy.  
 

4.0 Strategic Priorities 
 
This strategy will be addressing all types of hate crime and harassment, ranging from an isolated incident of verbal abuse through 
to serious violent assault or prolonged harassment.  The strategy recognises that certain communities are more vulnerable to 
victimisation and may be less likely to seek help and seeks to target action for these people. The strategy also recognises that the 
key to achieving a sustainable reduction in hate crime and harassment is to act early when tensions arise to prevent escalation in 
the future.   
 

P
a
g
e
 2

6
9



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 10 

Whilst the Safer Communities Partnership is committed to the specific actions and priorities detailed within this strategy, we 
recognise the pivotal role that the Community Cohesion agenda will play in its success. Community Cohesion is concerned with 
breaking down barriers between different ethnic and religious groups and working to ensure that each group has, and is seen to 
have, equal access to the services and opportunities in Haringey.   
 
The strategic priorities outlined in this document are defined in five areas. However; they do overlap and, in some cases, are 
dependent on each other. For example, ‘Improving Community Cohesion’ emerges from a historical perspective, which has 
developed good practice on breaking down barriers between communities through housing, planning and employment policies. 
Community Cohesion is inextricably linked to another strategic priority in this strategy, ‘Long Term Prevention Work’. This priority is 
about educating young people and communities to build tolerance and challenge prejudicial attitudes. A cohesive community will be 
more amenable to this aim and vice versa. Similarly, a cohesive community will be more likely to share information with authorities 
about hate crime and harassment and will understand that it is not acceptable within society.  All of these outcomes amount to a 
community in which hate crime and harassment will be identified early, discouraged by the community and in the longer term, will 
be free from prejudicial attitudes.  
 
For the purposes of setting out a coherent direction of travel, the strategy defines five strategic priority areas. These are: 
 
1. Improving Community Cohesion 
2. Long term prevention work 
3. Improving Intelligence 
4. Encouraging Reporting of Hate Crime and Harassment  
5. Responding to Hate Crime and Harassment 
 

4.1 Improving Community Cohesion 
 
Community Cohesion was defined by Ted Cantle in response to racially aggravated riots in Oldham, Burnley and Bradford in 2001. 
The report of the investigation into the riots highlights the central concepts of community cohesion, which include: common values, 
tolerance, respect for differences, willingness to assist others, harmonious economic and social development. 8 

                                                 
8
 Ted Cantle et al, ‘Community Cohesion: the report of the independent review team,’ Home Office, 2001 

P
a
g

e
 2

7
0



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 11 

 
A community such as this will be less likely to experience hate crime and harassment as well as having lower crime rates in 
general. 9 In light of the increased terrorism threat of recent months, building a cohesive community will be an important plank in 
defusing potential increases in tension and suspicion and provide an antidote to extremism and hatred.   
 
Haringey has made some positive steps towards more cohesive communities. The Council has been awarded beacon status for its 
community cohesion work for bringing diverse communities together on issues such as the Green Lanes Strategy Group, the Bruce 
Grove Strategic Group, Joining Up Northumberland Park Initiative and Northumberland Park and Tottenham Hale to set up a 
Community Development Forum.  
 
The Respect Action Plan also stresses how community cohesion and anti-social behaviour are interlinked. The Action Plan points 
out that without a shared framework of respect and rules, ‘people can be susceptible to the argument that differences in culture and 
lifestyle are undermining community cohesion’.   
 

New actions  
 

In partnership with Haringey Council Voluntary Sector Team, the wider Voluntary and Community Sector, Community Safety 
Team and other relevant partners, we will encourage work to bring down barriers between communities and encourage 
partnership between different ethnic and religious groups. This will be done, for example, by including community cohesion as a 
priority in the Voluntary Sector Team grant funding guidance.  

 

The Haringey Partnership will co-operate and support any work to implement a forthcoming Community Cohesion policy. The 
network of key partners which will be set up to ensure the delivery of this strategy will routinely liaise with other relevant 
departments to keep abreast of community cohesion work and complement its development where possible.  

 

                                                 
9
 Elaine Wedlock, Home Office Research Study 19/06 

P
a
g
e
 2

7
1



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 12 

Supporting community cohesion will also involve the crucial work of agencies who deal with communities every day. These 
include the Police, Homes for Haringey front line housing staff, health workers such as health visitors, GPs and midwives, 
ASBAT and the community and voluntary sector. These ‘front line’ agencies will work together to develop a joint community 
outreach plan which will identify ways of exploiting their existing connections with communities and to potentially develop new 
ones.  

 

4.2  Long Term Prevention Work   
 
Good practice teaches us that tackling prejudicial attitudes has to begin at an early age. The Middlesex University research 
demonstrated that high numbers of young people have been victims of hate crime and harassment. National research also 
highlights the need for more awareness-raising amongst young people that hate crime and harassment is illegal and of the support 
on offer10. The Middlesex University research demonstrated a particular need to challenge homophobic attitudes amongst 
schoolchildren in the Borough.   
 
There is currently some good work in Haringey schools to address these issues. The Safer Schools Partnership, Victim Support 
and staff within Haringey Children and Young People’s Service have delivered some projects around preventing bullying, 
homophobic and racial bullying. Victim Support has also piloted a ‘victim surgery’ in one Haringey Secondary School.  A large 
majority of Haringey Schools regularly submit monitoring data on ‘discriminatory incidents’ that occur in schools allowing partners to 
monitor their frequency and intensity. All schools have an anti-bullying policy and many adopt an anti-discriminatory policy. This 
strategy acknowledges the good work that has been done and seeks to encourage further action where necessary.  
 
Good communications and awareness-raising in the wider community will also play an important role in preventing hate crime and 
harassment in the longer term. Haringey has already run a borough wide publicity campaign which emphasised that hate crime and 
harassment is taken seriously and which encouraged victims and witnesses to report incidents to appropriate agencies. This was a 
good start and this strategy seeks to build on its successes. Addressing the wider community’s perception of hate crime and 

                                                 
10

 Victims Support, ‘Crime and Prejudice’, 2006 

P
a
g

e
 2

7
2



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 13 

harassment, raising awareness of its seriousness and where and how to seek help will strengthen community disapproval of the 
issue – a powerful preventative weapon in the longer term11.  

 
New Actions 
 
The Community Safety Team, Police and other partners will work with Haringey Children and Young People’s Service, the Local 
Safeguarding Children’s Board, schools and the Safer Schools Partnership to ensure that hate crime and harassment is addressed 
in  anti-bullying and anti-discriminatory policies within schools. Partners will seek to ensure that young victims are referred 
appropriately to support services and have an opportunity to report incidents by improving information about victim and other 
services. This will be done by raising awareness of victim services on offer and will build on the experience of the pilot Victim 
Support surgery.  
 
In order to promote the message amongst the wider community that hate crime and harassment is not tolerated, the Community 
Safety Team will lead the development of a communications’ plan to accompany this strategy. The plan will target messages on 
specific communities and will ensure that information is written in all community languages. A central aim of this plan is to reduce 
social acceptance of hate crime and harassment. The communications’ plan will be closely supported by the Corporate 
Communications Team.  
 
By undermining social acceptance of hate crime and harassment, more people will be willing to report incidents and more 
information will become available about the nature and frequency of the problem, thus providing essential data and intelligence, 
which is the theme of another Strategic Priority. 
 
 

4.3 Improving Intelligence and data 
 
Interventions, practice and partnership need to be supported by good information and intelligence.  

                                                 
11

 Social Control Theory recognises the important role that wider social influences such as commitments, values and norms encourage people not to act anti-socially or to 

break the law.  

P
a
g
e
 2

7
3



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 14 

 
In line with national standards the Haringey Partnership provides six-monthly strategic assessments on crime which now includes 
statistics on hate crime and harassment. This combines information from the Police, ASBAT and Victim Support.  Regular 
performance monitoring reports now also include a section on hate crime. The reports allow partners to obtain a better picture of 
the level and nature of hate crime and to begin pinpointing where there are problem areas and vulnerable groups. The Safer 
Haringey Partnership Information Sharing Protocol underpins the sharing of intelligence and data and sets out the circumstances 
and processes for partners.   
 
In addition to ensuring that existing information is co-ordinated, this strategy recognises the importance of proactively obtaining 
intelligence from the community.  Such intelligence can be picked up by many different front-line agencies including Police, ASBAT, 
Neighbourhood Managers, Homes for Haringey, front line health staff as well as community and voluntary sector agencies.  
Currently, front line agencies have good relationships with the communities that they serve and are in a good position to hear about 
community tensions and hate crime and harassment incidents as they occur. However, consultation with key partners within the 
Safer Haringey Partnership revealed a gap in how this information is exploited. The Middlesex University research also underlined 
the difficulties in obtaining an accurate picture of hate crime and harassment based on Police statistics alone. For example, hate 
incidents which are later found not to be crimes are only recorded on Police CAD systems and no further record is made, meaning 
that vital information about the level of hate motivated incidents may be lost.   
 
There are many more agencies receiving reports of hate crime and their information could help to complete the picture of the nature 
and frequency of the problem in the Borough.  It is important that data collected by any agency which receives reports of hate crime 
or harassment is collated, analysed and disseminated to improve our understanding and shape our response.  
 

New Actions 
 
We will ensure that intelligence and information is flowing well between all relevant local teams and partners and that this 
information is also available on a borough-wide basis.  
 
This strategy encourages the work already started with the Safer Neighbourhood Teams, Neighbourhood Management Teams and 
other local partners to engage with local communities and to hear their concerns. This ‘community intelligence’ on hate crime and 

P
a
g

e
 2

7
4



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 15 

harassment will be picked up through regular ward panel meetings. In addition, neighbourhood level ‘signal crime surveys’, which 
provide an analysis of key indicator crimes, deemed by local people, Police and other front line staff to be significant, will provide 
additional important information on hate crime and harassment. This local information will be co-ordinated by a central data and 
intelligence analyst, based at the Borough Intelligence Unit.  The Community Safety Team Data Analyst will also ensure that local 
intelligence is gathered by pulling together different data sources, analysed and disseminated on a regular basis to partners with a 
role to play in tackling hate crime and harassment.  Work is underway to strengthen the role of information from the Teaching 
Primary Care Trust (TPCT) and where possible resources will be found to establish the capacity to process and disseminate key 
information between health and other agencies within the Safer Haringey Partnership.  General Practitioners in Haringey will be 
encouraged to share important information on hate motivated incidents through the Quality Outcomes Framework which sets out 
GPs responsibilities for providing data to the Teaching Primary Care Trust. 
 
We will also encourage representatives of Lesbian Gay Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT), Black and Minority Ethnic, Faith, 
disability and elderly communities to engage with neighbourhood structures, to ensure that vulnerable groups’ views are heard, for 
example through Key Individual Networks and by participating in ward panel meetings. 
 
This strategy highlights the importance of ‘outreach’ work in the community. Front line agencies must be responsive and accessible 
to the communities that they serve. ASBAT, the Police, Homes for Haringey, Health care staff, Voluntary and Community Sector 
agencies as well as the Police will plan a multi-agency outreach approach, already mentioned,  which will ensure that all 
opportunities for listening to the community are exploited. By building trust between communities and the agencies which serve 
them, it is hoped that more information about hate crime and harassment will come to light, and more victims will be encouraged to 
report hate crime and harassment, as explored below.  
 

4.4 Encouraging Reporting of Hate Crime and Harassment  
 
The Middlesex University research in Haringey indicated that hate crime and harassment is under-reported in the borough. It is well 
documented in national research that hate crime and harassment is subject to under-reporting. 12  
 

                                                 
12

 Matassa and Newburn, 2000.; Peter Herbert, MPA, 2004 

P
a
g
e
 2

7
5



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 16 

The Middlesex University Research revealed that likely factors behind under-reporting included: 
-  A Lack of a common definition of hate crime, understood across all agencies 
- Confusion amongst the community about where and how to report a hate crime 
- Police stations are sometimes considered inappropriate places to report hate crime 

 
Recent national research by Victim Support UK revealed that victims experience hate crime and harassment many times before 
they report it and that they are reluctant to report because they do not believe they will get an adequate response. Many victims did 
not know where or how to report the crime and harassment they faced.13  
 
Since the introduction of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, Haringey has routinely collected statistics on racial and homophobic 
crime. This information comes mainly from the Police but other partners such as Victim Support Haringey and ASBAT are now 
sharing their data on hate crime and harassment.  Victims are able to report hate crime and harassment to the Police, which has a 
specialist Community Safety Unit and to ASBAT which is also specially trained to deal with hate crime and harassment. Other front 
line agencies such as Homes for Haringey are able to receive reports and refer victims to the correct agency.  However, more 
needs to be done to improve the number of incidents that are reported either to the Police or to other agencies that can offer 
support, even if a Police response is not desired by the victim14.  
 
The use of alternative reporting sites, where victims can report incidents to agencies other than the Police and either have their 
case passed to the Police or remain anonymous has been trialled in many parts of the country. Alternative reporting systems have 
taken on a number of different forms and the evidence of their success is not robust. However, where success has not been 
apparent, this may be due to implementation failure rather than failure of the idea. The Middlesex University research did reveal 
that many members of minority communities felt uncertain about reporting to the Police. This highlights the need to improve trust in 
the Police.  However, all relevant agencies have the potential to encourage reporting and even to take reports themselves15.  
 
A key objective of this strategy is to increase overall reporting of hate crime and harassment to the Police or ASBAT, either by 
direct reporting or through an alternative agency by 10% by 2008. The baseline will be the numbers of incidents reported to ASBAT 

                                                 
13

 Victim Support UK, ‘Crime and Prejudice,’ 2006 
14

 Middlesex University, 2005 
15

 Victim Support UK, ‘Crime and Prejudice,’ 2006 

P
a
g

e
 2

7
6



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 17 

or the Police currently.  This will be achieved through a combination of targeted communications to raise awareness about how and 
where to report, and work to increase confidence amongst the community in the services that are on offer to victims.  
 

New Actions  
 

A Communications’ Plan developed by the Community Safety Team, mentioned above, will raise awareness amongst the 
community of what constitutes a hate crime or harassment, how to report it and what will happen as a result. Care will be taken not 
to raise expectations within the community where they cannot be met. Communications will be done in the main community 
languages.  
 
This strategy also recognises the need for the staff, who interact with the public, to raise their own awareness and expertise about 
where to refer victims and how to report hate crime. Staff need to be aware of this strategy and its priorities. A multi-agency training 
programme for health workers, Police, council and community and voluntary sector agencies will be initiated to fulfil this aim.  The 
important role that health care workers such as GPs, nurses, health visitors, midwives have to play in ensuring that victims are 
signposted to services and data is recorded on incidents is recognised. As with housing officers, Police, Council front line staff, 
voluntary and community sector staff, health care staff will be encouraged to participate in multi-agency training to learn how and 
when to share information, where to refer a victim and how to respond to a report of hate crime or harassment.    
 
In addition, the Council Community Safety Team will lead an exercise in partnership with the Police, CPCG and other voluntary 
sector organisations, to identify the most suitable mechanisms for the community to report hate crime and harassment, with a view 
to establishing a pilot for alternative reporting mechanism(s). The aim of this will be to ensure that relevant, participating front line 
staff are trained in how to take reports and make suitable referrals for victims to receive support. This exercise will include primary 
health care settings where possible, as these have a role to play in identifying victims and encouraging them to report.  Within this 
theme, we will also support the pilot of a hate crime and harassment screening project in settings such as GP surgeries.  The 
purpose of the screening pilot will be to find out more about the nature and frequency of hate crime and harassment and to learn 
about the victims’ needs and experiences of the agencies they had reported to. This will inform improvements in service delivery 
and ensure that all relevant agencies are responding adequately and efficiently to hate crime and harassment.   
 

P
a
g
e
 2

7
7



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 18 

4.5 Responding to Hate Crime and Harassment 
 
The Respect Action Plan sets out the need for a speedy, visible and restorative justice system which is connected to the 
communities it serves.  The Police and the ASBAT already work to achieve this goal and place a high priority on taking action 
against perpetrators of hate crime and harassment.  Police will pursue an arrest on conviction where possible, and the courts are 
able to consider racial, religious, sexual orientation and disability hostility as aggravating factors when deciding on the sentence for 
any offence.  ASBAT is able to pursue civil action against perpetrators of hate crime and harassment and currently has a policy of 
dealing with such cases through its dedicated case management team.  
 
In addition, ASBAT is able to work with victims to improve their safety and to reassure them for example, through lock fitting 
schemes. The Community Safety Unit (Police) ensures that a member of the Police Community Engagement Team visits victims 
who have reported hate crime or harassment to them. 
 
Victims are supported through a range of agencies, some of which do not come to the attention of partner organisations. Victim 
Support Haringey plays an important role in providing knowledge, emotional support and access to legal advice and counselling for 
victims.  Other front line agencies such as ASBAT, which also receives reports from victims, are developing their referral processes 
with Victim Support.  Victims reporting to the Police or ASBAT, as well as voluntary and community sector agencies, receive a 
victim support pack which includes information about where to obtain help. The LGBT community is able to access emotional 
support and practical advice through agencies such as Wisethoughts. 
  
There is some emergency accommodation-based support available to victims which are particularly vulnerable. Supporting People 
has limited accommodation available for vulnerable people which may include victims of racial or homophobic crime. Supporting 
People also offers floating and residential support to other vulnerable groups who may be victims of hate crime and harassment 
such as people with disability or people with mental health problems. The Supporting People Strategy recognises the role it has to 
play in reducing crime by supporting vulnerable people.  
 
There are a number of agencies working in Haringey that provide legal and other advice for victims of hate crime and harassment. 
These agencies will have an important part to play in delivering this strategy. 
 

P
a
g

e
 2

7
8



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 19 

There is potential for agencies working on the ground to work closer together, particularly ASBAT and the Police Community Safety 
Unit and to co-ordinate more with Victim Support. This was a recommendation of the Middlesex University research as well as an 
outcome of consultation with key partners. Providing a joined up response in which all relevant agencies are informed of the issues 
and developments in cases of hate crime and harassment and where victims are treated sensitively by agencies they trust is an 
important goal.16  

 
New Actions 
 
The Police Community Safety Unit and the ASBAT will develop methods for working more closely together.  The Heads of each 
section will meet to discuss the work of their teams and identify any possible cases that they could work on jointly.  Similarly, the 
Police, ASBAT and Victim Support Haringey will tighten processes for making referrals between them.  
 
Information flow on individual cases will be facilitated between ASBAT, Police and other key agencies with an interest such as 
Homes for Haringey, through a Data Co-ordinator located at the Police Borough Intelligence Unit. This will assist agencies to be 
more aware of developments to offer appropriate and timely responses.  
 
A directory of organisations that can provide advice and support to victims of hate crime and harassment will be developed and 
distributed with steps taken to ensure that it is kept up to date.  The organisations to be included will cover community and 
voluntary sector agencies as well as statutory services such as the Police and ASBAT.  
 
The multi agency training programme already referred to will augment this work and ensure that front-line staff are well equipped to 
deal with hate crime and harassment to know where and how to refer and how to respond appropriately in the first instance.  

 

 

 

                                                 
16

 Victim Support UK, 2006, also NACRO 2001, ACPO, 2005 

P
a
g
e
 2

7
9



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 20 

 

5.0  Implementation   

 
The Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy will be delivered through an action plan based on the priorities contained in this strategy. 
Different agencies will be responsible for delivering their parts within the agreed timetable and for contributing to all work areas, 
where necessary.  
 
A Lead Policy Officer in the Community Safety Team will co-ordinate the work with a network of key partners to ensure that delivery 
is on track.  The monitoring of progress will be done by the Anti-social Behaviour Partnership Board.   
 

6.0 Resource implications   

 
This strategy represents limited resource implications as most of the actions will be subsumed into existing work plans and staff 
resources. However, there are some potential development costs associated with training staff across agencies and with 
developing alternative reporting mechanisms. The latter may require only limited costs connected with ‘priming’ existing services.  
 
The strategy and associated initiatives will be monitored and continuously evaluated for good practice and weaknesses. Its ‘roll out’ 
will be incremental and based on ‘what works’. This approach should assist the work to become mainstreamed, mitigating the risk 
of failing to find necessary resources.  
 
This is very much a partnership strategy, developed in close consultation.  There is, therefore, a low risk of non-delivery due to lack 
of commitment from partners. Each service has a role to play in its delivery.  There is a co-ordinating responsibility for the 
Community Safety Team and a monitoring role for the members of the Anti-social Behaviour Partnership Board. 
 
SMART actions have been proposed in a first action plan, which will carry over into the next financial year.  Actions will need to be 
closely monitored and where successful, cost implications considered in order to sustain the development of this strategy and the 
areas of good practice.   

P
a
g

e
 2

8
0



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 21 

 

7.0. ACTION PLAN 
 

 

  OVERALL TARGET: INCREASE LEVEL OF RECORDED HATE CRIME AND HARASSMENT BY 10%  BY 2008  

                                                                 (*Note: baseline derived from ASBAT and Police data) 

Strategy 
Priorities 

Objectives Actions Responsibility 

Improving 
Community 
Cohesion 

 

Encourage community and voluntary 
sector groups to work with different 
communities, to break down barriers 
and promote joint working, both within 
and between different community 
groups and with the council, police and 
other partners 

 

Maximise the opportunities to promote 
community cohesion in partnership with 
the Equalities and Diversity Team 

 

 

Prioritise community cohesion in voluntary 
sector grant funding guidance from 
March 2007  

 

 
Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 
Steering Group formed to oversee the 
implementation of the action plan 
reporting to the ASB Partnership Board by 
December 2006 

 

Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy to 
inform and be integrated into overall 
community cohesion strategy by March 
2008 

 
Develop a communication’s plan by 

Head Voluntary Sector Grants  with 
HAVCO and Haringey Race Equality Joint 
Consultative Committee (HREJCC)  

 

 

 

 

Community Safety Team (CST) Policy 
Officer and Communications with Head of 
Equalities and Diversity, , Executive 
Member, Crime and Community Safety,  

 

Head of Equalities and Diversity,  
Executive Member, Crime and 
Community Safety, CST Policy Officer 
and Communications 

 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

8
1



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 22 

Strategy 
Priorities 

Objectives Actions Responsibility 

addressing  front line staff handling of 
hate crime/harassment, (using community 
languages, appropriate media) spanning 
the 2 year Strategy by March 2007 

 

Long Term 
Prevention Work  

Increase social intolerance to all forms 
of hate crime and harassment amongst 
young people  

 

 

Ensure that young victims are able to 
access support 
 

 

 

Raise awareness of hate crime and 
harassment as a crime amongst the 
wider community 

Partnership to agree a  plan for raising 
awareness around hate crime and 
harassment amongst school children by 
March 2007 

 

Update and combine the anti-bullying and 
anti-discrimination policies (signed up to 
by all of the borough’s schools) by 
January 2007 

 

Assessment of Victim Support / Haringey 
Children’s Service  pilot surgery in 
schools  by December 2006 

 

All relevant Haringey Children’s Service  
and Local Safeguarding Children Board 
(LSCB) front line staff to participate in 
multi-agency training on challenging 
intolerance (subject to costs and trainers 
to be sourced through CST) by March 
2007 

Safer Schools Partnership (SSP), CST, 
Children s and Young people services 
and Partners 

 
SSP, CST, Children s and Young people 
services and Partners 

 

 

Victim Support, Haringey Childrens 
Service, CST  

 

 

Improving 
Intelligence 

Improve the analysis of hate crime and 
harassment data to inform the work of 

Produce and disseminate (to relevant 
partners including CPCG) 6-monthly data 
report, including Police, the ASBAT and 

Crime and Data Analyst, CST 

 

 

P
a
g

e
 2

8
2



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 23 

Strategy 
Priorities 

Objectives Actions Responsibility 

the Partnership 

 

 

 

Ensure that community intelligence is 
collated and shared with relevant 
partners on a regular basis 

 
Improve the collection of community 
intelligence on hate crime, harassment 
and community tension 

Victim Support data.  Next in February 
2007 (covering the period July – 
December 2006) 

 

Ensure that community intelligence is 
regularly logged with BIU and routinely 
disseminated to relevant agencies by Jan 
2007 

 

Police SNTs during community 
consultation to collate information 
concerning whether signal crimes, e.g.  
graffiti,  are a driver for hate crime – 
relevant questions are to be included by  
March 2007 

 

 

 

 

 

ASBAT, Neighbourhoods, Police 
SNT,CET, Housing and any other 
relevant agencies 

 

 

SNT Inspec. And Borough Intelligence 
Unit (BIU) Analyst 

Encouraging 
Reporting  

 

Increase awareness about hate crime 
reporting methods through targeted 
publicity 

 

 

 

Develop multi-agency outreach work to 

Review and map processes for recording 
hate crime and harassment and set out 
areas for improvement and piloting  in 
consultation with the CPCG and HAVCO 
by March 2007- e.g. use of standardised 
reporting and referral forms 

Work with health agencies to pilot 
screening of hate crime and harassment 

 CST and Community Police Consultative 
Group (CPCG) with steering group 

 

 

 
Director of Corporate & Partnership 

P
a
g
e
 2

8
3



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 24 

Strategy 
Priorities 

Objectives Actions Responsibility 

encourage reporting (through routine questioning)  by March 
2007, review in Jan 2008Develop a 
community outreach plan by March 2007, 
reviewed March 2008  

 

Identify opportunities for delivering a 
series of targeted ‘community safety days’ 
on hate crime and harassment to 
communities identified as at risk by 
March 2008 (where possible, to be 
linked to other  work happening in 
neighbourhoods) 

 

Scope and develop options for a multi-
agency front line training programme on 
hate crime and harassment by March 
2007. Training to cover: basic awareness 
raising, information on making referrals 
and techniques for challenging prejudice 
in different environments.  Programme 
completed and reviewed by March 2008 

Development  
Haringey Teaching Primary Care Trust 
(PCT) 

 

 

 

ASBAT, Victim Support, Police (SNT, 
CSU), Housing  and Health, CST and 
Head Equalities and Diversity 

 

 

CST, ASBAT, Victim Support, Police 
(SNT, CSU), Housing  and Health and 
any other relevant partner agencies 

Responding to 
Hate Crime and 
Harassment 

 

Improve co-ordination of enforcement 
activity to bring perpetrators to justice 
and support victims 

Ensure support services are  informed 
and trained in how to respond to victims 
of hate crime and harassment 

Police CSU lead and head of ASBAT to 
develop joint mechanism for sharing 
information and cross referrals by Dec 
2006 

 

Victim Support, ASBAT and CSU to agree 
a joint working protocol (by Dec 2006, 
reviewed by March 2007) to ensure 

ASBAT and Police CSU 

 

 

 

ASBAT, Victim Support and Police  

 

P
a
g

e
 2

8
4



Haringey Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy 2006-2008 – DRAFT  

 25 

Strategy 
Priorities 

Objectives Actions Responsibility 

 
 

Improve information available to all 
agencies about services relevant to 
hate crime and harassment 

 

 

Close satisfaction gap in responses to 
race hate incidents 

 

victims are referred to support 

 

Develop a directory of local organisations 
that tackle hate crime and harassment 
including enforcement action against 
perpetrators  by February 2007, on line 
and self-maintaining by April 2007 

 

Implement good practice of Police SNTs 
visiting victims of hate crime within 
agreed standard times for the pilot and to 
conduct follow up survey within 14 days 
of the visit to June 2007  

 

 

 

CST 

 

 
 

Professional Standards and Citizen Focus 
MPS  with Safer Neighbourhood Teams 

 

 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 2

8
5



Page 286

This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 1 

     Agenda item:  
 

   Executive Meeting                       On 21st November 

 

Report Title: Youth Crime Reduction Strategy 2006-2008 
 

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable):  
  

Report of: David Hennings, Assistant Chief Executive (Strategy) 
 

 
Wards(s) affected: All 
 

Report for: Non-Key Decision 

1. Purpose 

1.1 To approve the Haringey Youth Crime Reduction Strategy 2006-2008. 
 

2. Introduction by Executive Member 

 
2.1. Crime has fallen in Haringey and, as Executive Member for Crime and Community 
Safety, I am determined to continue to work with our partners to sustain this downward 
trend. 
 
The recent Youth Offending Team (YOS) inspection praised the service for its 
commitment to reducing crime and safeguarding children and young people. 
 
The Youth Crime Reduction Strategy 2006-08 focuses on the following main elements: 
 
� The identification of youth crime characteristics in Haringey 
� Reasons and risk factors associated with youth offending 
� Details of existing services 
� Strategic aims, including agreed priorities and actions to achieve these. 
 
One of the main manifesto pledges is to make our communities safer. This administration 
is committed to reducing crime and in particular youth crime and re-offending by young 
people. This strategy provides the  framework for our continuing commitment for 
preventing and reducing offending amongst young people. 
 

3. Recommendations 

3.1 To approve the Haringey Youth Crime Reduction Strategy 2006-2008 and note 
Funding Implications post 2008. 

 

 
Report Authorised by: David Hennings 

[No.] 

REPORT TEMPLATE: 
FORMAL BODIES & 

MEMBER ONLY EXEC 

Agenda Item 16Page 287



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2 

 
 

 
Contact Officer: Linda James, YOS Strategic Manager, tel:  020 8489 1146. 
 

4. Director of Finance Comments 

4.1 Members should note uncertainty over funding beyond March 2008 and more 
generally  how YOS’s dependence on substantial amounts of short term funding makes 
it difficult to plan strategically for the longer term. 

 

5. Head of Legal Services Comments 

The Report and accompanying Strategy show consideration has been given to the 
relevant legislation namely the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, Children Act 1989, Children 
Act 2000 and relevant guidance and policies issued by government departments and 
related agencies.  The Strategy is appropriate and complements the Haringey Youth 
Justice Plan and Young People’s Plan and there is a clear indication that the Human 
Rights Act 1998 has been taken into account when considering the implementation of the 
Strategy in the lives of young people. 

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 

6.1 None 
6.2 None 

7. Strategic Implications 

7.1 The strategy defines 5 strategic aims: 
1. To build on and improve partnership working. 
2. To reduce re-offending and tackling persistent and high risk offenders. 
3. To reduce child and youth victimisation. 
4. Targeted crime prevention and reduction and early intervention. 
5. To improve consultation and participation with young people. 
 
Achievement of these aims will involve adopting a multi-disciplinary approach working in 
conjunction with other key partners and agencies 

8. Financial Implications 

8.1 Funding for the YOS Prevention Team, which is principally responsible for the success 
of the strategy, is assured until end March 2008. 

9. Legal Implications 

9.1 The Legal Implications have been appropriately dealt with in the body of the Report 
and the accompany Strategy document.  Comments have been provided at paragraph 
5 of this Report.   
 

9.2 Equalities Implications 
9.3 The Youth Crime Reduction Strategy addresses the work of the YOS Prevention 

Team and partner agencies.  The recently published Haringey Inspection Report 
praised the work of the YOS in relation to diversity and the Prevention Team in 
particular as being “responsive to the changing ethnic make-up of the local 
community in the interventions and activities it provided”. 

Page 288



 

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3 

10. Consultation 

10.1 The Youth Crime Reduction Strategy has been presented to the Youth Offending 
Service Partnership Board and Children and Young People’s Strategic Board. All 
Councillors and the Executive have also been consulted. 

11. Background 

11.1 Haringey was one of eleven Boroughs asked by the Government Office for London 
(GOL) to produce a Youth Crime Reduction Strategy for 2002-2005.  This strategy 
was instrumental in setting up services in the Prevention Team within the YOS.  The 
Scrutiny Review – Reducing Re-offending by Young People recommended that a 
Corporate Youth Crime Prevention Strategy be developed.  The strategy describes 
existing services and defines strategic aims for 2006-2008. 

12. Conclusion 

12.1 The Actions contained under the 5 strategic aims will be reviewed regularly by the 
Youth Crime Reduction Steering Group with oversight by the YOS Partnership Board. 

13. Use of Appendices/Tables/Photographs 

13.1 Appendices are contained within the body of the strategy. 
 

 

Page 289



Page 290

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Youth Crime Reduction 
Strategy 

 
 

Haringey Borough 
 
 

2006 - 2008 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

Page 291



 1 

   
  
   
 
 

1.  Contents 
 

 Page number 
 

1. Contents  
 

1 

2. Introduction 
 

2 

3. Characteristics of Youth Crime in Haringey 
 

3 

4. Reasons and risk factors associated with Youth Offending 
 

4 

5. Existing Programmes 
 

4 

6. Strategic Aims 
 

9 

7. Appendix 1 – Abbreviation and glossary 
 

12 

8. Appendix 2 – YISP - Statistical Monitoring Report 
 

13 

9. Appendix 3 - On Track and Junior YIP Statistical Data                        
 

18 
 

10. Appendix 4 – Senior YIP Statistical Data     
                                               

 

20 
 
 

 

Page 292



 2 

Haringey Youth Crime Reduction Strategy 2006-2008 
 
 
2.  Introduction 
  
2.1 Context 
Haringey was one of eleven Boroughs asked by the Government Office for London (GOL) 
to produce a Youth Crime Reduction Strategy for 2002-2005.  The resulting strategy was 
based on GOL’s guidance and was instrumental in setting up services in the Prevention 
Team within the Youth Offending Service (YOS).  The Scrutiny Review – Reducing Re-
offending by Young People (Feb 2006) recommended that a corporate Youth Crime 
Prevention Strategy be developed. This current strategy reviews the existing services and 
sets out what we hope to achieve over the next two years. 
 
The purposes of this strategy are: 

• to address the reduction of youth offending and youth victimisation within the 
community of Haringey and 

• to divert children and young people away from becoming victims and perpetrators 
of crime.  

 In order to achieve this it is necessary to prioritise the needs of young people across 
agencies and services and to adopt a multi agency and complementary approach, 
encompassing the statutory, voluntary and independent sectors.  To this end, a Youth 
Crime Prevention Conference was held in November 2005 and, as a result, a Youth 
Crime Prevention Steering Group has been established.  Membership includes 
representatives from the voluntary and statutory sectors. 
 
One of Haringey Community Strategy’s corporate priorities is Building Safer and 
Stronger Communities.  The Council with its partners on the Safer Communities  
Executive Board has set out a vision for a safer and stronger community for Haringey 
residents and businesses.  This vision is: 
 
“To measurably improve the quality of life for the people of Haringey by handling criminal 
and anti-social behaviour and reducing the harm caused by drugs and alcohol, making 
Haringey a Borough of which we can all be proud.” 
 
The Crime and Disorder Act 1998 requires the relevant authorities to formulate and 
implement a strategy for the reduction of crime and disorder. The act defines the principal 
aim of the youth justice system to prevent offending by children and young people “and it 
is the duty of all persons and bodies carrying out functions in relation to the youth justice 
system to have regard to that aim”.  The Children Act 1989 requires that local authorities 
take steps to encourage children not to commit offences. 
  
2.2  In addition, under the terms of the Children Act 2000 and the “Every Child Matters” 
agenda, the Government's aim is for every child, whatever their background or their 
circumstances, to have the support they need to: 

� Be healthy - children and young people should be physically, mentally, emotionally 
and sexually healthy, with healthy lifestyles. 

� Stay safe – from mistreatment, neglect, violence and sexual exploitation; accidental 
injury or death; bullying and discrimination; crime and anti-social behavior; and have 
security and stability. 

Page 293



 3 

� Enjoy and achieve – ready for school and to attend and enjoy school with as many 
as possible achieving national standards at the age of 16 and beyond. 

� Make a positive contribution – engage in decision making and a wide range of 
opportunities; support their local community and overcome the negative effects of 
deprivation. 

� Achieve economic well-being – engage in further and higher education, 
employment or training. 

The Youth Crime Reduction Strategy has been designed to complement and feed into 
‘Changing Lives – the Haringey and Young People’s Plan’ and the ‘Haringey Annual Youth 
Justice Plan’. 
  
2.3 The Association of Chief Police Officers recommends a twin track approach to youth 

crime, aiming to: 

• Reduce the risk, through early identification of those at high-risk. 

• Control the problem though constructive early intervention and targeting to deal with 
persistent and serious young offenders. 

 
It must also be acknowledged that young people are not only the perpetrators of crime, but 
are also victims of criminal activity. 
 
2.4 Haringey has over 224,000 people living in 11.5 square miles.  A quarter, that is 
55,000, children and young people are under 20 years of age.  Almost three quarters of 
Haringey’s children and young people came from minority ethnic communities and speak 
190 different languages between them. 
 
Overall Haringey is the 10th (out of 354) most deprived district in England and ranks in the 
top 5 most deprived districts in London.  Many children and young people are from asylum 
– seeking families – the third largest in London.   
 
The level of employment in Haringey, 56.1%, is lower than the average for England and 
Wales of 60.6%.  The level of unemployment is 5.8%, higher than the average of 3.4% for 
England and Wales. 
  
 
3.  Characteristics of Youth Crime in Haringey 
  
Youth crime in Haringey is falling, but still one in five crimes in Haringey is committed by a 
young person.  Haringey has the highest number of youth accused of crime in London – 
71 offences per 1000 in the age 10-17 year population. 
 
The recidivism rate for 2004 (latest figure) is 31.3% putting Haringey the 9th lowest out of 
32 London YOS’s. 
 
The Metropolitan Police’s youth crime profile analysis (1.9.2004 – 31.8.2005) highlights the 
following key findings in Haringey: 
 

1. Youth crime contributes 18.14% of Haringey borough’s crimes. 
2. The crimes committed by youths contribute significantly to the Borough’s priority 

crimes, such as robbery and residential burglary. 
3. Over 25% of all youth crime is committed between the hours of 3 - 6pm. 
4. Crime involving youth victims cover 6% of crime in Haringey (4,271 youth victims). 

Page 294



 4 

5. 31% of crime committed against youths occurs between 3 - 6pm. 
6. Youth on youth crime accounts for just under 3% of all crime committed in 

Haringey. 
  

The largest hotspots for youth crime are in the Wood Green area, encompassing Turnpike 
Lane, and Tottenham High Road at Seven Sisters and Bruce Grove junctions.  These are 
areas of busy travel interchanges and town centres, containing shops which are busy 
between 3 - 6pm with school children, shoppers and commuters. 
 
 
4.  Reasons and Risk Factors associated with Youth Offending 
  
4.1  A great deal of research has taken place to identify the significant risk factors which 
act as the primary drivers of youth crime and young people who are exposed to the 
greatest risks are between 5 and 10 times more likely to become violent and serious 
offenders than those who have not. The Home Office Publication, “No More Excuses” 
(1997) and the later Youth Justice Board (YJB) publication “Risk and Protective Factors 
associated with Youth Crime and Effective Interventions to Prevent it” (2001), identify the 
following risk factors: 
 
Family Factors: 

• Poor parental supervision and discipline, family conflict, history of criminal activity, 
parental attitudes which condone anti-social and criminal behaviour, low income, 
poor housing and a large sized family. 

 
Educational factors: 

• Low achievement in primary school, aggressive behaviour, including bullying, lack 
of commitment to school and school disorganisation, anti-social peers/truancy.  

 
Community Factors: 

• Living in a disadvantaged neighbourhood, poverty, community disorganisation and 
neglect, availability of drugs, high turnover and lack of neighbourhood attachment 
and homelessness.  

Research from the United States has also identified: 

• Availability of firearms, community norms favouring drug use, firearms and crime, 
and media portrayals of violence. 

 
Individual factors: 

• Hyperactivity and impulsiveness, low intelligence and cognitive impairment, 
alienation and lack of social commitment, attitudes that condone offending and drug 
misuse and early involvement in crime and drugs misuse, friendships with peers 
involved in crime and drugs misuse. 

 
 
5.  Existing Programmes 
 
5.1 Haringey is committed to the desire for “young people to thrive in an environment that 
is both safe and felt to be safe.  We want them to take responsibility for their own actions 
and to strive to fulfil their ambitions.”  The following underlying principles will assist in 
enabling this vision to be achieved: 

Page 295



 5 

• Outcome focused – to achieve positive outcomes for young people. 

• Working together with a range of partners to deliver initiatives and provision which 
are effective and fulfil best practice and best value criteria. 

• Effective and timely information and data sharing. 

• Empowerment of all stakeholders, including agencies, young people and their 
families and members of the community. 

 
In order to be effective in reducing levels of youth crime, interventions should be targeted 
and incorporate the following principles: 
 

• Early identification of risk factors and their analysis are crucial to prevention. 

• Medium - high risk young people and their families need to be targeted. 

• Programmes must remain focused and of high intensity with agreed, planned 
objectives. 

• Absence from school is strongly correlated with youth crime and needs to be 
recognised as a problem, particularly where the absence is condoned by the family. 

• Employ a whole family approach, including use of protective and supportive factors. 
 
5.2 The YOS Prevention team 
The YOS contains the core of interagency work between the police, children and young 
people’s services, health authorities, probation and the court.  The YOS has a clear focus 
and remit to reduce offending by young people.  It, therefore, has an active role to play in 
both the prevention and reduction of youth crime and making the community a safer place 
for its residents.  
 
The prevention team is made up of three projects all working toward one aim of preventing 
offending in children and young people aged 4 -18yrs.  These include; On Track, Youth 
Intervention and Support Panel (YISP) and Junior Youth Inclusion Project (YIP).  The YOS 
also monitors the services provided by the Senior YIP. The funding for all these areas of 
work ceases in March 2008. 
 
The core intervention work done by the Prevention Team includes:  
 
Family Therapy 
The Family Therapist post is the result of an ongoing contract with the CAMHS team. The 
Therapist works with complex cases referred to the Prevention team and such cases are 
discussed at CAMHS fora as necessary. A bereavement group, the first of its kind in 
Haringey, has been set up and run by the On Track Family Therapist with support from a 
CAMHS Family Therapist, an Outreach worker and a Play worker/Coach. The group offers 
support to families who have suffered bereavement, helping each family member to voice 
their feelings in an effort to understand each other’s experience and work together to come 
to terms with their loss. Evaluation of the first group is being completed and further groups 
are planned in future. 
 
Parent Support/Training 
The Home/School Co-ordinator now works across 3 schools, Bruce Grove, Broadwater 
Farm and Risley Avenue. Activities continue to be provided for parents to assist in their 
understanding of the work their children undertake in school, forging closer links with 
teachers as well as encouraging them to become more involved in the work of the school. 
Groups for families from Somali and Turkish backgrounds are supported by interpreters 
and crèche workers. 
 

Page 296



 6 

Home visiting 
Children with complex behaviour problems who are disruptive at school or home and at 
risk of exclusion are offered individual support following an ONSET assessment. Parents 
are also supported and encouraged to effect change where necessary. Work with children 
and parents may take the form of individual or group work and may take place in the 
school. 
 
Pre-school education 
The Psychology service continues to identify children with communication difficulties in 
children in transition from home to school and from primary to secondary schools offering 
advice to teachers on how best to assist the children and offering help to individual 
children where necessary. 
 
Specialist interventions 
On Track continues to provide assistance to schools for targeted children through the 
provision of breakfast clubs, football and basketball clubs during lunchtimes and after 
school as well as behaviour management through chess which is offered to 2 schools 
working with targeted children whose behaviour in class gives cause for concern. A 
number of children have benefited from involvement in the football sessions in school and 
on Saturday mornings and have gone on to become involved in London clubs, including 
Chelsea, Arsenal and Charlton 
 
Residential weekend 
On Track has used the Pendarren House Outdoor Centre for its residential activities with 
children in the past and in April 2006 had its first weekend including parents, with 11 
children and their parents – 8 mothers and 4 fathers. This was a very positive experience 
with parents and children working together, realising the strengths in each other that they 
had not recognised before and having the space to share their feelings and emotions with 
each other. 
 
The three Prevention Team projects are: 
 
Haringey On Track 

• On Track is a crime reduction programme aimed at children aged 4 -13yrs and their 
parents who are at risk of becoming involved in crime. These families are based 
primarily in the Bruce Grove Ward and also parts of Coleraine and Park wards. 

• Its objectives are to ensure intensive multi-agency co-operation so that children 
displaying negative or disruptive behaviour are identified early in order that they and 
their families are provided with consistent services through the period of their child’s 
development.  

 
Youth Inclusion and Support Panel 

• A multi-agency planning group that seeks to prevent offending and anti-social 
behaviour by offering voluntary support services and other complementary 
interventions for high risk children aged between 8-18yrs and their families. The 
children and young people are primarily known to the criminal justice system, 
behaving in an anti-social manner or judged to be at high risk of offending. 

• The Panel is made up of various partnership agencies and aims to hold statutory 
bodies and other agencies accountable for delivering services; it provides a focus 
for co-ordinating and analysing the sharing of inter-agency information on risk 
factors and problem behaviour. 

Page 297



 7 

Junior Youth Inclusion Project 

• The JYIP seeks to reduce offending, truancy and exclusion amongst the 8 -13 year 
olds who are most at risk of becoming involved in negative behaviour. It provides 
activities for the 50 most at risk children and young people in Bruce Grove, West 
Green, White Hart Lane and Noel Park wards.  

• It aims to tackle the problems of social exclusion in neighbourhoods where crime 
rates have risen in recent years recognising the importance of education in doing 
so. 

• An after-school club has been established for targeted children – particularly those 
with behavioural difficulties - at the Bell Unit; after-school activities are organised at 
Sky City, in conjunction with Metropolitan Housing Association and group work 
focusing on anger management operates in schools settings. 

• Although difficult to measure changes in “soft outcomes” feedback given by schools 
is encouraging due to workers reinforcing positive behaviour in their work. 

 
Other youth crime prevention work includes: 
 
Senior Youth Inclusion Project 

• Works with at risk young people aged 13-16 who live in one of the following wards:  
Haringey, Noel Park and Woodside. A number of agencies refer young people to 
the programme. 

• The project provides after-school and evening activities.  These include arts and 
drama, self-development group work, sports activities delivered in partnership with 
Positive Futures, music projects, residential and holiday activities. 

• Young people are able to gain accreditation throughout the year through 
participating in these activities through the Duke of Edinburgh Awards, ASDAN, 
AQA and Millennium Volunteers.   Young people are also able to gain football 
coaching certificate level 1 and basketball coaching certificate level 1 and 2 . 

• Young people who are in the Core 50 (those most at risk) are allocated a key 
worker who will help them access provision and tackle any problems they have. 

 
Safer Schools  

• Safer Schools Officers are based in ten secondary schools and the Pupil Support 
Centres and deal with crime and disorder within the schools.  

• The Safer Schools Project funded by the Behavioural Improvement Programme 
works in four secondary schools with at risk young people.  

• The Project liaises with schools officers, the YISP, YOS and Safer Neighbourhood 
Teams. Over 3000 young people have received interventions from the Safer 
Schools Project in the form of personal meetings, prison visits, dance studio 
sessions, restorative justice meetings and specific, targeted workshops such as “Be 
Safe”. 

 
Haringey Crime and Drugs Strategy 
The above strategy identifies the following priorities (agreed in consultation with residents): 

• Acquisitive crime 

• Anti-social behaviour 

• Alcohol and drug abuse 

• Violent crime (domestic violence, knife/gun crime) 

Page 298



 8 

In addition, agencies have acknowledged that a number of themes cut across these 
priorities and have to be addressed – one theme is that of young people.  The groups of 
young people considered ‘at risk’ and ‘vulnerable’ to developing substance misuse 
problems are children of misusing parents, persistent truants and excludees, looked-after 
children, young people in contact with the criminal justice system; ‘other’ groups - 
including:  homeless young people, young people abused through prostitution, teenage 
parents, and those not in education employment or training (NEET). 

 
Amongst the KPI’s monitored by GOL, are: 

• Number of young people in treatment and  

• To ensure all young offenders screened for substance misuse receive 
appropriate assessment and intervention if appropriate within set timescales. 

 
Diversionary activities and projects which target marginalised young people are important 
and, in Haringey, include Positive Futures – a national sports based social induction 
programme targeting young people aged 13-19 which aims to address participants’ 
substance misuse, physical health and offending behaviour.  The YOS employs two drugs 
workers who are principally funded by the Drug and Alcohol Action Team (DAAT).  This 
sum of money is ringfenced for these workers. 

 
Respect Agenda and Action Plan 

• The Government’s Respect Action Plan was published in January 2006 and is 
described as “deepening, widening and furthering” the Government’s commitment 
to tackling antisocial behaviour.  The plan includes initiatives for parents, schools, 
challenging families, communities and local authorities.  As part of its commitment 
to prevent youth crime and antisocial behaviour, the Prevention Team and the YOS 
has obtained YJB funding for two additional workers to join the YISP in 2006.  
Current provision, as outlined in this strategy, addresses other Action Plan 
initiatives which are already operational within Haringey.  The decision for Haringey 
to become a Respect Trail Blazer local authority will enhance the provision of 
current services. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 299



 9 

6.  Strategic Aims 
 
Strategic Aim 1 - To build on and improve Partnership Working  

Priorities Actions 
1. To improve multi agency working via 
improving agencies’ understanding of 
partnership working and their information 
sharing practices and protocols and youth 
crime. 
 
2. To establish an effective, multi-agency 
Youth Crime Reduction Steering Group  
 
 

1. To develop practices and values to be 
adopted locally by partners, which must be 
transparent, understood, owned, shared 
and delivered. 
  
2. To improve links with the Voluntary, 
Statutory and public sectors.  In addition to 
continue to service the multi disciplinary 
teams i.e. YISP and forge alliances with the 
Children’s Networks. 
  
3. To ensure that all providers and services 
are aware of their rights and responsibilities 
under the Data Protection and Crime and 
Disorder Act and the Children’s Act/ Every 
Child Matters. 
  
4. To agree a planning, monitoring and 
evaluation system to be shared particularly 
between Youth Provisions.  

 
Strategic Aim 2 - To reduce re-offending and tackling persistent and high risk offenders 

Priorities Actions 
1. To reduce repeat offending levels within 
the borough of Haringey. To achieve this we 
intend to improve information sharing 
between key partners. 

 
2. To focus specific effort at reducing crime 
committed by prolific persistent/serious 
young offenders.  
 

1. To review the Prevent and Deter strand 
of the Persistent and Priority Offenders 
strategy (PPO) with particular reference to 
identifying those under the intensive 
targeting section.  This will ensure they 
receive an enhanced and multi-agency 
intervention package. 
  
2. To work with others to increase the 
number of education/training opportunities 
for offenders. 
  
3. To access and utilise relevant funding 
opportunities to provide services for at risk 
young people. 
  
4.  To implement innovative diversionary 
support packages specifically designed to 
meet the needs of socially excluded high-
risk individuals. 
  
5. To ensure that all vulnerable groups 
receive Onset screening and are 
appropriately referred in accordance with 
the assessments. 

Page 300



 10 

Strategic Aim 3- To reduce Child and Youth Victimisation 

Priorities Actions 
1. To reduce levels of youth victimisation 
by increasing the level of crimes reported 
and by implementing support packages for 
victims. 
 
2. To improve the quality and quantity of 
data on youth victimisation. 

1. To establish and work closely with the 
Victim Support Outreach worker. 
  
2. To improve the partnership links between 
the Safer Schools Officers, Schools and 
Victim Support in order to support young 
victims and encourage the reporting of 
crime. 
  
3. To maintain the Safer Schools 
Partnership to ensure that police officers 
remain accessible to young victims, thereby 
encouraging the reporting of crime.  
  
4. To continue to support young people 
through the Safer Schools Project – 
Behaviour Improvement Programme (BIP) 
who are vulnerable both as victims and 
potential offenders. 
  
5. To continue the YISP multi agency 
intervention programmes and support young 
victims and potential offenders through 
creative packages designed to meet 
individual need. 

 
 
Strategic Aim 4 - Targeted Crime Prevention and Reduction and Early Intervention    

Priorities Actions 
1. To prevent ‘at risk’ young people from 
becoming involved in offending 
behaviour, through targeted initiatives 
both within and outside school 
 
2. To engage young people being 
conscious of the need to prevent 
stigmatisation/labelling in early 
intervention 
 
3. To reduce bullying. 
 
4. To promote the issue of mental health 
with regard to youth offending 
and victimisation. 
 

1. To encourage referrals to the YISP multi 
agency panel and On Track in order to 
ascertain a holistic assessment of needs and 
review actions taken accordingly. 
  
2. To target and design resources specifically 
tailored to meet the needs of vulnerable groups 
e.g. looked after children, black and minority 
ethnic groups.  
  
3. To address each individual ’risk factor’ and 
monitor and evaluate as appropriate, through 
the completion of the Onset Assessment tool. 
  
4. Focus resources on improving parenting 
skills and contribute to the Family Support 
Strategy. 
  
5. Reduce risk and rates of exclusion by linking 
with existing or providing behavioural 
management support programmes to support 

Page 301



 11 

schools in dealing with challenging and difficult 
behaviour.  
  
6. To ensure that young people at risk, in 
particular those at risk through drug and 
alcohol misuse,  are referred onto appropriate 
projects provided by voluntary /statutory 
agencies. 
  
7. To conduct regular targeted truancy patrols 
in partnership with the Education Welfare 
Service (EWS). 

 
8. To work with schools and education welfare 
service to promote a culture of attendance at 
school. 
  
9. To promote reporting processes regarding 
bullying within schools and investigate 
methods of dealing with bullying (e.g. 
Restorative approaches/Peer mentoring), 
working in liaison with other mentoring and 
restorative justice providers. 
  
10. To raise the profile and reduce the stigma 
of bullying in conjunction with the Local 
Safeguarding Children’s Board.      
  
11. To promote factual information around 
mental health issues and young people. 
  
12. Liaise and work in partnership with CAMHS 
and other associated health services. 

 
  
  
Strategic Aim 5 - To improve consultation and participation with young people 

Priorities Actions 
1.  To offer opportunities to develop 
personal skills and competences with 
regard to co-ordinated consultation and 
participation of young people. 
 
 
 

1. To liaise closely with the Youth Council. 
 
2. To identify candidates and continue to 
provide training opportunities for the 
Leaders in Training Programme, in order to 
enable them to become involved in problem 
solving processes in relation to young 
people. 

 

Page 302



 12 

Appendix 1 
 
 
Abbreviations and glossary: 
 
 
AQA       
 
ASDAN   
 
BIP   
 
CAMHS   
  
EWS 
 
GOL 
 
NEET 
 
ONSET  
 
P&D 
 
PPO    
 
YIP  
 
YISP           
         
YJB 
 
YOS                                                                          

Assessment and Qualification Alliance  
 
Awards Scheme Development and Accreditation Network 
 
Behaviour Improvement Programme 
 
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service 
 
Education Welfare Service  
 
Government Office for London 
 
Not in education, employment or training 
 
YJB assessment tool for assessing children and young people. 
 
Prevent and Deter 
 
Prolific and Priority Offender     
 
Youth Inclusion Programme 
 
Youth Inclusion and Support Panel 
 
Youth Justice Board 
 
Youth Offending Service 
 

 
 
                       
 
                    
 
                    
 
                    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 303



 13 

Appendix 2 
 

Youth Inclusion and Support Panel- Statistical data 
1st April 2005 – 31st March 2006  

 
 
Referrals 
 

Illustration 1A:  Total number of referrals received  
 

No. Of Young People Referred To THe YISP Between 

01.04.05 and 31.03.06

7
8

3

10

14

1010

14

1820

9

14

0

5

10

15

20

25

Apr-

05

May-

05

Jun-

05

Jul-

05

Aug-

05

Sep-

05

Oct-

05

Nov-

05

Dec-

05

Jan-

06

Feb-

06

Mar-

06

Months

N
o

. 
O

f 
Y

o
u
n
g
 p

e
o
p
le

 
 
 
Young Offenders and Young People at Risk 
 
Illustration 2A:  Comparison of young offenders and young people at risk 
 

Offenders & YP's At Risk - Ratio

 25

 112

Offenders At Risk

 

Page 304



 14 

 

Referral Sources 
 
Illustration 3A: Distribution of agencies referring to the YISP by percentage 
 

Distribution Of Agencies Referring To The 

YISP (%)

1%

80%

3%

1%

1%
8%2%

1%
3%

ASBAT

Education

Health Services

Police

Hackney YISP

Self Referrals

Referral & Assessment

Team

YOS

Social Services

 
 

 

 

Age 
 
Illustration 4A: Age breakdown of young people referred to the YISP 
 

Age Distribution Of Young People Referred To The YISP

14%

1%

14%

1%

7%

4%

15%

22% 22%

10yrs

11yrs

12yrs

13yrs

14yrs

15yrs

16yrs

17yrs

18yrs

 
 

 

 

 

Page 305



 15 

Ethnicity 
 
Illustration 5A:  Ethnicity breakdown of young people referred to the YISP 
 

Ethnicity Distribution Of Young People Referred To The YISP

1%

28%

26%

4%
3% 3%

1%

1%

5%

1%3%

1%

1%

6%

4%

7% 1%
3%

1%

1%

Asian British

Black African

Black British

Black Caribbean

Bulgarian

Caribbean

Eastern European

Greek Mediteranean

Mediteranean

Mixed (White/Black)

Mixed Other 

Other

Portuguese

Romanian

Turkish

Unknown

White British

White European

White Irish

White Other

 
 

Education Status 
 
Illustration 6A:  Breakdown of education status 
 

Distribution Of The Education Status Of Youths Referred 

To The YISP

61%

2%

7%
1%

29%

Full Time

Non-Attender

Part Time

Perm

Excluded

Unknown

 

Page 306



 16 

Re-Offending 
 
Illustration 7A:  Conviction rates for young people referred to the panel 
 

Offenders Who Have Re-offended Since Being 

Referred To The YISP

109

3

Not Re-offended

Re-offended within 3

months

Re-offended within 6

months

Re-offended within 12

months

 
 
Intervention and Diversionary Measures 
 

Illustration 8A:  Distribution of intervention and diversionary measures 
 

Distribution Of The YISP's Intervention & Diversionary 

Measure

2 1 1 3

23

4 6 4 2 5 3 3

114

34

3 1

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

C
AM

H
S

H
ar

ts

You
th

 S
er

vi
ce

s

Ahe
ad

s

C
on

ne
xi
ons

Par
en

t S
up

po
rt

R
ed

 G
ab

le
s

Edu
ca

tio
n 

W
elfa

re

D
ru

gs
 E

du
ca

tio
n

Edu
ca

tio
n 

M
ee

tin
g

Tee
na

ge
 In

te
rv

en
tio

n

O
n 

Tra
ck

Atte
nd

an
ce

 C
en

tre

YIS
P M

ee
tin

g

H
ou

si
ng

Ang
er

 M
an

ag
em

ent

Agency

N
o

. 
O

f 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 
 
 
 
 

Page 307



 17 

Wards 
 
Illustration 9A:  A breakdown of the referrals wards 

 

A Breakdown Of The Wards Which The YISP's Referrals Come From

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Ale
xa

ndr
a

Boun
ds

 G
re

en

Bru
ce

 G
ro

ve

C
ro

uch
 E

nd

Fo
rti

s 
G

re
en

H
ar

rin
ga

y

H
ig
hg

at
e

H
or

ns
ey

M
usw

ell 
Hill

N
oe

l P
ar

k

N
or

th
um

ber
la

nd 
Par

k

Sev
en

 S
is
te

r

St A
nn

's

Stro
ud

 G
re

en

To
tte

nh
am

 G
re

en

To
tte

nh
am

 H
ale

W
est

 G
re

en

W
hi

te
 H

ar
t L

an
e

W
ood

si
de

Wards

N
o

. 
O

f 
Y

o
u

n
g

 P
e
o

p
le

 

Page 308



 18 

Appendix 3 
On Track and Junior YIP statistical data 

 
Between September 2005 and July 2006, 505 individual children and young people and 
their parents/carers have attended interventions in schools – Broadwater Farm, Bruce 
Grove, Coleraine Park, Downhills, Lancasterian, Risley Avenue, The Green, The Mulberry. 
(This does not include details of outreach work undertaken which is the subject of research 
from the University of East London. The research is due for publication in the autumn 
2006) 
 
Types of users  
 
Of the 505 service users, 95% are children and 5 % parents.  The data collected reflects 
all interventions excluding half term trips, home visiting, family therapy, Easter and 
summer play schemes - hence the low number of parents. 
  
Illustration 1A 

480

25

0

100

200

300

400

500

Children Parents

Number of Users

Children

Parents

 
 
Ethnicity Breakdown 
 
Of the main ethnic listings, the highest number of service users is from Black of Black 
British Caribbean with 34%, followed by Black of Black British African with 25% and white 
British with 13%.   

Page 309



 19 

Illustration 2A  

Nationality of Service Users

1%

25%

34%

3%

4%

6%

2%
6% 1% 13% 0%

2%2%

0%

1%

Asian or Asian British - Bangladeshi Asian or Asian British - Indian
Asian or Asian British - Other  Asian Asian or Asian British - Pakistani
Black of Black British - African Black of Black British - Caribbean
Black of Black British - Other Black Mixed - Other Mixed
Mixed - White and Black Caribbean Mixed - Whte and Black African
Other Ethnic Unknown
White - British White - Irish
White - Other White

 
 
 
 
Figure 3A shows that the majority (92%) of the clients who attended the On Track 
interventions lived in the On Track Area.  7% of the clients did not live in the On Track 
Area, although they do reside in the London Borough of Haringey. 
   
Illustration 3A 

Number of Users living in OTA

Yes

No

Unknown

 
 
 

Page 310



 20 

Appendix 4 
Senior YIP statistical information 

Referrals 
 
Illustration 1A: Breakdown of numbers referred to Senior YIP 

Young people referred to YIP from 1st April 2005 - 31st March 2006

150

 
 

Ethnicity breakdown 
 
Illustration 2A  

Young People referred to the YIP from different Ethnic Groups from 1st April 

2005 -31st March 2006

Asian

Black/Black British

White

White 0ther

Mixed

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

Series1

Series1 1 73 53 18 5

Asian
Black/Black 

British
White White 0ther Mixed

 

Page 311



 21 

Wards 
 

Illustration 3A: Breakdown of referral wards 

Number of Young People referred to the YIP from different Wards from 1st April 2005 - 31st March 2006 

Woodside, 70

Noel Park, 60

Harringay, 20

Woodside

Noel Park

Harringay

 
 
Age 
 

Illustration 4A: Breakdown of referrals by age 

Age Group of Young People Referred to the YIP from 1st April -31st March 2006

13yr olds, 8

14yr olds, 23

15yr olds, 33

16yr olds, 43

17yr olds, 17

18yr olds, 16

19yr olds, 10

13yr olds

14yr olds

15yr olds

16yr olds

17yr olds

18yr olds

19yr olds

 
 

Page 312



 22 

Re-offending 
 
Illustration 5A: Conviction rates of young people referred to Senior YIP 

Young People from YIP list who have re-offended since 1st April 2005 - 

31st March 2006

Not Re-offended, 119

Re-offended, 31

Re-offended

Not Re-offended

 
 

Page 313



Page 314

This page is intentionally left blank



    Agenda Item  
 
 

 The Executive                         On  21 November 2006 

 

 
Report title: URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH  EXECUTIVE 
MEMBERS 
 

 
Report of: The Chief Executive 
 

 
1. Purpose 
 
To inform the Executive of urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with Executive 
Members. 
 
The report details urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with Executive 
Members since last reported. Item number 14-16 (2006-7) have not previously been 
reported. 
 

 
2. Recommendations 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

 
Report authorised by: Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive 
 
 

 
Contact officer: Richard Burbidge 
 
Telephone: 020 8489 2923  
 
 

Agenda Item 18Page 315



4. Access to information: 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
4.1 Background Papers 

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report; 
 

Executive Member Consultation Forms 

Those marked with ♦ contain exempt information and are not available for public 
inspection. 

 
The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood 
Green, London N22 8HQ. 

 
           To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Richard Burbidge 

on 020 8489 2923. 
 

 

Page 316



 

 14. Chief 
Executives 

23.10.06 J.Holliday 
 

G.Meehan 
20.10.06 

Novation of the IT 
Customer 
Relationship 
Management (CRM) 
Contract from 
Serco Solutions 
Ltd. to Serco Ltd. 

♦Approval to the novation of the IT CRM contract from Serco 
Solutions Ltd. to Serco Ltd. and to proceed to the Council’s sealing 
of the Novation Agreement. 

 15. Children & 
Young People 

03.11.06 A.Travers 
01.11.06 

L.Santry   ) 
G.Meehan) 
01.11.06 

Building Schools 
for the Future – 
Outline Business 
Case 

Following discussions with Partnerships for Schools, approval to 
submission of a revised Outline Business Case seeking a grant of 
£178,782,000 (up from £165,159,610) from the Department for 
Education and Skills. 

 16. Chief 
Executives 

06.11.06 I.O’Donovan 
02.11.06 

G.Meehan 
06.11.06 

Appointment of 
Councillor to serve 
on the Hornsey 
Town Hall 
Community 
Partnership 

Approval to the appointment of Councillor Gorrie to serve on the 
Hornsey Town Hall Community Partnership Board in place of 
Councillor Winskill. 

       

       

       

       

       

       

       

P
a
g
e
 3

1
7



 

      •  

       

       

       

       

 

P
a
g

e
 3

1
8



    Agenda Item  
 
 

 The Executive                         On  21 November 2006 

 

 
Report title: DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS 
 

 
Report of: The Chief Executive 
 

 
1. Purpose 
 
To inform the Executive of delegated decisions and significant actions taken by Directors. 
 
The report details by number and type decisions taken by Directors under delegated 
powers in September/October 2006. Significant actions (decisions involving expenditure of 
more than £50,000) taken during the same period are also detailed. 
 
 

 
2. Recommendations 
 
That the report be noted. 
 

 
Report authorised by: Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive 
 
 

 
Contact officer: Richard Burbidge 
 
Telephone: 020 8489 2923  
 
 

Agenda Item 19Page 319



4. Access to information: 
 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 
 
4.1 Background Papers 

The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report; 
 

Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions Forms 
 

Those marked with ♦ contain exempt information and are not available for public 
inspection. 

 
The background papers are located at River Park House 225 High Road, Wood 
Green, London N22 8HQ. 

 
           To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Richard Burbidge 

on 020 8489 2923. 
 

 

Page 320



ASSISTANT CHIEF EXECUTIVE (Access) 

Significant decisions - Delegated Action October 2006 

♦ denotes background papers are Exempt. 
 
Items in bold denote agreed decisions over £50k 

 

No 
 

Date approved by 
ACE (Access) 

Title Decision 

1. 06/10/06 Extension to the Capgemini Technical Services contract for the development and support 
of the Siebel (CRM) application 

Agreed 

2. 13/10/06 Stoneleigh Road Depot Site redevelopment – request to instruct legal to prepare letter of intent 
for a maximum value of £50,000 

Agreed 

 
 

Delegated Action 
 
Type Number 

Stoneleigh Road, Award of Contract  
Novation of the IT Customer Relationship Management (CRM) Contract from Serco Solutions Limited to Serco 
Limited 

 

 

P
a
g
e
 3

2
1



Page 322

This page is intentionally left blank



DIRECTOR OF THE CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S SERVICE  

Significant decisions - Delegated Action   October 2006 

♦ denotes background papers are Exempt. 
 

No 
 

Date approved by 
Director 

Title Decision 

1.  9.10.06 Developing Further training 
opportunities to raise quality of 
nursery education  

Agreed two new additional Assessor posts  

2. 18.10.06 Establishment Changes – Leaving 
Care Service 

Agreed Personal Advisor service to come in-house.   

  3. 18.10.06 Establishment Changes – 
Leaving Care Service 

Agreed creation of two permanent posts for 18+care leavers 

 
 

Delegated Action 
 
Type Number 

Request for waiver of CSO 6.04 (requirement to tender) under CSO7 2 
  
  
  

  
  

 

P
a
g
e
 3

2
3



Page 324

This page is intentionally left blank



DIRECTOR OF Environmental Services (September) 

Significant decisions - Delegated Action 2006/07 

♦ denotes background papers are Exempt. 
 

No 
 

Date 
approved 
by Director 

Title Decision 

1.  11/09/06 Haringey Cycle Training 
Contract 

To award the contract for cycle training in the London Borough of Haringey to 
Cycle Training UK in the sum of £60k. 

2.    

  3.    

  4.    

 
 
Delegated Action 
 
Type Number 
CSO’s 4 
Delegation of powers to officers 1 
Business Unit Restructure 1 
  

  
  

 

P
a
g
e
 3

2
5



Page 326

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Programme Highlight Report - September 2006
	Executive_2006.11.21_Agenda Item 07_Programme Highlight Report - September (Appendix)

	8 The Council's Performance - September 2006
	Executive_2006.11.21_Agenda Item 08_Council's Performance - September (Appendix)

	9 Haringey Council's Proposal for the New School in Haringey Heartlands
	10 Learner Support Fund (LSF)
	Executive_2006.11.21_Agenda Item 10_Learner Support Fund Policy (Appendix)

	11 Maximising Household Income in Haringey
	12 Forfeiture Proceedings against Residential Leaseholders
	13 Draft Statement of Community Involvement
	Executive_2006.11.21_Agenda Item 13_Draft Statement of Community Involvement (Appendices 1-9)
	Executive_2006.11.21_Agenda Item 13_Draft Statement of Community Involvement (Draft Statement)

	14 Tottenham Hale CPZ Extension
	15 Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy
	Executive_2006.11.21_Agenda Item 15_Hate Crime and Harassment Strategy (Appendix)

	16 Youth Crime Reduction Strategy
	Executive_2006.11.21_Agenda Item 16_Youth Crime Reduction Strategy (Appendix)

	18 Urgent Actions Taken in Consultation with the Leader or Executive Members
	Executive_2006.11.21_Agenda Item 18_Urgent Actions (Appendix)

	19 Delegated Decisions and Significant Actions
	Executive_2006.11.21_Agenda Item 19_Delegated Decisions Significant Actions (Appendix 1)
	Executive_2006.11.21_Agenda Item 19_Delegated Decisions Significant Actions (Appendix 2)
	Executive_2006.11.21_Agenda Item 19_Delegated Decisions Significant Actions (Appendix 3)


